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Expanding the world’s
knowledge of ecological
fertilisers and magnesium

markets in the 21st green era.
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One of the leading and largest
vertically integrated businesses
covering ecological fertilisers
and magnesium to achieve green
technological innovations and
operational efficiencies and
effectiveness in Asia.
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FE : ir@centurysunshine.com.hk
#84F © www.centurysunshine.com.hk
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors
Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Chi Bi Fen

Non-executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Company Secretary
Luk Sai Wai, Simon

Committees

Audit Committee

Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Nomination Committee

Chi Wen Fu (Committee Chairman)
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Remuneration Committee

Kwong Ping Man (Committee Chairman)
Shum Sai Chit

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

Head Office

Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2802 2165

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

E-mail: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk
Website:  www.centurysunshine.com.hk

Auditors
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Bankers
Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
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Information for Investors

Listing Information

Listing Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
Stock code 509
Key Dates
29 March 2017 Announcement of 2016 annual results
22 May 2017 to Closure of register of members
26 May 2017 (for annual general meeting)
(both days inclusive)
26 May 2017 Annual general meeting

Share Information
Company’s shares of HK$0.02 each 4,597,976,843 Shares
(the “Shares”) in issue
(31 December 2016)
Market capitalisation (31 December 2016) HK$1,287,433,516
Board lot size 5,000 Shares

Earnings Per Share for 2016
Basic HK6.57 cents
Diluted HK6.57 cents

Dividend Per Share for 2016
Interim Nil HK cents
Final (proposed) Nil HK cents

Share Registrar and Transfer Offices

Principal:

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong:

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Five Year Financial Summary

2016 2015 2014 2013
TR B TR TiET
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000

2012

T
HK$' 000

BZ12H31HIL%E  For the year ended 31 December
WA Revenue 2,589,221 2,515,602 2,072,519 1,640,291 1,242,930
HERA Cost of sales (1,829,360)  (1,729,567)  (1,412,575)  (1,132,526) (910,734)
= Gross profit 759,861 786,035 659,944 507,765 332,196
EARKEFE Other income and gains, net 67,884 72,578 18,346 10,469 13,472
HERMGHEER Selling and marketing costs (93,911) (113,406) (103,116) (69,437) (48,948)
TBAX Administrative expenses (159,379) (139,742 (63,302) (55,767 (48,084)
HHEH Finance costs (117,564) (87,390) (44,186) (21,441) (20,363)
BRETER AT Profit before income tax 456,891 518,075 467,686 371,589 228,273
FERRAZ Income tax expense (143,839) (155,006) (128,045) (94,456) (47,984)
BRILEERH Discontinued operation - - - - (11,705)
FEREF Profit for the year 313,052 363,069 339,641 277,133 168,584
THALREERER - Profit for the year
attributable to:

/NGIE ZDN Owners of the Company 302,334 314,479 287,910 230,215 130,312

FERER Non-controlling interests 10,718 48,590 51,731 46,918 38,272
BRERM: Earnings per share:

&K - basic 6.57 flicents  7.45flicents  8.01 flcents  7.01 flicents  3.98 flicents

g - diluted 6.57 flcents 7.33flicents  7.79 flicents  6.80 flicents  3.98 flicents
R12H31H As at 31 December
EEDE Total assets 5,246,469 5,421,692 3,796,956 2,840,222 2,363,438
BEEE Total liabilities (2,192,003)  (2,057,170)  (1,430,315) (687,260) (593,924)
EnEs Total equity 3,054,466 3,364,522 2,366,641 2,152,962 1,769,514
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Five Year Financial Summary

Mzt 2016
notes TEL
HZ12H31H1%E  For the year ended 31 December
RE#ERORE Return on shareholders’ equity 1 11.1% 10.6% 13.0% 11.6% 8.0%
BEERRE Return on total assets 2 6.0% 6.7% 8.9% 9.8% 7.1%
BHHAEGEH Interest coverage 3 5x i Bx & 1xf 18xf% 12x1%
R12/531H4 As at 31 December
BENE Gearing ratio 4 29.4% 25.7% 23.4% 10.6% 13.4%
MBI E Liquidity 5 3xfE 3 o1& o1& oxfE
Htet - notes:
1. ARAHEABGEFEREHN,BEEERE 1. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company/
Shareholders’ equity
2. FREFMNBELE 2. Profit for the year/Total assets
3. BAEREMESEXAEFFERX 3. Profit before income tax and interest expense/Interest
expense
4. HIEE /AEHRE 4,  Total borrowings/Total assets
5  REBEE/RBHERE 5. Current assets/Current liabilities
WA FE=x
Revenue Margins
EwET Bt
HK$’'000,000 %
3000 200 35
2500 B 2 30 = 2 o -
2000 B “H e 25 g ¢
o < 20
1500 g o
@ - 15 © © ; ©
1000 & . g g 5
500 5
0 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 0 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
| . FE7 Gross profit I_L N F Profit for the year
KRB HEEAEEFRNER A
Profit for the Year Attributable Total Equity

to Owners of the Company

BEBT AL

HK$’'000,000 HK$’'000,000 M
350 3500
ool P - s gy
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RABRERMLE N EFEIZERER AR ARA ] BEREKB AR @ SifB[HLB IS AE@NEE((EF])
e([E2F2]) MAREAEEHZ2016F 12431 BIEFE(FRAD 22 FEEUAEBEEE -

AEEH2EETZEBR 2016 FHMEEBELER - LEXEREB T E > AEERFATMBRBL0SZFELE
SEHMFEZEARERERURABCTIROBRAR(ABEIURABMEETROBERARD(TILERLR D
50.5% M - W ERAKRENERREBE  BA/ALAKRETREEBRMGD - WRARESTEMELESER
MEAE ZBETEREEAGLEZIRRE  RHBEEITXER2BREERERRBITETEEMIMLURE
FHFERE2ECTRCRFEH L) RILRERENE MR EEZMARS L] WHEBZHEN M - 55l
REAREIGEXR IR RSAIRAERANTHEEIEENTES)  —ERAXEEENEE - WRABRENHE
RIEAREBACE @R 4Em W 572016 F 11 AR E A E[2016 EREBEMERRER T8 - AERETHE
ER/RNEERHEBRRERET T RFER - WHILRAR - HORRRARNEEESBRIERTENTIS A
MBNREAEENFEREZRBLAFEARE - WBZKE - AEBEEHEBMRDHRITE « ILRMIA
FEEN BRI PEMEETE LAKEM B mHENEEREFITEELER  ERBRBE - E—
I AREEZOBF N ©

NEeBEEREB T FRAAEERNERSBEES  AEEMND L E S — BB E 50,000 M T8 ZE £ R
2016 FFAFEEATRK - AR AEEFEBTAREE(BBE)BRAA(RMAET : 601 ([HEHK]) - »
2015 FRNEEF B R MAEN - BAIERLE 15,000 - JEHL HEZREFEREE 100,000 » NEE(BIFEES
B )& B EE D SR AB R E 175,000 - SAEBE 2B BEAERTH -

BEIERER

AEBREEHEBERTAAGENEREXRRER - 2016%F - ABME - TEEEXENKEERREM
o ERIT=RIMHARZF  PEBNEREL & T(2REXERRCHRB(2016-2020F)) - (BRITEI =1 |
BRAFER) (ZERNEHEZERIT=ZAIRE)EZARERETRAEFERE - A 2BERERR(CRE
(2016-2020 F DEHRRAFRERRCEROBBE T AMEBEC/EL THELHS  BER TR+ A 118
REXZERARSEEE  AKRETI =0 I0HEBET - HEL MREFERXHEASBENRSE  RFAFE
BIEBERXEE ETURCHER  REEY  BEMERXE  EGRERHELS  REA - REESKERA - LA
R REERONMENENGF N - REHGASEBUERERFSRAME  TEENENZE/NEEZRZKM
R REERBRA#BRTPERREE  ANESKERETAIHRNESEMERIEREEZARER - RIETE
P AT EMAOCHEECETRENERNEGEER) » 312020F » REFIEMAEHNEREGLKE TN
F10% BTTEI30% - ERRHERDEZERRMENEERERENAER T REEEHHEERIEH LK R
TEZRROABE -

HRELEREEH —EEAKEEMEENEETR HEMNSARHEEANRERRBORE  HRIE @
EREZENREVREE  ERAREXER RECREXEENEATEXEE AKECHITAEMER
B AREAREATEER &M% 4AE HEREEERAR BNRERBEXLRE ERVEFNNR
ETENRSREYRE - AR AEERZEOEEERIER  BPRBATELREERHESERENR
R RERFAFEER - ARBENRTFEBRFENNEXBRRER  BAONRRR &6 FR/TEXRTH
RER  BHFEITRAALE -
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AEEFEERERERAGIaRBEREEZZRAR - FA @ FREBUTIIESZ EF T H1TERE RBEE A HEE
FeBNEENER - 21ERN20165F10A 180 - TEMELLDBEM T(EELB I X EHE/(2016-2020
FNNEEeBIXt=R|2EFE(EEB AR+ =A8E ] - REFE+=ZRFRE 2020F X ZEBEEH
BERREEREN  EHEINATEATERE  FEREXA71% AFHEREXGaNCEBRE  BE+T=H#K
EIFEET 2020 FEE = #5E F] 1,300,000 18 © i FH O - 8T 2 A HBIREFE - BIREEE 2 1§3= 750,000 1 -
AECBERBBRTPE MRS —EERUABARGSVMHSEAENEE  BEMTEMARS RS
AEARTEHRSEN  SEMASEA S KREEERN, B SCERASASREESEH  KAEERKEAS
BAEEESIREN - AERSEBERZSSRBRENHS  ERETE4SERBEREE 2020 Fi5#
NERAZ=150,0000 - FAHAFRBFLA R ECEHFERLREANTR  URESSKIBERMECRAS
BERY)  BERKVNEARNBLRESSTMAMEISER U BREFTEHESBTENSRER -

AEBEETEERESE  FEMRPEANBREBEEREBNERRE  FNERDREEREHEERIN
REAENBEBITE  BOISKEREBERAATENEZREITRAIIGE -

B2

CIEE2016F - 2K ERBHEZESZ THERER B 2017 F2 BN B OBMERFHN T KEZRTT - 2017
FRTPEER +=RIRINEE—F  RHEANEBUERENRIZF - 2016 FRFREETIFRAD H2017
FOPBEQBERRET TR NEET o PRIETIERF O A EM2017 FHEGDPERRERADRS -
B 2017 FFREEERRFBREER -

RERK  EFBEBAANEIREERRCRMRECRERET  AKRE{ESFAEZMN - ERMMEE
2 BEEZNIMARA BEEEELBERGS  ANEENEREZRCHERBBEENRMS  BHEREH
EHSRER  SAKEESPEEANEALETI  YRATMNERREERNZESHMHEERRSK
R BEEEBARINGEZ— -

AABRREFES  RASEEBNZ2EBRACERE—FAAKEMELNER - A - TELEERSUK

R EBBHEARFABEPHE  BRHAFX —EUARYAKENRNIHF - ERKO—F - ZAEHBREN -
HORBERGEREGENCIR -

WX E
E1

EFH - 2017FE3A29H
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KB EE

2016 FRHREBRSBLERBR B EZNRRBEHEELHEEER - XBREMEERNR - B
FEREEEL  BRAZRERTSRINIE : B/ REBIINBRE] - TMEHEZRBUAKEBRBELREFR
£ wHEETESRTE - MENEBRRTTE LA ERUAFEMSENEKRELRERE - E2REBETR
RERITT - FEI2016 F GDP T 6.7%MIER - BELBREMENES - AEHEEIFNHEESR » A&
BAERRER BERERNERTEMNEE  EBMLE  AEENMAXHRBEFARDRBETHRE - &
BRABPAEN -

HE2016F12A31BIEFEE - NEBEE WA L F2.9%%2,589,221,000% 7£(2015 4 : 2,515,602,000
BIL) B EFEKEB29.3%(2015F : 31.2%) ° 2 E K £ 2 WA £&1,399,088,000% (2015 4 :
1,523,281,000 7T ) * AL TFE8.2% @ EAREBBILA54.0% (20154 : 60.6%) : e BHEEREKZKAL
910,984,000 7L (2015 4 : 760,502,000/ L) * FILLE K 19.8% @ I AREEBUIA 35.2% (20154 : 30.2%) °

REERER

AEERERHERFEREEAGCR)IERREMERERM AR - BHE2016F 12 A1 HIEFE - BRERE
REBRAEKAERE B U AL 1,399,088,000%8 T (20154 : 471,523,281,000/8 L) * SHE 2R EFA4.6% =
692,197 W8 (20154 : 661,748M) - FHHEF|KEZF 28.4% (20154 : 27.9%) - ERNFERNLEHERER A LA
RERZE  HERARL TR B0l ZEZBDAKFHEERALERREBERFEA ZEFE -

FRABERFHEANEECARR  S3FAUER  SASEZEZERENREER  BIE&5] - [4n
m| - [EE KSR IEHGEEHEE BYEREER  AEENRETZEEENER - FR - TIHEEEMNTE
8E3Z F1850,000 M8 - AT P4 B2 1,400,000 MK FEREMNE —HAEEGEREERRT 2018 FREREIK
TBIRAT - NEBETEFE —HI550,000 M FE R 2017 FE =FREETT * B FE 400,000 I = A & 150,000 WA
BEIERVIER - H4#7 850,000 EELTEHAN 2019 F 1R E - InEMIEAIAEEENTENT  MR=HA -
KE-ANMERE-AABEER  BREIME  EEFNAAREMAEBER  KEIBHBAER - G818
RBRWAA M EFEEESSRBALENRMTNEESAEWEE @ S8 WL EDRMEEKA -

RE—THPAFENLERECEEXRNTEILR  F5 - EHLEEREMWGRNTHL2ER  AFEALAKEL
ERBEAMNRICHEBIEE - ARERTWBERZ  WEEOSFLLEELNANEBESICEERILIIRAH50.5%
B WRABRTEMEESEKMERE  ZETERBEALZIRKE  EPEELITEERI2EAE

mERRBITETEEML I MURES - REZR 2B TREREFL] RIURERENE R EEMAES
Ol YHEEZEENRM - BHRELREIGHERXIMRSAIABERENTHSEEENTES - —HERXH
BENEET - FR WRABLZEREREKNIRE EREEET - BER 2017 FERHE L 700,000H8E &
CR)EHES -

BRLRABRRBEEZRMEGDRHE  WR2017E3 A2 RN ARTIEST SRS LAB - IRWBHHRIER
BER2017F 4 A1 HEXREI R EXREHFAREER -

AEEMRE BEIHNIAMELEEEMWEZTIBERER  URILRLCAEAGHAREER - AEBIEHER
ERERLLBRRBERAIE - K HEEARNKENERNEHEEAER -
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TEEEMER

REECBHEERES I EREERBEERLAH IS ASER - HE2016F 12 A1 ALFE  cBEERER
BAREBEERUA 910,984,000 7L (20154F : 760,502,000/87T) @ $5E & 536,201 HE(20154F : 24,031 1) -
FESCBESERHEERLKIBEMNE0.6% - TR ARFBEEAMOHIBKE  MEHBEDETHEEM
BER ZENERNENEEERLABEIN8.1% » FEER 2 BEENRHEEE 29.0% (20154 ¢
34.2%) c RIHEEBEAFEBERLT  ¢EBEEREBZHERALZE10.8%EE -

BEEERRAERARRENINSCEASSBEBIA  URCEMRENRABAZERE - BRBIEEM
RAEFBITEMI CETFEMSFTITE - BE NEFTROREBER KA TRETBELET M GRER
e hEBEELENSEERRE  AeBEEENSBELOENAERE — AREXHENEXRERESD - K
SEE 2008 FURCRAXREERNEASRENMREME  BACKATENRLELE - AREREMNES
IWTHEMEER  RELENOZSABRERAR YRR TREBEENRERZFSSEESN - 2016 FERE
25,000 - 55 —#150,000 MiEERREEATK @ MIBLEERBEERAGES -

o REERBARES (BR)ARAR([#EER DURNMENSHREER CEKNNSER MR EE
AREFEERED B/ 15,000 M8 K2 600,000 M8 - Hh » A S A ERKBREENRER  CRFARDFBERALE - 5
SEAEEM100,000Mika ©FERCEBRFIE  ZREBEE TRBERRAFEL  AEERRECSRE
BEALEZER175,000M - ML AEEFAZHFUESAS TEMRELARMEN BRT LFRERHERE
THEETHEERNEERERLE  REEBEREHRTRENGHENS N UBE-FPRALTEERSBH
TEPOTHHA - THEHAEESBERBEBRENREILE -

Htb 2%

AEENEMEXBEERMNEEHLETEREY ASERANEECNAREERMEEELEMNERLE
L RIaREE TR RO c ERFREEREERMMERTERENARET - AEBEEE HE RN
AA TEARMECEUBRFRHERENORA -

RE

2017 FHMEREBERFFHEE 016 FNHEBE  YrAELEEZNITRERR  KEHSTSEERN —EW
REBES - R AEBREBEROMA T EXBANEZXENEREE SR ERRCFHEER B MK
Ko B TEMBEMOGEECRTEEUERNEERE )RS - PEFEEHLICHAEREG LR AT
TE10%1-TTH 2020 FH)30% * #AAEELE LRNFAUEHBRSEATSZEH - Z—H (FEEBIE
BRME(2016-2020 F DAIZ BN HEREASMHENSTACLBNEZER - ARESTHIES S BHEE
BRETHER  E—FPHESESBEXB 2 BS  UHBEEBLEREE  ReSERLBEFE -

AEERE BEEREXRRZLEZE  ULTHEMLEHNSES M HNRB AR  mHEAKE
MERBRGIFELN  KAXEEXBEROHES ) - RAYCETSER - AEEBTD FBRLENFEFK
MMmETHESE  BREGRBRENT SR YEREUNERER(CEATESRE  MBEZRHEMEHFLNE
HREGHINEER £ PREEAKEERES KM IHHNRLMA -

RERK  AEERKZENERFNBEREBEY - MREXHGBNERELENTK  HESMATLEEHERT
FETTEASE BB R TEEE - SN RRREERHFHER -




HEFAEEEZREMRAT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEENWR DN

TREEYE

BE2016F 12 A ALFEZAKERTELERRE 20156 FRARBRLBMT - TRMIIMEZEBEARE
EHEZE2016F 12 A31 HILFEMNBEXFEBHE88%

(a) FEEmZHEER

2016 & 20154 # 0

A g %

BEIEREK 692,197 661,748 4.6
SBEERER 36,201 24,031 50.6

(b) EREm2FIIEE:

2016 & 20154
BT, M BT, W
BEIEREK 2,021 2 301 (12.2)
CBEERER 24,388 30,806 (20.8)
(c) EF=ZE:
2016 F #hn, Cr )
% ERE
BEIER 28.4 27.9 0.5
TEEEMFES 29.0 34.2 (5.2)
REE 2 EF= 29.3 31.2 (1.9)
EEWARER

REEF NG E EFL2,5689,221,000/8 7T » AELIEMN2.9% °

FAR-AEBIEHEBZHEERTH4.6%  MEPHERTHKN12.2% - T ERAREFREEETRED
6% FTEL - NREBZARELESENARBEERSRT  BEAREBAEBTTEMEE  FR BEAEZE
BTHKTH18.5% - AT AREBEBEBIEHKA - EHEBKZEMMIA0.5% E28.4% °

FR - HREMEBIHERN60.6% EXTBZREARTEREFHREIEEL - 2 AEBETRNFARA
TEERNESEY  FINEERNRER  BREBEEBTAN bR FAEREERNBEERLLEN TH
98.1% - AU HEB 2 BRENWHEE29.0% °
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HABA

FA O BEEERREFRE L EER  NEHFEKBEERERARE  WHERZEWIEEIN21,564,0008 7T + LA
e EREFR TR AL WES T 2016 F 2 ¥4 -

AEBZEMBAZTEAFTBWAMEERER - 5 523,970,000/ 7t & 14,056,0007%8 7t (20154F 9 Bl &
12,094,000 7T & 11,679,000 7T ) ©

ITERA

RNEBAFEE Z TS HA159,379,000/87C * BELIEMN141% - TEXREEREERHSBSEEEZ RN HE
BELEESAZETRETH 2506600087 c RAEREMBE2016FEETEEL  HEETTEERERIFI
M WH2016 F 11 B AREKBITA L REERFEN - FTBEMZ ERTNEREESER  FTHESEES
BEERZ70% °

MERX
AREB 7 F B # A 117,564,00078 7T © EEIE 430,174,000/ T8k4134.5% » TERAFHMNE FHEHFD

201566 ARBAA EIT RELRENFLFENE - AEBERFHMNEFHA/EE(2016F : 615F) - HHAIL—
HIEE MR P SO T A R IR AR KR 2017 FRME LA RIRER - MM EEENRE -

@
F W@ A &313,052,0008 70 © B TE413.8% - AR FI#HEA AFEAL & 7 4&302,334,000/%8 7T+ A T &

3.9% ° WHMiks E —FEMEEERKESENREMTRKEERBREOTE  FRENETKO6.4%  MAR
AEAAREGEMNES HIRFEM EF40.9% -

KRB E
ERNAEBERNEERR - BIETIAMEFER1,400,000BEREE - URKEMEZESELELRAR - Z
2017 FiHE ;ﬁiLjJO0,000I@E CRHAREARRFERGLREFELBALIG Ut - ARE+D

EREERE  ZEINLABEAMGEZ2EAASIAEBER SN  EE2MERTEHE2016F12 A1 HIEFE
ZARHEEE -

RBEE  AERMBER

AEBR 2016 FHNRBECTBRAFRNLEEERIBETHEENRS - N20164F 12 A31H » AEBZR
& MIRTTHE A H 495 932,785,000 7T (2015 4F : 1,452,515,00078 7T) °

R2016F 12 831 H » AEBZAEEE2015FEMNL10.5% @ ARBEEFERK2015FH P #15.3% - KEEH
R2016F 2 BB R(BEEREERE)NA29.4% (20155 : 25.7%) °

AEERAASEREAKERDELCRERSNERNENERBERFE -
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BEERR

R2016F 12 A31H » AEEEEFHEE  FFBERYBHRRWE2HEE -

BARESE

201612 A31 B » AEBWEEREBEREARAE - R ERRWM T 41(a) AEREERI -

HARAE

R2016F 12 431 A - ARBELEBEFAEAXREE - HERPBHRERM T A7 FAEERI -

BEXER

R2016412 A31H » RARIDEITIRA A 91,959,537 7T © H/4&4,597,976,843 A% » FAXE(E 0.02 /87T °
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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Century Sunshine Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company” and together with its subsidiaries, “Century Sunshine” or the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”) of the Group for the
consideration of our shareholders.

The two core businesses of the Group achieved encouraging progress in 2016. For the fertiliser business,
the Group announced the acquisition of 50.5% equity interest in Shandong Hongri Chemical Joint Stock
Company, Ltd. (formerly known as Shandong Hongri Acron Chemical Joint Stock Company, Ltd.) (“Shandong
Hongri”) which is a well-known compound fertiliser enterprise in the PRC with over 50 years of history since
establishment. The acquisition is in line with the development plan of the Group which brings long-term
strategic benefits. As the inventor of China’s sulphur-based compound fertilizer technology, Shandong Hongri
is known as the “father of sulphur-based compound fertiliser”, and the first chemical enterprise in China to
be named as the “Top Ten Outstanding After-sale Service Provider of National Famous Brands (2B RZEE
MmEBREITETIEREN)”, as well as the first “National Agricultural-Chemical Service Center (2B{L T &
{EARTSH L))" in Shandong Province. It is also a recognised provincial “Enterprise Technology Development
Center ({EFTFZH L) in Shandong Province, and holds several proprietary technologies, especially
the well-known brands “£if5 X (Yanyangtian)” and “5 5 4L (Dongfanghong)”, both are popular brand among
the consumers, with strong market reputation and brand influence. In November 2016, Shandong Hongri's
brand “#B5X (Yanyangtian)” and the Group’s fertiliser brand “Z4M[i0] (Le He He)” were both selected as
“2016 Top 50 Fertiliser Brands Trusted By Farmers” (2016 ER{ZHEAEHME A 1587), the extended
values from the brand effect forms a solid basis for future development of the Group’s fertiliser business. The
acquisition of Shandong Hongri has significant meaning for the rapid promotion of the Group’s status within
China’s fertiliser industry, and a strong driver of the continuous and accelerated development of the Group.
Upon completion of the acquisition, the fertiliser business of the Group will cover the Jiangsu, Shandong and
Jiangxi production bases, representing our presence in the Northern, Central and Southern China markets,
and will generate synergy in terms of technologies, products, markets and management and further enhance
the core competitive advantages of the Group.

For the magnesium product business, the Group strived to expand the magnesium production capacity during
the Year. The phase two of the expansion project of the Group’s Baishan Base was basically completed
during the fourth quarter of 2016, with an additional production capacity of 50,000 tonnes. Meanwhile,
the Group acquired a magnesium products manufacturer in Xinjiang through its subsidiary Group Sense
(International) Limited (stock code: 601) (“GSIL”) by the end of 2015, which currently has a production
capacity of 15,000 tonnes, and the approved scale of constructed capacity reaches 100,000 tonnes. Upon
completion of the construction works, the total magnesium production capacity of the Group (including GSIL)
will reach 175,000 tonnes, reinforcing the Group’s status as leading magnesium manufacturers around the
world.

Fertiliser Business

Development of the Group’s fertiliser business aligns with and benefits from the national agricultural policies
direction. Generally speaking, the agricultural and rural economic development is on a steady rise in 2016.
During the first year of the 13th Five Year Plan, the PRC government announced several vital plans in
regard to the mid-to-long-term development of the agricultural industry, including the “National Agricultural
Modernization Plan (2016-2020) (2B RZHRA(LRE] (2016-2020 4F))”, the “Outline of the Development
Plan of the Food Industry under the ‘13th Five Year Plan’ (RETE" +=R"%EHEME) “, and the
“National Rural Economic Development Plan under the ‘13th Five Year Plan’ (EEENKLERE"+=1"H&
Z1)”. Among which, the “National Agricultural Modernization Plan (2016-2020)¢ 2 B Z %8 R LR 2| (2016-
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20204 )) provides the strategic direction and a clear path for implementation of agricultural modernization
for the next five years, which conserves the legacy of the “12th Five Year Plan” on agricultural modernization
development planning, and at the same time highlighted the new layout and new requirements under the
“13th Five Year Plan”, and accelerated the supply-side structural reformation within the agricultural industry
while underscoring the structural adjustment and improvement of the overall agricultural industry. Under the
“13th Five Year Plan”, the government highlighted the key principles of eco-friendly development, quality and
efficiency improvement, strengthen technological support, focus on guaranteed supply and income as well as
ecology preservation, so as to continuously enhance the quality and efficiency of the agricultural development
as well as its competitiveness. The intensive supply-side agricultural structure reformation speeds up the
construction in rural areas towards universal moderate prosperity, and boosts a fast-but-steady increase in
farmers’ income, while the compound fertiliser and ecological fertiliser as the invaluable elements of eco-
friendly farming are expected to develop rapidly. According to the “Guidance on Prompting the Restructuring
and Development of Fertiliser Industry (##E/LIEITEE R ZERAIEEE R)” issued by Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology (MIIT), China will strive to increase the utilisation of the new type of fertiliser from
less than 10% at present to 30% by 2020. Against the backdrop of the continuous agricultural modernization
and encouragement of eco-friendly agriculture supported by the government, the new environment-friendly
ecological fertiliser shall become the dominant development trend of the sector.

Green ecological agricultural fertilisers have been the basis of the fertiliser business of the Group, its eco-
friendly character is useful in ecological preservation and soil improvement, and suitable for agricultural
activities where health and safety is of highest concern, including organic farming, green farming and
pollution-free farming. The Group has established the industrialised agricultural materials service layout,
with the organic fertilisers and ecological compound fertilisers as principal products, which integrates with
research and development, manufacturing, sales and marketing applications. The functionalities of the
products are beneficial to the soil and would improve produce quality. Meanwhile, the Group has researched
and developed the Si-Mg product line, which helps solve the problem of lack of Si-Mg content in the soil
commonly found in China, which contributes to the sustainable agricultural development. Leveraging on the
supportive industry policies of the PRC government, the Group endeavours to achieve eco-friendly, green and
ecological business as its main development objectives, and strives to propel to the forefront position in the
industry.

Magnesium Product Business

The Group’s magnesium product business development also benefites from the national industry development
direction. During the Year, the PRC government promulgated a number of favourable plans and policies
in promoting magnesium product development and application, including the “Development Plan of the
Nonferrous Metal Industry (2016-2020) (B &% 8 T RHE| (2016-2020 £))” issued by the MIIT, i.e. the
13th Five Year Plan of the Nonferrous Metal Industry development (known as the “Nonferrous Metal 13th
Five Year Plan”) on 18 October 2016. Under the Nonferrous Metal 13th Five Year Plan, magnesium is listed
as one of the top five metals with the highest annual average growth rate of 7.1% based on the 2020 key
nonferrous metal consumption and production forecast. According to the Nonferrous Metal 13th Five Year
Plan, it is expected to reach a production volume of magnesium of 1,300,000 tonnes and a consumption
volume of 750,000 tonnes after considering the net export and the rest remained for domestic consumption,
i.e. apparent consumption volume by 2020, building up momentum for the development of magnesium
product business. Another objective under the plan is to expand the key application areas of lightweight alloy
material, including aerospace and astronautic ultra-strong magnesium alloy of larger sizes and complicated
components; ultra-strong heat-tolerant magnesium alloy of large-scaled extruded/forged moulds; 3C products
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magnesium alloy precision die-casting components; large-volume low-cost highly-mouldable magnesium
alloy plates and strips; as well as automotive lightweight structural magnesium alloy precision die-casting
components. It is expected that magnesium alloy consumption within the transportation industry will increase
to 150,000 tonnes by 2020. During the year, the world’s first magnesium alloy lightweight electric coach
was launched in Shandong; magnesium alloy has also contributed to the successful initial rocket launch of
Long March 7. These successful applications indicate the magnesium alloy as a new material enjoys a broad
market prospects, and would undoubtedly encourage the rapid growth of China’s magnesium industry.

The Group seizes the opportunities from the industry’s development, and steps up the efforts in expanding
the production capacity of our magnesium product business, while at the same time actively develops the
magnesium economic cycle business and other related magnesium alloy businesses, and endeavour in
developing our magnesium product business to propel to the forefront position within the global magnesium
industry.

Prospect

Looking back in 2016, the global economy has encountered a number of uncertainties, and a moderate
recovery within the global economy is expected in 2017. 2017 is an important year for the implementation
of the 13th Five Year Plan in China, and a year of deepening the supply-side structural reformation. In
2016, the Central Economic Working Conference (F AL T {E@ %) asserted the general basis of “steady
advancement” for China’s economic development in 2017. The Forecast Center under the China’s Academy
of Science announced the “2017 China’s GDP Growth Rate Forecast (2017 F/FE GDP & KREFEA)”
recently, projecting a steady growth in China’s economy in 2017.

Looking forward, with the strong government support towards the agricultural modernization and
stimulation of eco-friendly agricultural reformation, the Group shall thoroughly leverage on our advantages
in technologies, resources and branding, in order to continue to increase investments in scientific research,
to steadily implement the capacity expansion plan, and to proactively open up new markets based on our
product differentiation sales strategies, so as to strive for high-speed development in both of our businesses,
placing the Group among the leading enterprises within the domestic industry as one of the enterprises
equipped with vertical integration abilities, and to arise as the top manufacturer in terms of production scale
of both the ecological fertiliser and magnesium alloy new materials.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my sincere gratitude towards our management
team and staff members for their contributions to the Group during the year. Meanwhile, | would like to take
this opportunity to thank our shareholders, business partners and all our customers for their unremitting
support for the Group. In the coming year, we will exert our best efforts to create abundant returns for
shareholders.

Chi Wen Fu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2016, both the global economy and the financial market have experienced severe volatility, while the global
economic development slowed down due to a succession of Black Swan events. The accelerated increase in
US Federal Funds Rate casted direct impact on the investors’ confidence, which became the principal trigger
of the global financial market fluctuation; furthermore, the unexpected Brexit has a far-reaching impact over
the worldwide political and economic pattern, and at the same time adversely affected the financial market.
While debt risks all over the world is on the rise, the problem is the most acute for the emerging markets.
Under the gloomy global economy, China recorded a merely 6.7% GDP growth rate in 2016, showing signs
of an economic slowdown once again. Against such unfavorable market backdrop, the Group was able to
proactively pursue a steady advancement relentlessly and to going against the current, with our two core
businesses achieving a stable growth during the year in midst of a troubled market.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded an overall increase in revenue of 2.9% to
HK$2,589,221,000 (2015: HK$2,515,602,000), with gross profit margin recorded at 29.3% (2015: 31.2%).
Revenue from the fertiliser business was HK$1,399,088,000 (2015: HK$1,523,281,000), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 8.2%, and accounted for 54.0% of the total revenue of the Group (2015: 60.6%);
revenue from the magnesium product business was HK$910,984,000 (2015: HK$760,502,000), representing
a year-on-year increase of 19.8%, and accounted for 35.2% of the total revenue of the Group (2015: 30.2%).

Fertiliser Business

The Group has two major fertiliser products, namely compound fertilisers and organic fertilisers. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the fertiliser business contributed approximately HK$1,399,088,000 to the
Group’s revenue (2015: approximately HK$1,523,281,000), representing a year-on-year increase in sales
volume of 4.6% to 692,197 tonnes (2015: 661,748 tonnes), with an average gross profit margin of 28.4%
(2015: 27.9%). Sales revenue recorded a year-on-year decrease due to the fall of global commodity prices
and the depreciation of RMB during the Year. Nevertheless, the business still recorded a year-on-year
increase in sales volume and a steady increase in gross profit margin.

During the Year, the PRC government continued to promote the use of environmental-friendly highly-effective
new fertilisers, resulting in a satisfactory sales record of several well-known brands of the Group, including
“Lu Di”, “Le He He”, “Zhan Lan” and “Feng Shou”. In addition to benefiting from the national policies, the
construction of several major projects of the Group has also picked up the pace. During the Year, the annual
production capacity of Jiangsu production base reached 850,000 tonnes, and the construction of phase one
production line in Jiangxi Province with an annual production capacity of 1,400,000 tonnes, has moved ahead
considerably as compared to the scheduled commencement in 2018. The Group estimates that the phase one
production line may commence production in the third quarter of 2017, with a fertiliser production capacity of
550,000 tonnes, including the series products of 400,000 tonnes of high tower fertiliser and 150,000 tonnes
of compound fertiliser, while the remaining production capacity of 850,000 tonnes is expected to materialise
in 2019. Ruichang City is an important industrial town in Jiangxi Province; adjacent to the three major coastal
economic circles, namely the Yangtze River Delta, the Pearl River Delta and the Southeastern Fujian Area, it
lays on the southern shore of the Yangtze River, and is connected through the two major railway network,
namely the Beijing-Kowloon Railway and the Beijing-Guangzhou Railway, which provide convenient water and
land transportation and thus lower the transportation costs; the advanced technology of the new production
line with the specific facilitated container terminal also lowers the logistics and production costs effectively.
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In order to enhance the presence and market penetration rate of the ecological compound fertiliser business
of the Group in the Northern, Central and Southern China production bases, as well as to expand the
operation scale of the Group and to speed up the growth of our fertiliser business, the Group entered into
an acquisition agreement to acquire 50.5% equity interest in Shandong Hongri which is well-established with
over 50 years of operating history. Shandong Hongri is the inventor of sulphur-based compound fertiliser,
and is known as the “father of sulphur-based compound fertiliser” of China. It is the first chemical enterprise
in China to be named as the “Top Ten Outstanding After-sale Service Provider of National Famous Brands
(ZEIREEREERFITETESNMN)”, as well as the first “National Agricultural-Chemical Service Center
(2Bt T2/LAR# L) in Shandong Province. It is also a recognised provincial “Enterprise Development
Center ({2 ZFE A 0))” in Shandong Province, and holds several proprietary technologies, especially the well-
known brands “%tf5X (Yanyangtian)” and “# A 4L (Dongfanghong)” which enjoy strong market reputation
and brand influence, and are popular among the consumers. During the Year, Shandong Hongri carried
out full inspection, and successfully resumed normal production. It is expected to reach a sales volume of
approximately 700,000 tonnes of compound fertiliser products in 2017.

The conditions precedent to the acquisition of Shandong Hongri have been satisfied and the resolution was
passed to the Board for consideration and approval on 29 March 2017. The transaction will be completed
and Shandong Hongri will be merged into the Group with effect from 1 April 2017 according to the terms of
the acquisition agreement.

The Group believes that, with the gradual release of capacity at our two production bases in Jiangsu and
Jiangxi Province, along with the official incorporation of Shandong Hongri into the Group, the fertiliser
production capacity of the Group shall increase by at least three-fold compared to the current scale of
production, thus successfully promote the soaring development of the Group’s fertiliser business.

Magnesium Product Business

The magnesium products of the Group included basic magnesium products and rare earth magnesium alloys.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the magnesium product business contributed HK$910,984,000 (2015:
HK$760,502,000) to the revenue of the Group. During the Year, sales volume recorded 36,201 tonnes (2015:
24,031 tonnes), while the overall sales volume of magnesium product has recorded a significantly increase
of 50.6% year-on-year. Furthermore, the Xinjiang base has commenced production during the Year, as the
Xinjiang base mainly produce basic magnesium products, the gross profit margin of magnesium business has
been diluted to 29.0% (2015: 34.2%) due to the significant year-on-year increase of 98.1% in sales volume of
this kind of products. In the circumstances where the selling prices remain stable, a 19.8% growth of sales
revenue in magnesium product business is recorded.

Magnesium alloy is considered to be the green lighweight alloy structured material with the greatest potential
in terms of development, and is significant to green products development and design. Magnesium is mainly
applied in the transportation industry such as automotive and 3C electronic products. Given the rapid growth
of downstream demand, the status of magnesium alloy industry will rise significantly within the PRC economy.
With her rich reserve of magnesium resource, China ranks first in the world in terms of production volume
and export volume for magnesium, which foretold the massive growth potential of the magnesium business.
The Group has invested heavily in the research and development of magnesium alloy projects since 2008,
and has become the leading enterprise within the industry. The Group currently holds a rich and high-quality
reserve of dolomite mineral resource in Baishan City, Jilin Province, and has completed the construction of a
highly developed basic magnesium and magnesium alloy production base with an annual production capacity
of 25,000 tonnes in 2016, the phase two expansion project with an additional capacity of 50,000 tonnes is
basically completed, with its newly added production lines to gradually commence trial operation.
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Besides, Group Sense (International) Limited (“GSIL”), a subsidiary of the Group, has an established
magnesium and semi-coke production lines in Xinjiang with an annual production capacity of 15,000 tonnes
and 600,000 tonnes respectively. During the Year, the production line of magnesium alloys has successfully
commenced production after the renovation and adjustments. The production base in Xinjiang has the official
right to produce 100,000 tonnes magnesium alloys as approved by the government. Upon completion of
the expansion project, along with its existing production capacity, the aggregate production capacity of
magnesium alloys of the Group is expected to reach 175,000 tonnes in the future, coupled with a number of
patents in high performance magnesium alloy manufacturing methods and technologies held by the Group,
we have achieved mutual integration of the independent supply of upstream raw material resources and
downstream production capacity, which provides good conditions and driving forces for the development
of magnesium product business and would further enhance the market status of the Group within the
magnesium industry, as well as accelerate the growth of the overall performance of the Group’s magnesium
business.

Other Businesses

Other businesses of the Group include metallurgical flux and electronic products. The Group owns quality
serpentine reserves which is not only a key raw material to produce Si-Mg fertilisers, but is also an
indispensable source of auxiliary material for iron and steel smelting. The Group sells a manageable amount
of serpentine to major domestic steel enterprises for continuous and stable income, with prerequisite of an
adequate and steady supply of raw material for the production of Si-Mg fertilisers.

Prospect

Looking forward in 2017, fluctuation in the global economy from 2016 shall remain with even more
uncertainties ahead, imposing pressure on the operation of various industries. However, with rapid expansion
in respect of our two core businesses, the Group is expecting to enjoy benefits from the favorable national
policies that actively encourage agricultural modernization and application of new material. Among such
policies, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (MIIT) has issued the “Guidance on Prompting
the Restructuring and Development of Fertiliser Industry(## (L IETTHE A ZE R 158 F R)”, which mentioned
that utilisation of the new type of fertiliser in China will increase from less than 10% at present to 30% by
2020, creating a massive market space for the green and ecological new fertilisers of the Group. On the other
hand, the “Development Plan of the Nonferrous Metal Industry (2016-2020) (B4 B T¥EERE (2016-
20204 ))” encourages and supports the extensive application of nonferrous metals, including the magnesium
alloy materials. The Group will continue to enhance the operational efficiency of the magnesium business,
and further facilitate the integration of the Group’s magnesium business and continuously optimise resources
allocation, so as to enhance the core competitiveness of the Group.

The Group believes that with the gradual implementation of the national industrial policies, along with better
understanding of the market on new fertilisers and new magnesium alloy materials, demands of our products
will continue to grow and drives the business development of the Group. To sufficiently expand the market
share, the Group will leverage on our advance proprietary technologies and market advantages of the brands
to expand the productivity and strategise the market layout, and to implement our marketing strategy of
product differentiation, to research and development more high-function high value-added products to meet
the market demand, so as to further solidify the leading status of our products within the high-end market.

Looking forward, the Group shall capture the ideal development opportunities to accelerate its market
penetration and release of production capacity, and continue to pursue the strategic objective of promoting
the two core businesses to the forefront of the industries in China, and to create abundant returns for our
shareholders.
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Key Operational Data

Unaudited key operational data for the year ended 31 December 2016, together with the comparative figures
for the corresponding period in 2015, is as follows. Main businesses listed below contributed over 88% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(a) Sales volume of major products:

2016 Increase
Tonnes %
Fertiliser business 692,197 661,748 4.6
Magnesium product business 36,201 24,031 50.6

(b) Average selling price of major products:
2016 2015 Decrease
HK$/Tonnes HK$/Tonnes %
Fertiliser business 2,021 2,301 (12.2)
Magnesium product business 24,388 30,806 (20.8)

(c) Gross profit margin:

Increase/
2016 (Decrease)
Percentage
% point
Fertiliser business 28.4 27.9 0.5
Magnesium product business 29.0 34.2 5.2)
The Group’s gross profit margin 29.3 31.2 (1.9)

Operating Income and Gross Profit

During the Year, the Company recorded a turnover of HK$2,589,221,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of 2.9%.

Sales volume of our fertilisers increased by 4.6% during the year, while average prices decreased by 12.2%,
mainly attributable to the depreciation of RMB against HKD of approximately 6% during the Year. Prices
in RMB of our organic fertilisers and Si-Mg compound fertilisers remained fairly constant, however, sales
prices of compound fertilisers is highly sensitive to market fluctuation and suffered a drop of around 13.5%.
However, through effective cost control, gross profit for fertiliser business still recorded a slight increase of
0.5% to 28.4%.
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For the magnesium business, sales volume increased by approximately 50.6% during the Year, which is
mainly contributed by GSIL's newly acquired magnesium business during last year. Besides, the Group
also expands our business to magnesium trading with export to Europe and USA markets, representing a
milestone of the magnesium business. Since the sales volume of our basic magnesium products increased
by approximately 98.1% year-on-year, the overall gross profit of our magnesium business has been diluted to
29.0%.

Other Income

During the Year, GSIL has completed the negotiation of adjustment to the purchase consideration with
the sellers for its acquisition of a magnesium project last year, thereby recognising an increase in bargain
purchase of HK$21,564,000, and last year’s figures has been adjusted according to the relevant accounting
standards while the results of 2015 was restated.

The Group’s other income mainly comprised of interest income and sales of scraps, being HK$23,970,000
and HK$14,056,000 (2015: HK$12,094,000 and HK$11,679,000) respectively.

Administrative Expense

Administrative expenses of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately HK$159,379,000, representing
an increase of 14.1% year-on-year. The increase mainly arises from certain operating expenses of the idle
capacity of GSIL’'s new magnesium production base of HK$25,066,000 for upgrade of production facilities
and workflow since it resumed production in first quarter of 2016. The technology upgrade and production
optimisation was completed around November 2016, the production capacity of Xinjiang production base is
then released and production volume has reached 70% of the existing capacity.

Interest Expenses

The Group interest expenses amounted to approximately HK$117,564,000, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately HK$30,174,000 or 34.5%. The increase is mainly attributable to the issue of SGD
listed bonds in June and August 2015, the year-on-year comparison only includes half-year interest. The
earnings-to-interest ratio of the Group is around 5 times (2015: 6 times). It is expected that upon the gradual
completion of construction of our Baishan magnesium plant Phase Il and Jiangxi Tianrui fertiliers plant and
commence production in 2017, the ratio will be improved.

Margin

Profit of the year amounted to HK$313,052,000, representing a year-on-year decrease of 13.8%. Profit for
the Year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$302,334,000, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 3.9%. If excluding the effect from gain on bargain purchase in relation to the acquisition
consideration made by GSIL during the prior year, profit of the year will only drop by approximately 6.4%,
while profit attributable to owners of the Company will indeed slightly increase by approximately 0.9% year-
on-year.

Final Dividend

As the Group is in the process of production capacity expansion, including the fertiliser project with the
newly established production capacity of 1,400,000 tonnes in Jiangxi and the acquisition of the renowned
compound fertiliser corporation Shandong Hongri, whose sales volume is expected to reach 700,000
tonnes in 2017, the annual capacity of the Group is expected to be about 3 times the existing in the
future. Therefore, the Group treasures the investment opportunity with priority, and taking into account the
capital expenditure and operating cash flow required for the above project expansion, the Board does not
recommend the payment of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Liquidity, Liabilities and Financial Resources

The Group’s liquidity in 2016 was mainly derived from cash generated from business operations and financing
activities during the year. As at 31 December 2016, total amount of bank and cash balances of the Group
was approximately HK$932,785,000 (2015: HK$1,452,515,000).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total borrowings increased by approximately 10.5% as compared
to 2015, while net current assets decreased by approximately 15.3% as compared to 2015. The Group’s
gearing ratio (calculated by total borrowings over total assets) was approximately 29.4% in 2016 (2015:
25.7%).

The Group’s existing cash resources together with the steady cash flows generated from business activities
are sufficient to meet its business needs.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledge of its assets, details of which are disclosed in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2016, other than those disclosed in Note 41(a) to the financial statements, the Group did
not have any material capital commitments.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, other than those disclosed in Note 47 to the financial statements, the Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2016, the issued share capital of the Company were HK$91,959,537, divided into
4,597,976,843 shares of HK$0.02 each.
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Significant Transactions

(a)

On 26 April 2016 (after trading hours), the Company, as issuer, Wan Tai Investments Limited, an
indirectly and wholly-owned subsidiary of CCB International (Holdings) Limited, as investor, and Mr. Chi,
as obligor, entered into a subscription agreement for the issuance of a fixed rate exchangeable bonds in
the principal amount of HK$232,000,000. Details of which, please refer to the relevant announcement on
the HKEX and the company’s website. The relevant exchangeable bonds were issued on 4 May 2016.

On 3 August 2016 (after trading hours), Long Xiang Enterprises Limited (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as the Purchaser), entered into an acquisition agreement with Prosperous
Rich Holdings Limited (a company indirectly held by the Company’s former executive director, Mr.
Yang Yuchuan, as the Vendor) and Acronagrotrans Ltd (as the Target Company, which directly holds
50.5% interests in Shandong Hongri), pursuant to which, the Purchaser conditionally agreed to buy,
and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in the Target Company, at the cash
consideration of US$1 (equivalent to approximately HK$7.76), which is payable in accordance with the
terms and conditions thereto at Completion. Details of which, please refer to the relevant announcement
and circular on the HKEX and the company’s website made on 4 August 2016 and 27 September 2016
respectively.

Pursuant to the agreement of acquisition of 50.5% equity interest in Shandong Hongri, the Group agreed
to procure financing from banks and financial institutions and/or shall provide any forms of guarantee
or securities (upon request by such banks and financial institutions) in aggregate loan amount not
exceeding RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$292,500,000) to Shandong Hongri. Details
are disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 27 September 2016.

The conditions precedent to the acquisition of Shandong Hongri have been fulfilled. Upon review and
approval by the Board on 29 March 2017, the acquisition to be completed according to the terms and
conditions of the acquisition agreement on 1 April 2017 and Shandong Hongri to be consolidated into
the Group.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The followings are the
key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to our Group or which may not be material now but could turn out
to be material in the future.

Market risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to meet business objectives arising
from the movement in market demand, product prices, foreign exchange rates, and interest rates. The
management of our Group keeps continually monitoring these exposures closely to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner against such risks.

Exchange rate risk

The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from primarily with respect to Renminbi, HK$, Singapore dollars, US$ and
Australian dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group does not presently hedge the foreign exchange
risks. The Group periodically reviews liquid assets and liabilities held in currencies other than HK$ to evaluate
its foreign exchange risk exposure and consider the usage of hedging instruments when necessary.

Interest rate risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic
basis and considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety of
means.

Credit risk

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk exposure of our customers. The Group strictly followed
the “client account management procedures” established in 2004. The procedures required and ensured
that all clients were regularly assessed and be kept track of their transaction records and credit history. The
Group specified and assigned to each customer, as according to their operation and credit status, a series
of credit measures such as credit ratio, credit period, credit rating, credit terms and guarantee. The client
account management procedures were effective to control the credit risk of the Group.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its obligations when they fall due because
of an inability to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our Group monitors
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the
Group’s operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with functional
departments of the Group and its subsidiaries. Key functions of the Group is to guide their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. Our management will assess key operational
exposures and effect raised in business development regularly, implement relevant measures and improve the
internal control so that risk can be responsed and mitigated on a timely and effective manner.

Investment risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension of its return period relative to the expected
return or occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable to changes of external factors. The
Group is well aware of importance of exploring various business opportunities and territories on a continual
basis, and also implement as the top agenda of the year. Key concern of projects investment framework will
be balancing risk and return across different investments, and thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the
investment decision process. Proper investment assessment and due diligence procedures have been set
up and detailed analysis will be made before approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of the
investments of our Group would be submitted to the Board.

Manpower and retention risk

Manpower risk means huge demand for talents because of the Group’s rapid business development while at
the same time facing severe competition over specialists from the industry and turnover of manpower. Our
Group may face the risk of not being able to recruit and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence to cope with the expansion of business which would meet the
business objectives of our Group. Our Group will conduct a thorough analysis over its remuneration system,
as well as incentive mechanism and optimise the compensation structure so as to ensure remuneration
packages can align reasonably with market standard and maintain its competitiveness. Meanwhile, recruitment
channels are broadened and the talent pool of senior management are strengthened, so as to further enhance
the promotion opportunities and career path of employees. Systematic staff training are also being further
enhanced to increase the overall effectiveness of training and the dissemination of good corporate cultures.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Environmental policies and performance mainly means increasing attention of PRC government paid to
environmental rules and policies and more strict regulatory requirements. As subsidiaries and newly acquired
enterprises commenced into operation for a long while and lag behind certain environmental and duty
requirements promulgated by PRC government. The Group monitors impact on business development closely
raised from movements of environmental policy and external factors. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner and performing social responsibilities, the Group is committed to improving and maintaining the
long term sustainability of the communities in which it operates. The Group endeavours to comply with laws
and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures have been adopted in daily
operation of the Group. Such initiatives include recycling of resources, energy saving measures and water
saving practices.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations accordingly shall comply with relevant
laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong, and there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations, which results significant loss and negative impacts by the Group.

Relationship with Employees and Key Stakeholders

The number of employees of the Group was approximately 2,610 (2015: 2,430) as at 31 December 2016.
The remuneration of employees was determined by the Group with reference to their performance, work
experience and current market conditions. Employee benefits include medical insurance, defined provident
fund scheme, discretionary bonus and employee share option scheme. There has been no labour dispute or
significant change in the number of employees that affect the normal operations of the Group. The Directors
believe that the Group maintains admirable relations with its employees.

Our Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with business partners, shareholders,
investors and banks to achieve its long-term goals. To keep up with our key stakeholders closely, the Group
has formulated corresponding scheme about investor relationship, and also holds tailored activities from time
to time, such as annual/extraordinary general meetings, on-site visits, seminars and road-shows. Accordingly,
our senior management have kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
latest update about development of the Group with them when appropriate. During the Year, there was no
material dispute between our Group and its business partners or banks.

Project Overview

Dolomite Mine

The Group’s dolomite mine is situated in Baishan City, Jilin Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by open-
pit method, and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple infrastructure
works for open-pit mining are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling or structural
works are involved. The dolomite mined is raw material for producing magnesium products of the Group. The
transportation cost for raw material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the mine to the production
base of the Group.

The dolomite mine of the Group was reported under the Chinese resource/reserve categories. As at 31
December 2016, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were determined based on the yearly
reduction of quantity mined to calculate the remaining resource and reserve volumes. There is no material
change in the assumptions of estimation by the Group as compared with those previously disclosed. The
resource and reserve volumes was reviewed by the Group’s internal geological experts. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group completed a dolomite output of 448,449 tonnes (2015: 380,227 tonnes). As
compared with the state as at 31 December 2015, there was no material change in the resource estimate
and ore reserve of the dolomite mine.
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During 2016, the expenditures incurred in mining activities were mainly for direct wages, materials, energy,
transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such expenditures have been included in cost of sales and
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for 2016.

The expenditure incurred in mining activities of dolomite for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
approximately HK$17,486,000 while the expenditure incurred in exploration and development activities was
HKS$ Nil.

Serpentine Mine

The Group’s serpentine mine is situated in Donghai County, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The mine is operated
by open-pit method, and therefore no additional exploration works are involved or required. Only simple
infrastructure works for open-pit mining are involved in the development activities, and no underground drilling
or structural works are involved. The serpentine mined is sold directly as metallurgical flux for iron and steel
smelting and is raw material for producing silicon magnesium fertilisers of the Group. The transportation cost
for raw material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the mine to the production base of the Group.

The resource/reserve of the Serpentine Mine was reported under the JORC system when it was acquired in
2010. As at 31 December 2016, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were determined based on
the volume at the time of acquisition with the yearly reduction of quantity mined to calculate the remaining
resource and reserve volumes. There is no material change in the assumptions of estimation by the Group as
compared with those previously disclosed. The resource and reserve volumes was reviewed by the Group’s
internal geological experts. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group completed a serpentine output
of 488,644 tonnes (2015: 574,303 tonnes). As compared with the state as at 31 December 2015, there was
no material change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the serpentine mine.

The expenditures incurred for 2016 in development activities were mainly for construction of road, drainage
system, greening and installation of main equipment. Such expenditures have been capitalised and included
in the consolidated statement of financial position for 2016. The expenditures incurred in mining activities
were mainly for direct wages, materials, energy, transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such
expenditures have been included in cost of sales and charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for 2016.

The expenditures incurred in development and mining activities of serpentine for the year ended 31 December
2016 were approximately HK$7,282,000 and HK$27,970,000 respectively while the expenditures incurred in
exploration were HK$ Nil.
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Executive Directors

CHI Wen Fu, aged 54, Chairman of the Group who is responsible for overall strategic planning and key
operating decisions. Mr. Chi started his law firm in Fuzhou in 1995, in which he was the Managing Partner.
Prior to that, Mr. Chi joined Fuzhou Justice Bureau Commerce Law Office after qualifying as a lawyer in the
PRC in 1989. In early 1998, Mr. Chi originated an initial research on organic agricultural production and
funded a R&D project on microbial compound fertilisers. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Chemical Analysis and Law.
Mr. Chi established the Group in 2000.

SHUM Sai Chit, aged 59, Chief Executive Officer of the Group who is responsible for business operations.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director of Go Modern Limited which was principally
engaged in manufacturing of textile products and trading activities. In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fujian Textiles
Import and Export Corporation as a Manager to oversee importing and exporting of textile products. Mr.
Shum is a graduate of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics. Mr. Shum has joined the Group since
January 2002. Mr. Shum is currently an executive director of Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code:
601).

CHI Bi Fen, aged 58, Vice-President of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy
General Manager of an electronics equipment company over 17 years. She has an extensive experience in
accounting, taxation and finance in the PRC for more than 15 years. She is a graduate of Accounting and
Finance. Ms. Chi has joined the Group since March 2000. Ms. Chi is currently an executive director of Group
Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601).

Non-Executive Director

GUO Mengyong, aged 58, is a Deputy General Manager of Fujian Changsheng Wireless Technology
Development Company Limited. He is responsible for electronic engineering technical management. Fujian
Changsheng Wireless Technology Development Company Limited is principally engaged in production of
electronic products and communication devices. Mr. Guo joined Fuzhou Capacitors Factory as a Technician
in 1976. From 1993 onwards, Mr. Guo worked at Fuzhou Meters Group Company as an Engineer and later
promoted to the Deputy Factory Manager in 1996, in charging of technical quality control. In 2000, Mr.
Guo joined Fujian Wireless Group Company as Deputy General Manager and was responsible for quality
management. He is a graduate of Industrial Enterprise Management. Mr. Guo has joined the Group since
February 2011.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

KWONG Ping Man, aged 52, Director of O'Park Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate
advisory services. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwong served as the Chief Financial Officer of various
companies for almost 7 years. Mr. Kwong has over 15 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration. He obtained a Master's Degree in Professional Accounting from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of CPA Australia, fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. Mr. Kwong is currently
an Independent Non-Executive Director of Tang Palace (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1181), Elegance
Optical International Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 907), Group Sense (International) Limited (stock code: 601)
and Royal Deluxe Holdings Limited (stock code: 3789).

SHENG Hong, aged 54, Director of Hadrian Manufacturing (Asia) Limited and Director of Operations
and General Manager of Hadrian (Shanghai) Trading Limited. The Hadrian Group is principally engaged
in production and sales of metal partitions and lockers. Mr. Sheng has over 20 years of experience in
management of corporation and investment. He was employed by China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited from 1986 to 1996. Mr. Sheng holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Engineering Mechanics from Tongji
University, Shanghai.

Lau Chi Kit, aged 72, an executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997).
He retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) in December 2000
after more than 35 years of service. Among the major positions in HSBC, he was the assistant general
manager and head of Personal Banking Hong Kong and assistant general manager and head of Strategic
Implementation, Asia- Pacific Region. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (“Institute”). He
was the chairman of the Institute’s Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December 2000). He is
currently the honorary advisor of the Institute’s Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, including the
Advisory Council on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001), the Advisory Committee
on Human Resources Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May 2001), the
Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October
2006), the Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to
December 2004) and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee (from February 1990 to March
2006). He also served as chairman of the Business Environment Council Limited (from September 1998 to
December 2001). Currently, he is an executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited (stock code:
997) and also an independent non-executive director of Highlight China loT International Limited (stock code:
1682), Royale Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198), Leoch International Technology Limited (stock
code: 842) and Janco Holdings Limited (stock code: 8035).

Company Secretary

LUK Sai Wai, Simon, aged 53, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Luk is
responsible for financial, management accounting and secretarial affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Luk was appointed as financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He has
over 20 years of experience in finance and management. Mr. Luk holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business
Administration from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
University of Strathclyde. He is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of
Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong. Mr. Luk has joined the Group since May 2010.
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Panel of Senior Consultants

Panel of Senior Consultants (the “Panel”) of the Group has strong technical background and expertise in
magnesium alloy smelting and research and development in new materials. The appointment of the Panel is
to provide the Group with solid technical and resources measure for the development of Magnesium Product
Business. Members’ remunerations of the Panel are based on the nature and scope of consultancy services
provided. There is no fixed remuneration arrangement between the Group and the Panel.

ZHANG Hongjie, aged 63, Scientific Technology Consultant of the Group. He is a Researcher of
Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences and a tutor of PhD students. He
was honoured the Outstanding Young Scholar Award of National Outstanding Youth Fund and Hong Kong
Qiu Shi Fund. He was also awarded as the Expert with Outstanding Contributions in Jilin Province. Mr. Zhang
has been engaging in research and development for rare earth alloys and new materials. He is the Deputy
Chief Scientist of National Rare Earth Fundamental Research. He is also Officers of State Key Laboratory for
Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, and Rare Earth Luminescent Professional Committee of Rare Earth Society.
He holds a Master’s Degree in Science from Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy
of Sciences. He is undertaking a PhD at National Scientific Research Centre, University of Bordeaux, France.

MENG Jian, aged 60, Rare Earth Magnesium Alloy Consultant of the Group. He has been appointed as the
Professor and the Deputy Officer of State Key Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, Changchun
Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Science. He is the Deputy Officer of Professional
Committee of Solid Science and New Materials of Chinese Society of Rare Earth. He is also a director
of Chinese Society of Rare Earth and Nonferrous Metals Society of China. Mr. Meng is an expert of the
Association of China Rare Earth Industry and China Magnesium Association. Mr. Meng has been engaging
in research and development of rare earth magnesium alloys and new materials. He has contributed
substantially to the development and application of rare earth magnesium alloys in China. Mr. Meng majored
in semiconducting from Jilin University, and holds a Master’'s Degree from the chemistry department of
Chinese Academy of Science. He holds a degree of doctor of Engineering from Toyohashi University of
Technology, Japan. Mr. Meng is currently an non-executive director of Group Sense (International) Limited
(stock code: 601).
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Senior Management

NGAN Sau Fung Joseph aged 59, Managing Director of the Group. Mr. Ngan is responsible for corporate
finance and investor relations management, and also participates in risk management and strategic planning
of the Group. Mr. Ngan has over 30 years of experience in the financial industry, which includes working at
The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, the Allied Banking Corporation, and DBS Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited, in the foreign exchange and treasury businesses, corporate and retail banking, payment
and cash management, as well as credit and risk management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ngan was the
Managing Director of DBS Bank (Hong Kong), and was in charge of its enterprise banking business. Mr. Ngan
has joined the Group since March 2017.

HU Jie, aged 47, is responsible for the agricultural fertiliser business of the Group. Mr. Hu studied in
mechatronics, and has over 20 years of experience in the fertiliser and mechatronics industries. He was the
Head of mechatronics factory of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited of the Group, and the
Head of fertiliser factory of Century Sunshine Jiangsu Co., Ltd. (tt42F5Y¢ /T A 7)), as well as the General
Manager of the production technology department, the Head of the main chemical factory and the General
Manager of the purchasing and branding department. Mr. Hu has joined the Group since 2007.

ZHOU Jianhui, aged 44, is responsible for the safety environment management of the Group. Mr. Zhou
majored in agriculture with over 20 years of experience in mining and agricultural fertilisers industries. Prior
to joining the Group, he was the Technician at Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, the Deputy
Manager of Jiangsu Le He He Fertiliser Company Limited, and the Head of Fertiliser factory of Jiangsu
Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Zhou has joined the Group since 2007.

WANG Yongxiang, aged 48, Senior Engineer of the Group. Mr. Wang majored in planning and surveying of
mining industry with over 20 years of experience in planning and mining. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the Production Technician and Engineer at Donghai serpentine mine in Jiangsu Province, and the Head of
Sulfuric Acid factory of Jiangsu Longteng Petrochemical Company Limited. Mr. Wang has joined the Group
since 2007.

ZHANG Ren Sheng, aged 47, Director of Corporation Management of the Group who is responsible for
corporate management and planning. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in corporate management
and business planning. He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from School of Business of
Wuhan University. Mr. Zhang has joined the Group since July 2008.

CHI Jing Chao, aged 34, Chief Corporate Affairs Officer of the Group who is responsible for the overall
corporate activities. Mr. Chi worked in various subsidiaries of the Group and has 10 years of experience
in corporate affairs. Mr. Chi is a graduate of Administrative Management from College of Adult Education,
Xiamen University. Mr. Chi has joined the Group since August 2004.

LEE Man Ching, aged 37, Assistant to Chairman of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 10 years of experience
in human resources and administrative management. Ms. Lee holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy
and a Master’s Degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries. Ms. Lee has joined the Group since August 2004.
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The Company is committed to achieve and maintain high
standards of corporate governance and business integrity.
The Board believes that good corporate governance will
not only improve management accountability and investors
confidence, but will lay a good foundation for the long-term
development of the Company.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year of 2016, the Company has complied
with the code provision as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report under Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), with the following deviations:

(@) Under code provision E.1.2, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr.
Chi Wen Fu, the chairman of the Board was unable
to attend the annual general meeting held on 19 May
2016 as he was obliged to be away for a business
trip. Mr. Shum Sai Chit, chief executive officer and
executive Director of the Company, attended the said
annual general meeting to respond to queries from
shareholders.

(o) Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-
executive Directors and other non-executive Directors
should also attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Guo Mengyong (being a non-executive Director)
and Mr. Sheng Hong (being an independent non-
executive Director) were unable to attend the general
meetings held on 19 May 2016 and 19 October 2016
while Mr. Kwong Ping Man (being an independent
non-executive Director) was unable to attend the
general meeting held on 19 May 2016 as he was
obliged to be away for business trip.
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The Board

The Group is governed by the Board which is responsible
for strategic leadership and overall supervision of the
Group. The Board exercises a number of authorities which
include:

- Formulating the Group’s overall strategies

- Monitoring and controlling operational and financial
performance

- Formulating strategies for risk management

- Reviewing effectiveness of internal control system

- Approving financial results and public announcements

- Approving annual operating budgets

- Approving major acquisitions or disposals and capital
projects

- Authorising major investments and material borrowings

- Setting dividend policy

- Approving appointment of Directors

- Setting the Group’s remuneration policies

The Board is also responsible for performing the functions
set out in code provision D.3.1. The Board will meet to
develop, review and monitor the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, to review and monitor
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors and to review the
compliance of the Company with the CG Code and the
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the year of 2016, in relation to the corporate
governance functions, the Board has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
regulatory and statutory requirements, and the disclosure in
the corporate governance report.

During 2016, the Chairman had met the non-executive
Director and the independent non-executive Directors
respectively and individually without the presence of other
executive Directors.
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Board Composition

The Board comprises 7 Directors in which 3 are
executive Directors; 1 is non-executive Director and 3
are independent non-executive Directors. The number of
independent non-executive Directors constitutes more than
one-third of the Board. The composition of the Board as at
the date of this report and their profiles are set out on page
35 and page 36 of the annual report respectively.

The Board delegates powers to executive Directors
for the day-to-day management of the Group and the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted
by the Board whereas executive Directors should provide
such explanations and information to the Board in a timely
manner to enable the Board to monitor the performance of
management.

Non-executive Directors from different backgrounds bring
in valuable expertise and experience to the Company and
serves important functions as well as provides strategic
advices to the management.

Independent non-executive Directors ensure that the
Board is accountable for the interest of all shareholders
and handles matters in an objective manner. The 3
independent non-executive Directors have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for efficient and effective
delivery of its functions. The Board has received from each
independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu and Ms. Chi Bi Fen have a family
relationship of brother and sister. Mr. Guo Mengyong is a
brother-in-law of Mr. Chi Wen Fu. Save as disclosed, there
is no other relationship among members of the Board.

Upon reviewing (i) the directorships and major commitments
of each Director; and (ii) the attendance rate of each
Director at the meetings of the Board and its committees,
the Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient
time in performing their responsibilities during 2016.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against Directors.
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Appointment and Re-election

Any potential new Directors, being individuals who
are suitably qualified and expected to make a positive
contribution to the performance of the Board, will be
identified by the existing Directors and the Nomination
Committee and submitted to the Board for approval.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting of the Company,
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
and every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every 3 years. Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr. Sheng Hong
and Mr. Lau Chi Kit shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, but being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Each of the non-executive Director and the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr.
Kwong Ping Man, Mr. Sheng Hong and Mr. Lau Chi Kit, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a fixed term of 2 years commencing from 1 March 2017, 1
March 2017, 1 March 2017 and 1 April 2016 respectively,
subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the articles of association of the Company
and save that either such Director or the Company may
terminate the appointment by giving at least 3 months’
prior written notice. Annual emoluments to independent
non-executive Directors and non-executive Director will be
reviewed according to their estimated time to be spent on
the Company’s matters and their working experience with
the Company.
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All existing executive Directors are entitled to a fixed salary
per annum respectively. In addition, each executive Director
is also entitled to a discretionary management bonus
calculated as a percentage of the audited consolidated
net profit of the Group attributable to the owners of the
Company (after tax and noncontrolling interests and
the payment of such management bonuses but before
extraordinary and exceptional items), which percentage
shall be determined by the Board provided that the
aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to all executive
Directors in respect of each financial year of the Company
shall not exceed 5% of such net profit. The remuneration of
each executive Director is subject to the annual review of
the Board with reference to his/her contribution in terms of
time, effort and his/her expertise.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors and
senior management during the year are disclosed in Note
13 to the financial statements.

All Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable
expenses incurred during the performance of their duties to
the Company and are eligible for share options under the
share option scheme of the Company.
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HITEE Executive Directors

X E Chi Wen Fu

ALE? Shum Sai Chit

HER Chi Bi Fen

B Yang Yuchuan
(BR2016%F (Resigned on 4 August 2016)
8 A4 RRMT)

FUTES Non-Executive Director

BRE Guo Mengyong

BUEHTEE  Independent Non-Executive

Directors

B Kwong Ping Man

Bt Sheng Hong

ElES Lau Chi Kit

Meetings

Board Processes

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and leads
the Group in an ethical, responsible and effective manner.
The Board meets on a regular basis and arranges ad-hoc
meetings for any specific matters that may arise.

The Board met 4 times in 2016. The attendance of
individual Directors at Board meetings, committee meetings
and general meetings is set out in the following table:

FitiE/ Bazes
Attended/held

B R S A A%
REZECES

FMZzeees P ETN
Remuneration
Gommittee

Meetings

Audit
Gommittee
Meetings

Nomination
Committee
Meetings

Board General

Meetings

44 - 11 - 0/2
44 - - 1/1 2/2
3/4 - - - 0/2
212 - - - 1/1
4/4 - - 0/2
4/4 5/5 11 1/1 112
4/4 5/5 1/1 1/1 0/2
4/4 5/5 - 1/1 212
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Agendas and the accompanying board papers are
circulated in full to all Directors at least 3 days before the
Board or committee meeting. Board decisions will then be
resolved either by vote at Board meetings or by written
resolutions. If a substantial shareholder or a Director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees taken by the company secretary of the
Company and, together with any supporting papers, are
available for inspection to all Directors. The minutes record
the matters discussed by the Board or its committees,
the decisions made and any concerns or dissenting views
raised by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interests in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board,
such Director is required to declare his/her interest and
abstain from voting. Such matter shall be considered at a
Board meeting by Directors who have no material interest in
the transaction or proposal.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous
Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director would receive
an induction package covering the Group’s business and
the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. The Group also regularly updates Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable legal and regulatory requirements regarding
subjects necessary for performing their duties. In addition,
the Company has been encouraging Directors to attend
seminars on the latest development of applicable laws,
rules and regulations so that they can continuously update
and further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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According to the records provided by the Directors, the
training received by each of the Directors during the
period from 1 January 2016 up to 31 December 2016 is
summarised as follows:

HESERR
=HE ol
Type of

continuous
professional
development
training mots

HITESE Executive Directors

M E Chi Wen Fu B

bt Shum Sai Chit A, B

UEZE2S Chi Bi Fen B

EBTES Non-Executive Director

R E Guo Mengyong B

BIUFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors

BR R X Kwong Ping Man A, B

B Sheng Hong B

258 4 Lau Chi Kit B
MsE - notes:

A HEEESEIRE

B: MERE TWEBHMAARXBGREFHEK
BfE - LPRAEREMEREERERTRRSE
77 E BB E R

A: Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the
Company’s business or directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the latest development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements etc.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing business strategies and management of
the daily operations of the Group to the senior management
who is required to report back to the Board. Functions
reserved to the Board and the management are reviewed
periodically. The Board and each individual Director is
empowered to access any Company’s information from
senior management and the company secretary at all times.
The Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including
amendments on relevant rules and regulations. During the
year, Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. Directors are allowed to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense, but no request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice in 2016.

The Board monitors and reviews performance of the
management based on several key performance indicators
such as financial figures, investor relations, corporate
governance and internal control. The principal measures
include review of management accounts, review of
internal or external auditor reports and feedbacks from
stakeholders.

Board Diversity Policy

During the year, the Board has implemented a board
diversity policy which has been effective since 1 September
2013. The Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 7
Directors. Among which, one of them is a woman, one
of them is non-executive Director and three of them are
independent non-executive Directors. The Directors are
of diverse educational background and possess a wide
spectrum of professional qualifications and business
experience. The Board is of significant diversity, whether
considered in terms of gender, professional and educational
background and skills.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as the
code of conduct of the Company regarding Directors’
securities transactions. The Company made specific
enquiries to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed in
writing that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code during the year.

Board’s Committees

To assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board
has established audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”).
These committees function within clearly defined terms
of reference. Independent non-executive Directors play
a significant role in these committees to ensure that
independent and objective views are taken.

The terms of reference of these committees are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

All the members of the Audit Committee are independent
non-executive Directors. All committee members possess
appropriate qualifications such as accounting and financial
management. The Audit Committee members are set out on
page 4 of the annual report.

The Audit Committee met 4 times in 2016 to review with
the senior management and external auditors the Group’s
significant internal controls and financial matters as set out
in the Audit Committee’s terms of reference. The functions
of the Audit Committee include the following matters:

- Reviewing the Group’s financial statements with
recommendation to the Board for approval

- Reviewing the Group’s compliance of the regulatory
and statutory requirements

- Reviewing the Group’s internal control and risk
management

- Reviewing significant accounting and audit issues

- Reviewing the Group’s connected transactions

- Overseeing and managing the relationship with
external auditors

The Audit Committee has power to conduct investigations
into any matter within the scope of responsibility of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is authorised
to obtain independent professional advice if it deems
necessary for discharging its responsibilities. The Audit
Committee has obtained a written confirmation from the
auditors on their independence and objectivity as required
under the Section 290 (revised) of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants prior to the commencement of
the audit of the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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During the year, the Audit Committee has carried out
the above functions in the respective Audit Committee
meetings and also has been satisfied with the review of
the audit scope, process, effectiveness and independence
of the auditors. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the interim
and annual financial statements for 2016. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of the auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4
members, the majority of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee members
are set out on page 4 of the annual report.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to
formulate transparent procedures for setting remuneration
policies and packages for Directors and the senior
management of the Group. Its duties include:

- Reviewing and recommending to the Board the
remuneration packages of individual executive and
non- executive Directors and the senior management
of the Group

- Reviewing the administration of the share option
scheme of the Company

- Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for
Directors and the senior management of the Group

No Director is involved in determining his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee met once in
2016 to review the existing remuneration policies of the
Directors and senior management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 members,
the majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee members are out on
page 4 of the annual report.

Its duties include:

- Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board

- Recommending any proposed change to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies

- Identifying capable and qualified individuals to become
Board members

- Assessing independence of independent non-
executive Directors

- Recommending appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors

The Nomination Committee met once in 2016 for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendation to the Board regarding change of roles
of board members and re-appointment of retiring Directors
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the board diversity policy.




HEGEAEEZREMRAT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

TEERERE
Corporate Governance Report

2 B 35 B

ARREZEEEGMEBMERARDEEAE
B H) B S AL BN - BRIEEE S RSO - B &Rt
BB AR A RAFEIMEHIERE R - 1
2016 - FEEF IR TR RIEEXEHMRE -

AT REEZEZBEREIFRZREIEED
JRA :

- ZEOBEELERRE
— T EHISZEBEABTIE
- BRBEX
- REKE

EEERNRRBFAG LRRERE T E LAZHE
BT -

2016 FATIRM MR - I/ BN FBIX
Rz RGBT

BESAMEERERA A

Auditors’ Remuneration

The Company had appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the independent auditors of the Group. Apart
from audit services, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
also provided non-audit services during the year. For the
year of 2016, the provisions of non-audit services mainly
include professional services for professional review.

The following principles are considered when determining
the appointment of the auditors in non-audit services:

- No management decision made by the auditors
- Independence of the auditors not to be impaired
- Quality of service

- Cost of service

The Board was authorised in the annual general meeting to
determine the remuneration of the independent auditors.

The remuneration paid/payable to the independent auditors
for the year of 2016 are as follows:

FHERT

HK$’000

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Tz R EZEBRS Audit and audit related services 3,573
EFZRTE Non-audit services 184
mey Total 3,757

AFEEZEBERBEFEAMEHEMBERIAE
%o BEHEREBETZRRAFAE LE
wmeoBRZBEERMERTERE  NAKRITZ
BRRBFARE LBRZERESAMEBAER
RAEVRARBZAZEE -

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Respective Responsibilities of Directors and
Auditors

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparation of the financial statements for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and its subsidiaries and in compliance with
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules.

The auditors acknowledge their responsibilities in the
auditors’ report as set out on pages 71 to 81 of the annual
report.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish,
maintain and review the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls and risk management with a view to
ensuring that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s
assets are safeguarded. Such system is designated to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. This responsibility is primarily fulfilled on its behalf by
the Audit Committee. In the year under review, the Audit
Committee, as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Group,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.

The foundation of a strong system of internal control is
a solid control environment. This is dependent on the
following components:

- Business ethics and culture of the organisation
- Quality and competence of its personnel

- Direction provided by the Board, and

- Effectiveness of the management
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Risk Management

The Group improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a
regular review and taking appropriate measures to control
and mitigate these risks. The management of the Group
reviews all significant control policies and procedures and
highlights all significant matters to the Board and Audit
Committee.

The implementation of risk management of the Group
was assisted by the Group’s internal audit department
so that the Group could ensure new and emerging risks
relevant to the Group’s operation are promptly identified
by management, assess the adequacy of action plans
to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans. These are on-going
processes and our Audit Committee reviews periodically the
Group’s risk management systems.

Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination of
risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could take
and effectiveness of risk management measures. Based on
the reports from the Group’s internal control department
and the Audit Committee, the Board considers the Group’s
risk management and internal control system is adequate
and effective and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal controls as set
out in the CG code.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for
Handling and Dissemination of Inside
Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in announcements or circulars
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative
facts.

Communication with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Company recognises the importance of open
communication and fair disclosure. It is the Company’s
policy to ensure that all shareholders are equally informed
of all major corporate developments.

All shareholders have proper notice of any general meeting
of the Company at which the Directors and the committees’
members are available to give explanation on any query
raised by the shareholders. Major information of the
Company could be obtained from the Company’s website
or financial reports and circulars sent to the shareholders.
Any enquiries by the shareholders requiring the Board’s
attention can also be sent in writing to the Investor
Relations Manager of the Company whose contact details
are set out in the paragraph headed “Shareholders’ rights —
(c) Right to put enquiries to the Board” below.
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Resolutions put to the vote at the general meetings of the
Company shall be decided on a poll, save that the chairman
of the meeting may in good faith allow a resolution which
relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be
voted on by a show of hands. Procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to the shareholders at each general
meeting and questions from shareholders regarding the
voting procedures will be answered. The poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

As part of a regular program of investor relations, senior
executives may hold briefings or road shows after the
results announcement and attend conferences with
institutional investors and analysts to engage in two-way
communications on Company’s performance, objectives
and developments. Company visits can be arranged upon
specific request.

Shareholders’ Rights

(a) Right to Convene Extraordinary General

Meeting

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposit
it to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 2605, 26th
Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, and such request may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of the requisitionist(s).



(b)

ZERKBHARRNEBZRN B ER
DRZE KRNEFPELIRERZE
R ERFE  RABNRAMEBNRE
KEFEREMBHEBEIREER TR
EEEMBIRE N D BARAFBRE
FAE - HR MERERESTTERE
FFo @ RALTHESMLER - BERER
REBIERELERH -

B 2KIE21BR - BEEEREAHAZ
K& BBRALABTUARAESAEMH
FZAE MBEBRALTHEZFSERBEARAK
EMELNMARERXERARRRMAR
RATERER -

RERRASREBRZER

FeRBERREARARRABMERMAL
BERXHAEBRRRBERAEG LIR2EFRH
R ABRERBRZBERAIZATMECE
PRz B ERARAARBRERIAE °

EBRRAATSEESZERF - AIRARQ
A 49 5 www.centurysunshine.com.hk &
Fﬁj o

(b)

20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

The request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
the confirmation of the branch share registrar that
the request is in order, the company secretary of
the Company will ask the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with all relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements to all registered members. On
the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order,
the requisitionist(s) will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, an extraordinary general meeting will not
be convened as requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/themselves may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Right to Put Forward Proposals at General

Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to
propose new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the articles of
association of the Company. Shareholders who wish
to propose a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting following
the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regard the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the procedures
made available on the website of the Company at
www.centurysunshine.com.hk.
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(c) Right to Put Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing for the attention of
Investor Relations Manager of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit 2605, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2802 2697

Email: ir@centurysunshine.com.hk

The Investor Relations Manager of the Company shall
forward the shareholders’ enquiries and concerns
to the Board and/or relevant committees of the
Board to answer the shareholders’ questions where
appropriate.

Company Secretary

Mr. Luk Sai Wai, Simon is an employee of the Company
and has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 1 May 2010. The biographical
details of Mr. Luk are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management Profile”.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Luk has

taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Constitutional documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016, which are set out
on pages 82 to 226.

Principal Activities and Geographical
Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are shown under Note 22 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating
segments is set out in Note 8 to the financial statements.
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
Group mainly operated in the PRC and the Group’s revenue
are mainly derived from the PRC and non-current assets of
the Group are mainly located in the PRC as at 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2015. No analysis of the Group’s
result and assets by geographical area is disclosed.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on pages 82 to 83.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the

payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Business Review

A business review of the Group is set out on pages 24 to
34 of the annual report.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last 5 financial years is set out on pages 6 to 7 of
the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements.

Investment Properties

Details of the movements in investment properties of the
Group are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.

Equity Linked Agreements

(@) Convertible bonds
The convertible bonds outstanding as at 31 December
2015 were fully redeemed during the year ended 31
December 2016, there were no new issue during the
year. Details are set out in Note 33 of the financial
statements.

(b) Share options granted to directors and

selected employees

For share options granted, exercised and lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2016, details are
set out in Note 40 of the financial statements and the
section named “Share Option Scheme” contained in
this Directors’ Report.

(c) Exchangeable Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
redeemable fixed coupon exchangeable bonds in the
principal amount of HK$232,000,000 were issued by
the Company, which can be exchanged for ordinary
shares of an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Details are set out in Note 35 of the
financial statements.
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Listed Subordinated Notes

On 4 June 2015 and 3 August 2015, the Company issued
listed subordinated notes (under the Multicurrency Medium
Term Note Programme) with the face value of SGD75
million and SGD50 million respectively, totalling SGD125
million. The notes carry a fixed coupon rate of 7.2% and
are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange maturing on 4
June 2018.

Details of the listed subordinated notes outstanding as at
31 December 2016 are set out in Note 32 of the financial
statement.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 86 and Note 39(b)
to the financial statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$1,436,801,000 (2015: HK$1,481,855,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, the Company repurchased 11,510,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of HK$4,210,950 before expenses
at prices ranging from HK$0.345 to HK$0.395 per share
on the Stock Exchange. The repurchased shares were
cancelled on 26 February 2016.
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Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value thereof. The premium payable
on repurchase was charged against the share premium
account of the Company. The repurchases were effected by
the Board pursuant to the mandate from shareholders, with
a view to benefit shareholders as a whole in enhancing the
net assets and earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year and up to the
date of the annual report.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Chi Wen Fu (Chairman)

Shum Sai Chit (CEQO)

Chi Bi Fen

Yang Yuchuan (Resigned on 4 August 2016)

Non-Executive Director
Guo Mengyong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Kwong Ping Man

Sheng Hong

Lau Chi Kit

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Guo Mengyong, Mr. Sheng Hong and
Mr. Lau Chi Kit will retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
its parent company was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year, none of the Directors or the management
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business that competed or might compete with the
business of the Group.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, and no
Director shall be liable for any loss, damages or misfortune
which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the
execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto.

A Directors liability insurance is currently in place, and was
in place during the year, to protect the Directors of the
Company against potential costs and liabilities arising from
claims brought against them.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 35 to 38 of the annual report.
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Share Option Scheme

In order to attract and retain the best quality employees
for the development of the Group’s businesses and to
provide additional incentives or rewards to selected
qualifying participants, the Company adopted a share
option scheme on 3 December 2008 (the “Scheme”). The
qualifying participants mainly include employees of the
Group, Directors and contractors, suppliers or service
providers of the Group who have contribution to the Group.
The Scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years since its establishing date.
The remaining life of the Scheme is approximately 3 years
(expiry on 3 December 2018).

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer of the option; (i) the
average closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a Share of HK$0.02. The maximum
number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. Upon acceptance of the offer for the grant of
option, an amount of HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to
the Company.

The Company can issue options so that the total number
of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme does not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of approval
of the Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10% limit at
any time, subject to shareholders’ approval and the issue of
a circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules provided
that the number of shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes does not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2016, options to subscribe for a total
of 132,679,714 Shares were outstanding under the Scheme
(the “Options”). Details of the movements in the options are
set out in note 40 to the financial statements.
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BEENTETHRAENALQTRIAHE Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest

EERG - HERORESFZER in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Any
Associated Corporation

M2016F12A31H  ARAIKEE T ETT As at 31 December 2016, the relevant interests and short
BAERARARSEMEIEEAE(FEE B ES  positions of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
MEEEM([EHLRBEKED |)EXVES) 28 in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
7 BERMOKEFPELENARRIEIEZES  Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
FEEGHIEXVEEIS2IEFE 2 ERMAZ  meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

HEEESERERNT (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:

(i) EERAXQTFZELR (i) Directors’ Interests in the Company

BRORBRERE Long Positions in Shares and Share Options

BAAT

12016 £

REBRE 128318

BRTRA

ZAMY

Percentage

BRRARA of issued share
Number of Shares held

- - —-— Number of  capital of the
E=pg BAESR BREE: ARER Options Company as at

Personal Spouse Corporate held 31 December
Name of Director interests interests interests (note 2) 2016

HXE([HEE]) 222,240,548 - 1,341,871,364 1,564,111,912 34.02%
Chi Wen Fu (*Mr. Chi") (Bi3E1) (note 1) 25,556,580 0.56%
Tt 14,666,305 - - 14,666,305 0.32%
Shum Sai Chit 11,500,461 0.25%
HER 12,352,499 - - 12,352,499 0.27%
Chi Bi Fen 19,167,435 0.42%
PEE 2,625,000 - - 2,625,000 0.06%
Guo Mengyong 3,833,487 0.08%
BRX - - - - -
Kwong Ping Man 6,389,145 0.14%
B 1,775,000 - - 1,775,000 0.04%
Sheng Hong 3,611,316 0.08%
Bk - - - - -

Lau Chi Kit 6,389,145 0.14%
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(2) EFRE (2) Long position in debentures
EENA B4 EntE FrisEH <8
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest Amount of debentures held
¥ 03 7T
SGD
it & A #E 2 2,500,000
Mr. Chi Personal interest
M5E - notes:

ZERMMTEREERAR([BEFE - &
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7R EERGIEXVER) 2 Bty ~ HRERD HEH
REA BN AR BIREE 7 kI E &P 352
FREZECMAZEBEELER -

Save

These Shares are held by Alpha Sino International Limited
(“Alpha Sino”) and are deemed corporate interests by virtue
of Mr. Chi’s holding of 83.74% of the issued share capital
of Alpha Sino which entitled him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Alpha Sino.

As pursuant to a share mortgage agreement dated 10
July 2014, Alpha Sino, being the substantial shareholder
of the Company, had mortgaged 549,280,000 Shares
(representing approximately 12% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 June 2015) to International Finance
Corporation (“IFC”) as security for a loan agreement dated
30 May 2014 (as amended and restated on 7 December
2015) entered into between IFC and Baishan City Tianan
Magnesium Resources Co. Ltd.

Details of Options held are set out in the above section
headed “Share Options Scheme”.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none

of the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates had interests and short positions
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the

mean

ing of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register

to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of SFO.



20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ETEHE

Directors’ Report

FERRAEQATRDKEERKRNDT 2 Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
wmRkER Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

MEERARNATETHABAME - 12016 So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of

F12A31 8 RAQARBRM A ESTET AR the Company, as at 31 December 2016, persons who had

HEROBEERIEESLRIAEIEHIE 336 6T interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying

BARTFHECEMOESIEEMNALTET shares of equity derivatives of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

HARATR2016 F

12 A 31 AE #THRA

ZEDH

Percentage

of issued share

BERGBEE BEEEREZE capital of the

BRES, 2B BEeftE Number of Number of Company as at

Name of shareholder Nature Shares held Options held 31 December 2016

X E kB 1,564,111,912 34.02%
Chi Wen Fu Long position (F§7E1) (note 1)

RE 25,556,580 0.55%

Long position

BE RE 1,341,871,364 29.11%
Alpha Sino Long position (MtE4) (note 4)

BEI A& 346,844,434 7.52%
Yang Yuchuan Long position (F47£3) (note 3)

BE RE 309,914,999 6.72%
Zou Li Long position (FH7E2) (note 2)

Best Equity kA 309,914,999 6.72%

Long position

Gl Sk /N RE 793,526,275 17.22%

International Finance Long position (F§7E4) (note 4)

Corporation
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notes:

3.

Mr. Chi Wen Fu has interest in an aggregate of 1,564,111,912
Shares of which (a) 222,240,548 Shares are beneficially owned
by him and registered in his name; and (b) 1,341,871,364
Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of his holding
of 83.74% of the issued share capital of Alpha Sino which
entitled him to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or
more of the voting power at general meeting of Alpha Sino.

As pursuant to a share mortgage agreement dated 10
July 2014, Alpha Sino, being the substantial shareholder
of the Company, had mortgaged 549,280,000 Shares
(representing approximately 12% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 June 2015) to International Finance
Corporation (“IFC”) as security for a loan agreement dated
30 May 2014 (as amended and restated on 7 December
2015) entered into between IFC and Baishan City Tianan
Magnesium Resources Co. Ltd.

These Shares are deemed corporate interests by virtue of her
holding of 52.83% of the issued share capital of Best Equity
which entitled her to exercise or control the exercise of one-
third or more of the voting power at general meeting of Best
Equity.

Mr. Yang had been an executive director of the Company
during the period from 1 July 2013 to 4 August 2016. Mr.
Yang Yuchuan has interest in an aggregate of 346,844,434
Shares of which (a) 36,929,435 Shares are beneficially owned
by his spouse, Ms. Lao Min, and registered in her name; and
(b) 309,914,999 Shares are deemed corporate interests by
virtue of his holding of 47.17% of the issued share capital
of Best Equity which entitled him to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meeting of Best Equity.

IFC has interest in an aggregate of 793,526,275 Shares of
which (a) 244,246,275 Shares are beneficially owned by
it and registered in its name; and (b) pursuant to a share
mortgage agreement dated 10 July 2014, Alpha Sino, being
the substantial shareholder of the Company, had mortgaged
549,280,000 Shares (representing approximately 12% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2015) to
IFC as security for a loan agreement dated 30 May 2014 (as
amended and restated on 7 December 2015) entered into
between IFC and Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
Co. Ltd.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the period under review, none of the Directors nor
the management shareholders of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) had any interest in a business
that competed or might compete with the business of the
Group.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers
are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 21.8%
- 5 largest suppliers in aggregate 45.9%
Sales
- the largest customer 2.1%
— 5 largest customers in aggregate 7.4%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

Connected Transaction

Other than those disclosed in Note 42 to the financial
statements, there was no connected transaction during the
year and in last year.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Auditors

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose
term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Shum Sai Chit
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

B 31/F., Gloucester Tower
IR The Landmark
EITEH115% 11 Pedder Street

B ES Central
ERTITRESE Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CENTURY SUNSHINE
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 226, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the "Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements" section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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ARETEE Key Audit Matters
AREFTFHESRBERMOEEHE - RAEER
R E M RENBTERAEENSEIE - EL
EEEERMEAERSGAVBERELRTAEEZER
FREITRIZM - AT HELEHIEHEBDN
BER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

HEETER

Key audit matters

P B 5 R KR E

Impairment of trade receivables

A2 M RARM T4 KM 27

BEMESHTEERAREATRNSE

How our audit addressed

the key audit matters

Refer to notes 4 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements

MR2016F12H31H - ESEBRKESERBELY
448,255,0007%8 7T MR BERE#EH 547,000 - EEE
ZFEBIEFEERBAINES RE/KFEHERREHE - &
BEZENERBR=ZBEE&RERR BRMEH 28
GEHF CHELNREARERFHEE2EENE
MEMAESER -EEEERLEENETREERE
MERR Zk— TR IEL B ERE -

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had trade
receivables with gross amount of approximately
HK$448,255,000 and provision for impairment of
approximately HK$547,000. The determination as
to whether a trade receivable is collectable involved
high level of management’s judgement. Specific
factors management considered include the age
of the balances, location of customers, existence
of disputes, recent historical payment patterns
and any other available information concerning the
creditworthiness of counterparties. Management used
these information to determine whether a provision
for impairment is required either for a specific
transaction or for a customer’s balance overall.

BREHEEREEUEZREGRRREN G EF 81

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment on trade receivables
included:

o FHMAEEERBERG - BREAmMETAHEE
JE M ARt B 5 18 WORR 3R] e [0 1 1 7 IR
(IRBRERNE ZHRYGRIBEDN - EPARE)
EITRIR

Evaluating management’s impairment
assessment included testing, on a sample
basis, the underlying data used by
management to assess the collectability of
trade receivables, such as an aged trade
receivable analysis, payments from customers;
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BRETSEE How our audit addressed
Key audit matters the key audit matters
EWE S RFORE (&)

Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

s HUYEBRATAEBMERRDROBBERET
AR UREREFEEMNEBRETR - &6
BRFEGE B ZEMRBNROEANRE RE
BELMFRN

Testing the key aged balances where no
provision was recognised to check if there
were any objective evidences of impairment.
This included sample checking of payments
received subsequent to the year end date and
reviewing historical payment patterns;

s EEMARRERENEAEZRUARAN A
BREBBAHGBERNIEH - R EZEHE
B EZEARNERE  TEPOELMRER
R AR F AR 3R

Selecting a sample of the significant trade
receivable balances where a provision for
impairment was recognised and understood
the rationale behind management’s judgement.
In order to evaluate these judgements, we
checked the age of these balances, the
customers’ historical payment patterns and
any post year-end payments; and

s REHHBERERFBERES  RMATEEDEE
BB EERNRREAEFERRAE —
B o

Assessing the overall provision for impairment,
we also considered the consistency of
management’s application of policy for
recognising provisions with the prior years.

BARA BEENGWRABSER -2 -

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.
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RMEEER

Key audit matters

M BERRBRE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

F2HERA

AR = bt

IS ImERMEE 4 RIEE17

BMEESEATERERRENSTENS
How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Refer to notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

R2016F12831H EEEEME BE K&
% #12,093,569,0008 7" T EBRREEEIREY
1,074,664,00078 7T » & + i ;2 18 5 49 423,608,000
BTN E & Es 4)582,532,00008 0 - BEEFR
%Zﬁs&r&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%% B R ERERAERIER

OREFEEREN c BMETRLEE - FEREY

% MW=L R EHREN M EEEREMRTE
TE - EEEERNERISE N LREE MR - PR
BE - RRRAF - ESECEGINEHEMETHE

EL BT  BERESNARESBEZAETE-

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had
property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$2,093,569,000, which mainly comprised
construction in progress of approximately
HK$1,074,664,000, leasehold land and building
of approximately HK$423,608,000 and plant and
machinery of approximately HK$582,532,000. A
recent history of losses of the subsidiaries of the
Group is an indicator of impairment for property, plant
and equipment and hence an impairment assessment
is required. We focused on this area because the
balance of property, plant and equipment was
significant and these assessment process is complex
and highly subjective which based on the selection
of appropriate comparables and assumptions such
as discount rate, future revenue. The Group engaged
an external valuer to perform the valuation for the
recoverable amount of the leasehold land and
building and plant and machinery.

BPEEEEEHRENGREFERE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

o FHMEBUAEMNER e REEIE
Evaluating the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

o MRERMYMEBMITENEELERMGEMD ¥
EFTERAN A RBRBREERE

Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts;

o REBHMEEBLRITEMNEE
HEE R

HHRRERE

Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

o BN AREGEIANMERNE ARIED
HERE -

Checking, on a sampling basis, the accounting
and relevance of the input data used.

BAERRRGIREBEST -

We found that the assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.
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Carrying value of inventories

=
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BEMESHTEEARENSENTE

How our audit addressed

the key audit matters

Refer to notes 4 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

MN2016F 128318 ESEEAEGFTEHKRER®)D
227,387,000 - BREEFLCEERNREBHEEM -
RMRAEERRETERER - BTER MBI
mMEMER —REPRE FEEESHNRELHRKE
b RmizBe - &tvlimmmlﬁwﬁﬁfiﬂ%{%z
HEDKFE - I RFEELN  UFHAEUREERFS
PN ﬁﬁa—ﬂﬁmﬁ%ﬁw&m;ﬂm&%wﬁa‘Eﬂ%%é
BZREKE EHEANBEEEEHRKBEZHE
MBEBGEERE -

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had inventories
net of provision of approximately HK$227,387,000.
which comprised of fertiliser products, magnesium
products, metallurgical flux products and electronics
products. The electronic products are usually with
short life cycles, while other products are usually
with longer life span. The consumption of inventories
are subject to changing consumers’ demands
and market trends which increased the level of
judgement involved in estimating inventory provisions.
Judgement was required to assess the appropriate
level of provisioning for items which may be ultimately
obsoleted or sold below cost as a result of a
reduction in customers’ demand. Such judgements
included management’s expectations for future sales
and inventory liquidation plans.

BPEHEEEREFEREENEF B

Our procedures in relation to management’s
determination of the carrying value of inventories
included:

o FHERAREERE  BFIERFEEBENIE
FoERBR GEEESEEENAEEBERE
FEERELETLE  RAMERS —B 1A
BLERETERERHERELAFMEEERS
BB EUR

Assessing the process, methods and
assumptions used to determine the provision
for slow-moving, excess or obsolete items.
This included comparing management’s
calculations for consistency against those used
in the prior years and assessing the provision
policy adopted by management by reference
to past usage or sales history;

o NHMEAAREEFEREDN REERAHEEE
RERBR  AHAEEBMEREREBIEN SE
RE - A EETBEEE

Testing the reliability of the underlying
data used by management to calculate the
inventory obsolescence provisions by sample
checking of an inventory ageing analysis and
the subsequent sales orders and usage;
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Key audit matters the key audit matters
FEREEGE)

Carrying value of inventories (continued)

s BBNGHEREARBEZFFEEZNAEES
B RS EERNEREE K&

Testing the accuracy of the resultant
calculation by assessing the calculation
criteria and recalculating the provision for the
inventories based on those criteria; and

o BEEEABN BFLBEMEAMES - KM
EBRERFAHMANEBTEERENTER
FEHE -

For those items which were identified as slow-
moving, excess or obsolete, we assessing
management’s calculation of net realisable
value by checking to the latest or subsequent
selling prices.

BPERFERBESIIREGRESF -

We found the carrying values of the inventories was
supported by the available evidence.
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How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Carrying amounts of exchangeable bonds and derivative financial liabilities

==

Flﬁ/

RIAR A M ISR M 5L 34 R FIEE 35

Refer to notes 34 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements

R2016F12A881H E5S B EIJEBREF L
208,504,000;‘%;‘z&?ﬁiﬁmﬂﬁﬁm32,600,oooﬁérn
HERNFITHARRESNEREEEFGHE - B5E
BESBIIMINEE  UWEFEEENME - BEK
HRZEEBEAMEMNE THRES  2REERRKA
K SE W E o

As of 31 December 2016, the Group has
exchangeable bonds of approximately
HK$208,504,000 and derivative financial liabilities
of approximately HK$32,600,000 relating to the
conversion option of the exchangeable bonds issued
during the year. Independent external valuations
were obtained in order to support management’s
estimates. The valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant management
judgement, including risk-free rates and dilution
effect.

EMEREEEH I ERESEREREGENEF

B

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of conversion option of the exchangeable
bonds included:

o B AHEEIEVES - BE N REFEM
Evaluation of the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

s RERMNYABBRESHNERNERMGEMH -
AHEFTERM DAL BERBRRVEERE &

Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the exchangeable bonds
and using our valuation experts; and

o LU NI E R A M E A SRR ERE KA
BE -

Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.

HMERERERSIRBRERHS -

We found the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the
Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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s HEERAKELLSTERNRE MR
higw - RIBFAERNEFT RS EEZ
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Wong Sze Wai, Basilia.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: PO5806

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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HE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Fff 5 FEx FAEIT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(&E5)
(Restated)
WA Revenue 7 2,589,221 2,515,602
$H & A AR Cost of sales (1,829,360) (1,729,567)
E7 Gross profit 759,861 786,035
EEWEKE Gain on bargain purchase - 28,746
H bl sk 18558 Other gains or losses, net 9 57,399 35,381
HERTMSHEEER Selling and marketing costs (93,911) (113,406)
THRAX Administrative expenses (159,379) (139,742)
FIEEEREMNEER/R Net realised and unrealised gain on
REIF W F R investments held for trading 8,791 6,875
EBhaE A=A REE Share of profits and losses of
joint ventures 1,695 1,760
R—REAEERRIZIEERE Impairment of investment in a
joint venture - (180)
&1 — Bl A R B e Share of loss of an associate (1) (4)
BM%ER Finance costs 10 (117,564) (87,390)
R P15 550 B A Profit before income tax 456,891 518,075
Fris i Income tax expense 11 (143,839) (155,006)
FERBEF Profit for the year 12 313,052 363,069
HiZ2mEBAX - B Other comprehensive
8%t - expenses, net of
income tax:
HigmgEds ks ltems that may be reclassified
Bz IEE subsequently to profit or loss:
FANEMHTHEERE Net loss arising on revaluation
EAECEEFERE of available-for-sale
investments during the year (3,138) (22,012)
FALEAIHEEREZ Reclassification adjustments
B EAE relating to disposal of
available-for-sale investments
during the year (2,419) -
BMEBINEBRES 2 Exchange differences arising
M H ZRE from translation of foreign
operations (279,303) (141,958)
FRHEMZEM > HBR Other comprehensive
PigEs expenses for the year,
net of income tax (284,860) (163,970)
FAZHEKALLE Total comprehensive
income for the year 28,192 199,099
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
B 5 FHExT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(=5)
(Restated)
THALTEGFERRF : Profit for the year
attributable to:
PAN/NEIEZZE N Owners of the Company 302,334 314,479
FEIEAR R A Non-controlling interests 10,718 48,590
313,052 363,069
THATEEFREE Total comprehensive
WA (BAX) 4% : income/(expenses)
for the year
attributable to:
VIN/NEIEZ RN Owners of the Company 44,908 173,586
IEFE IR R 2 Non-controlling interests (16,716) 25,513
28,192 199,099
(e=5))
(Restated)
SREF : Earnings per share:
— EARCGEN) — basic (HK cents) 15(a) 6.57flicents 7.45 fllicents
— OB — diluted (HK cents) 15(b) 6.57flcents 7.33 flicents

BEFT P E B AN AR & A TS R B0 —&F D -

consolidated financial statements.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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As at 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Fff 5 FET FH&ET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(E:5))
(Restated)
IRBEE Non-current assets

+ Hb s A A Land use rights 16 206,746 172,739
W - WE R Property, plant and equipment 17 2,093,569 1,863,009
B Investment properties 18 114,001 125,436
GES Goodwill 19 197,368 197,144
BREE Intangible assets 20 717 1,674
IRAEE Mining rights 21 466,741 512,075
YBEERFE Payment for acquisition of patents 50,049 53,703

BEYE BER Deposits for acquisition of

BENES property, plant and equipment 372 10,688
REERRZIRE Investments in joint ventures 23 5,362 4,290
R—HEEE R RE Investment in an associate 24 17 18
AHEEERE Available—for-sale investments 25 6,840 116,418
B IRIRITF K Pledged bank deposits 31,587 -

3,173,369 3,057,194
REEE Current assets
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 25 70,632 10,842
FE Inventories 26 227,387 248,241
+ 3 fsE R A Land use rights 16 4,723 4,420
g5 RHEMEWFRIE Trade and other receivables,

ENRIERES prepayments and deposits 27 856,906 607,036
ARE AT Income tax recoverable 1,706 1,826
RIEEREKRE Investments held for trading 28 10,415 38,726
PTESREE Derivative financial assets 29 - 7
ER—R&ERAFIFIE Amount due from a joint venture 23 133 885
RITRIE 48R Bank and cash balances 30 901,198 1,452,515

2,073,100 2,364,498
DA =K Less: Current liabilities

B 5 R E AR FIA Trade and other payables 31 294,447 335,408
FER TS B Income tax payable 31,075 31,670
BE Borrowings 32 320,665 152,810
TTEcRAaE Derivative financial liabilities 34 32,600 -
a|mRES Convertible bonds 33 - 198,335
678,787 718,223
RBEERE Net current assets 1,394,313 1,646,275

EEHERABAE Total assets less current
liabilities 4,567,682 4,703,469
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2016 2015
M FET TET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(1Z&E5))
(Restated)
B ERBEE Less: Non-current liabilities
PEIE A Deferred revenue 36 66,176 69,552
H M E IR Other payable 31 121,000 110,000
AIEmES Exchangeable bonds 35 208,504 -
BE Borrowings 32 1,011,457 1,043,062
BRI AE Deferred tax liabilities 37 106,079 116,333
1,513,216 1,338,947
EEFE Net assets 3,054,466 3,364,522
EATEEAEERK Capital and reserves
kiRE attributable to owners
of the Company
fi% Ax Share capital 38 101,756 101,986
G Reserves 2,610,945 2,856,310
2,712,701 2,958,296
FERER Non-controlling interests 341,765 406,226
ERAE Total equity 3,054,466 3,364,522

FEEEMN2017E3 A 20 Bt & RIFETIRERN
F82E226 B2 AN EHE WA THES

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 226
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of

REZEZ directors on 29 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf
by:
M E oot 3
Chi Wen Fu Shum Sai Chit
EF o
Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BERM M S B AN AR A B S SRR A0 — BB o
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HEFAEEEZREMRAT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ANRRBAEL
Attributable to Owners of the Company
AR
& BRE MBEE TRRES FER
Bk  ROEE (WE6) EHEE fife B BEBE  EfERE  RERA Nt 4
Capital Convertible
redemption Capital  Statutory Share bonds Non-
Share Share  reserve Revaluation  reserve  reserve option Translation equity Other  Retained controlling
capital premium (note (i)  reserve (note (ii)) (note (ii))  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Sub-total interests Total
THR TR Thn T TR TR TAR THn TR TERL TR T T TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(&57)  (gE5)) (9E5) (485
(Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
Ro015E1 A18 As at 1 January 2015 67,910 887,189 3499 2,11 13,666 106,999 5,652 98,021 16,779 (49,027) 1,087,314 2210773 155,868 2,366,641
EREF] Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - 314,479 314,479 48590 363,069
EREHRERR Other comprehensive expenses for
(MBAER): the year, net of income tax:
EREETLEERE  Net loss arising on revaluation of
BEEEBEE avallable-for-sale investments
during the year - - A - - - - - - Sy sy @01
BERNERMELL  Exchange diffrences arising from
EizE tranglation of foreign operations - - - - - - - (123,769) - - - (128769 (18,189)  (141958)
ERRE(ER)/ Total comprehensive (expenses)/
WALE income for the year - - - (17,124) - - - (123769) - - 314,479 173,586 25,513 199,009
RELREERT Issue of ordinary shares under
28R open offer 29062 545,015 - - - - - - - - - BT - 5017
RELREAER Issue of ordinary shares under
Lk bonus issue 4359 4,40) - - - - - - - - - (50) - 50)
WEHBAA Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - 9%5% 9653
BRAERE Final dividend paid -t - - - - - - - - -t - e
BOmARES Redemption of convertile bonds - - - - - - - -3 - 433 - - -
BRMERE Share option lapsed! - - - - - - (2,128) - - - 2128 - - -
2RzhE Transfer to reserve - - - - ) - - - - 14 - - -
I ERELETL Issue of ordinary sheres upon
LRR exercise of share ptions 1,115 2341 - - - - (1,199) - - - - 23,387 - 23,387
REEERHATZ Eouity settled share-based
5 transactions - - - - - - 2,528 - - - - 2,528 - 2,528
-BHELRET Open offer of a subsidiary
nREE - - - - - - - - - (931) - (931) 13880 13958
HBARAEER Changes in ownership Interest
289 in subsidris - - - - - - - - - s B IO Y- NN
HEkh Share cancellation (460) (8,614 460 - - - - - - - (460) (9,074 - (9,074
R2015512A318R  Asat 31 December 2016 and
01651718 1 January 2016 101986 1,420,895 3,959 5,647 13,666 163,141 4853 (25,748) 12,443 (44,161) 1,311,655 2,958,296 406,226 3,364,522
EfiaH| Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - - 302,334 302,334 10,718 313,052
FREHEERR Other comprehensive expenses
(HBAER): for the year, net of income tax:
EREETLEERE  Netloss arising on revaluation of
ELERTE avallable-for-sale investments
during the year - - - (1,821) - - - - - - - (1,821)  (1,317)  (3,138)
EREETLHERE  Reclassification adjusiments relating
LENHERE o disposal of available-for-sale
invstments during the year - - - (2,419) - - - - - - - (2,419) - (2,419)
REBNERMEEL  Exchange diffrences arising from
EizE translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - (253,186) - - - (253,186)  (26,117) (279,303)
ERRERR)/ Total comprehensive (expenses)/
hALE income for the year - - - (4,240) - - - (253,186) - - 302,334 44,908  (16,716) 28,192
BRAERE Final dividend paid - (59,774) - - - - - - - - - (59,774) - (59,774)
BRETARES Redemption of convertile bonds - - - - - - - - (12,449) - 12443 - - -
BRyERE Share option lapsed - - - - - - [1,119) - - - 44 - - -
2RzhE Transfer to reserve - - - - - 35645 - - - - (35,645) - - -
RECERR[FZ Equity settled share-based
by transactions - - - - - - 1,075 - - - - 1,075 - 1,075
HBL RARER Changes in ownership Interest
%8 in subsidiares - - - - - - - - - (227,509) - (227,503)  (47,745) (275,338)
Hakt Share cancellation (230)  (3,981) 230 - - - - - - - (230)  (4,211) - 421)
20165128318 As at 31 December 2016 101,756 1,357,100 4,189 1,407 13,666 188,786 4,214 (278,934) - (271,754) 1,592,271 2,712,701 341,765 3,054,466
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notes:

(i) Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the Shares of the Company which was transferred from
the Company’s retained earnings upon repurchase and
cancellation of Shares by the Company.

(ii) Capital reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries that have been
acquired and capitalised pursuant to a group reorganisation
over the nominal value of the Company’s Shares issued in
exchange therefore.

(iliy  Statutory reserve mainly represents the fund set aside by the
subsidiaries based on 10% of their net profit of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) statutory financial statements
and that for the purpose of certain safety production
activities.

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC and the relevant PRC
rules and regulations, these subsidiaries are required to set
aside 10% of their profit after income tax as recorded in
the PRC statutory financial statements as statutory reserve,
except where the reserve fund balance has reached 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The reserve fund can
only be used to make good the subsidiaries’ previous years’
losses, to expand the subsidiaries’ production operations or
to increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State
Administration of Work Safety of the PRC and other relevant
regulatory bodies, the Group is required to set aside funds
mainly for mining of dolomite and serpentine at prescribed
rates. These funds can be used for maintenance and/
or improvements of safety of these activities, and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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2016
BisE THT
Note HK$’000
(fe=751)
(Restated)
REEE Operating activities

B4 P15 250 A1 43 A Profit before income tax 456,891 518,075
RYIEE EL AR Adjustments for:

biN-Ye & Depreciation and amortisation 129,378 96,397

B 7% & A Finance costs 117,564 87,390

Iﬂﬂ@% F%& LR Net gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (257) (290)
¥ ’E, a?xﬁﬁ’]ﬁmfﬁd& Realised and unrealised gain
REE W on investments held for trading (8,790) (6,875)

& S A Dividend income (769) (200)

A S A Interest income (23,970) (12,094)

BREEEROEIFZIR S Equity settled share-based payments 1,075 2,528

SRTETERARBEESD Fair value change on financial derivatives 487 236

FEIEHE S A REE Share of loss of an associate 1

B FE WS 5 3B R R Reversal of impairment and written off of

trade receivables (279) (229)

FERE Provision of inventories 7,058 2,374

EWE 5HRERE Impairment of trade receivables 784 206

At ERERE Impairment of an available-for-sale investment 460 -

BV AERE Impairment of intangible assets 359 599

HE— BB A s Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (179)

HETHDERE R Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment (2,848) -

REQIEST FIRE R Write back of long-aged accounts (3,059) -

18 o) E A B MR B AR Reversal of written off of other receivables (5,495) -

AEWEN S Gain on bargain purchase 44(c) - (28,746)

BB ARRR Share of profits of joint ventures (1,695) (1,760)

R—BEeERARERE Impairment of an investment in a joint venture - 180
BEASBYRMLE Operating cash flows before movements

BERE in working capital 666,895 657,616
HERBEERRED Proceeds from disposal of investments

i85 held for trading 39,750 45,075
Bl —FAEARRE Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a joint

B/ () venture 1,375 (855)
ﬁ%fﬁ%ﬁf’ﬁiﬁ"ﬁ%‘?ﬁ;ﬁ Purchase of investments held for trading (3,429) (67,585)

A/ (3E ) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 2,620 (31,948)

%&E@TH&M Increase in trade and other receivables,

BN 2B RS R JJI] prepayments and deposits (65,304) (205,616)
B5NEMENTIEELI,CFf) Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 26,296 (95,786)
REXBMEERNRS Cash generated from operations 668,203 300,901
Ffrﬁ%RLm Income tax refund 1,102 -
BRFE Income tax paid (146,664) (158,677)
RETEELEMN Net cash generated from operating

BeFE activities 522,641 142,224
REEE Investing activities

RITFEFRD,/ () Decrease/(increase) in deposits with banks 56,867 (176,910)

BRI E RGN Increase in pledged bank deposits (33,197) -

BEWE  BEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (479,013) (217,301)

BEWE  BEKEE Decrease/(increase) in deposits for acquisition

mizeRd,/(Em) of property, plant and equipment 10,316 (10,688)

ERLE—FAMEAR Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal

B2 RN FE of a subsidiary - 4

2 IALE, Interest received 26,464 7,733

B E Dividend received 769 200

HEME - BERZEN Proceeds from disposal of property,

iS58 plant and equipment 1,278 376

ERMNENAE Additions to development costs - (361)
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2016
B &E FExT
Note HK$’000
(fe=751)
(Restated)
WM B Rz R L FE Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries 44 (63,212) (200,786)
BELTHEREAE Purchases of addition land use right (53,059) -
HERH N EREMIGTIE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments 68,864 -
YNEEAHEERETE Payments to acquire available-for-sale investments (22,245) (111,582)
m—EEEEBAKANEB Advance of loans to a company
REZRRABHER subsequently acquired as subsidiary (233,780) (45,116)
BRETEHMANEEFE Net cash used in investing activities (719,948) (754,431)
METE Financing activities
MEERERE Proceeds from new borrowings 379,016 182,287
BREE Repayment of borrowings (201,318) (318,321)
BT ERESSRIBTE Net proceeds from issue of exchangeable bonds 229,504 -
BERFE Interest paid (93,993) (57,886)
BERRERE Final dividend paid (59,774) (21,797)
IR R BT Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise
ZEBR of share options - 23,387
RITB AR 2 A E Net cash outflow in respect of changes in
ZH RS RILFE ownership interest of subsidiaries (275,338) (64,840)
EIEUWAIE N Increase in deferred revenue 1,426 2,486
REMBLARZ —BIEER Proceeds from loan from a non-controlling
BENEFWAEHIE shareholder of a subsidiary 11,000 82,000
BN —RHB AR —% Increase/(decrease) in an amount due to
FEERRAR SR KRG N, (R D) a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary 216 (2,002)
BT EMEEZEN Proceeds from issue of listed
FTiS 8 subordinated note = 699,314
A BB ) A A AR S5 3R Payment for redemption of convertible bonds (207,748) (123,625)
RIBEAFEERITEBR Proceeds from issue of ordinary
HIFT 1S 3R shares under open offer - 574,077
BREAHEERIT—HIE Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares of
N M B A TSR a subsidiary under open offer - 135,958
IRBATRR BT T L BARMAAR  Issue cost of ordinary shares under bonus issue - (50)
FEEE R B Payment for share repurchases (4,211) (9,074)
METE (A FEEN Net cash (used in)/generated
e FE from financing activities (221,220) 1,101,914
ReRERKESER Net (decr Mincr in cash and cash
(R2)/EmEeE equivalents (418,527) 489,707
FINRERERRLER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 1,189,255 742,431
SEEERSENE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (61,418) (42,883)
FRANESRERAESLER Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 709,310 1,189,255
ReRERBESER DI Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
EEMBRRRMINZ Bank and cash balances as stated
RITRR S S in the consolidated statement of
financial position 901,198 1,452,515
BERABETERZ Pledged deposits with banks pledged
DHEBBTER as security for borrowings (25,116) (24,580)
EUEER R BABB=/EA Non-pledged deposits with bank with
ZEFFIEITER original maturity of more than
three months when acquired (166,772) (238,680)
RERERERMIZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
BeLERRLEE the consolidated statement of cash flows 709,310 1,189,255
BEMI M B AR & BB R ) — B0 1D © The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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— R

B ERBIZERAERAR(TARA]) K
HBAR (MBI AEEDEIERERE
ERE  eBEEMER - RMBELE
BHNEFEMRER °

AAaEJIR2003F 1 A21 HIREHESHS
NAEF220F (1961 FA RS &KHRER
B EHEHETMAINEREERA
A e AR MD A 2004F2 A17 BN E
BHARZBARAR([BRZAT]) 8K
(T8l ]) £ W HH200847 A31H
B ERAIERM LM - B 200848
A1BR  XRaMRME R ER
I -BEZRE ARAZHRRIZRAF
ATRERBRERAR  ZARAREBE
ZEEEMKZ 2 AF]

HaMBmRGUNBT(EBT]) BEML -
HEARNBNINGEEERR - FRIFEREHR
B BAMBEEREITR(TET) A
B

General Information

Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in fertiliser
business, magnesium product business, metallurgical
flux business and electronic product business.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 21 January 2003 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman lIslands. On 17 February 2004,
the Company’s shares were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and were
withdrawn from the GEM Board on 31 July 2008.
Since 1 August 2008, the Company’s shares have
been listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Alpha Sino International
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except
when otherwise indicated.
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (“new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvement to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle
Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisition of
Interests in Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
(Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies
an asset (or disposal group) from held for sale to held
for distribution to owners (or vice versa), or when
held—for—distribution accounting is discontinued. The
amendments shall be applied prospectively.




HEGEAEEZREMRAT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

g T EL
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

EEMEREEBE7THRUETR)HE —
KEemEERSRABREREINES
BEERBHBCEEEENBREREMS -
—EABAHRERESLHE —HEEEE
B W B W IERR SR TE A BLAT A 2 EP
M fEE I SE 3 BB (R 201112 A B M I
M2013F 1 A1 B 2 &M AR £
BB BIREENE7HUERTA) + 3|
A) o SRif - AR ERAI IS RER AT BE BB
HERE  UWFEEBGERNE 45D
HAB A5 R s -

EB G ERFEIRUETA)ERE - &
AEEREANM R R RAEEARES
EAEZNEFARMNERET - ZFE
RSN EREENHEELEESN
MIZRE - ZFEFTABRERXFER
B B 75 3R R AT 2 51) 10 &% - L B AT B 46 R
R o FREARIMAEEBRRERAZ258
&L B HIR R IR E B A P RER -

FREGFERE TR R)BFANE
B ERE4FRENT B BERE A
HEBO2INERNBRTE - ZFERIR
o AREHBNEPHEBEHERBES
BRI - e B SRR AR A S
AL A & B B B 7 R AR R B RS A R
HABA M5 s LA AR D -

FER Lt BB M5 MG E R BT &Y
AEBENGRAMBRERBREATE -

The amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities provide
additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing
contract is continuing involvement in a transferred
asset for the purpose of the disclosures required
in relation to transferred assets and clarify that the
offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments
to HKFRS 7 issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are
not explicitly required for all interim periods. However,
the disclosures may need to be included in condensed
interim financial statements to comply with HKAS 34
Interim Financial Reporting.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high
quality corporate bonds used to estimate the discount
rate for postemployment benefits should be issued in
the same currency as the benefits to be paid. These
amendments would result in the depth of the market
for high quality corporate bonds being assessed
at currency level. The amendments apply from the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented
in the financial statements in which the amendments
are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising should
be recognised in opening retained earnings of the
earliest comparative period presented.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere in the interim financial report.
The amendments require that such information be
incorporated by way of a cross reference from the
interim financial statements to the other part of the
interim financial report that is available to users on
the same terms and at the same time as the interim
financial statements.

The application of the said amendments to HKFRSs
has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures clarify that the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements is available
to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, even if the investment entity measures all
its subsidiaries at fair value in accordance with
HKFRS 10. The amendments also clarify that the
requirement for an investment entity to consolidate a
subsidiary, whose main purpose is to provide services
and activities that are related to the investment
activities of the investment entity parent, applies
only to subsidiaries that are not investment entities
themselves.

The application of these amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 has had no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
the Group is not an investment entity and does not
have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture that
qualifies as an investment entity.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for

Acaquisition of Interests in Joint Operations
The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on
how to account for the acquisition of a joint operation
that constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3
Business Combinations. Specifically, the amendments
state that the relevant principles on accounting
for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other
standards (e.g. HKAS 36 regarding impairment testing
of a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill
on acquisition of a joint operation has been allocated)
should be applied. The same requirements should
be applied to the formation of a joint operation if and
only if an existing business is contributed to the joint
operation on its formation by one of the parties that
participate in the joint operation.
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A joint operator is also required to disclose the
relevant information required by HKFRS 3 and other
standards for business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The application of these amendments to
HKFRS 11 has had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to HKAS 1 are designed to further
encourage companies to apply professional judgment
in determining what information to disclose in their
financial statements. For example, the amendments
make clear that materiality applies to the whole
of financial statements and that the inclusion of
immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of
financial disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that companies should use professional
judgment in determining where and in what order
information is presented in the financial disclosures.

The application of these amendments to HKAS 1 has
had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortisation
of an intangible asset. This presumption can only be
rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

e when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

e when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.
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The amendments apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Currently, the Group uses the straight-line method
for depreciation for its plant and equipment. The
directors of the Company believe that the straight—
line method is the most appropriate method to reflect
the consumption of economic benefits inherent in the
respective assets and accordingly, the application of
these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 has
had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in

Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in its separate financial statements:

b at cost;

e in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (or HKAS 39 for entities that have
not yet adopted HKFRS 9); or

° using the equity method as described in HKAS
28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent
ceases to be an investment entity, or becomes an
investment entity, it shall account for the change from
the date when the change in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there
are consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid
a potential conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements and to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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The application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior years and on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

AEBVERFEAATEEMBEBRE The Group has not early applied the following new and

WAV R] RAEERT BB M B3RS 2R -

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
ERPBREER  BEUBREERN2014F HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
CHES) ZE2016 F R FEH#® 2014-2016 Cycle®
ERUBREEN  BROXNRZNSERGE? HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Clarification and Measurement of
Z2H(BFTA) Share-based Payment

BREMBHREEA  RBRAD?

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

Transaction?
Insurance Contracts?

F45(BFTAX)
ERMBREEN IR HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
£E9%
ERMBMEEN REEHREBEQNFN HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
F10H R REGECENEELE (Amendments) between an Investor and its
B Rl gEEe Assoclate or Joint Venture?
F28% (BRI A)
ERMBREEN  RARPANZIEA? HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
E15% Customers?
ERUBREER  REERAVBEEER HKFRS 15 (Amendments)  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
E15R(BFR) FZ15FREEPENLZ from Contracts with Customers?
N
BREBREEN  MES HKFRS 16 Leases®
£165%
BERCHENETR BERR HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative'
(BETA)
ERCHENFE12% HAZREEERELHE HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
(BFI7X) BE for Unrealised Losses'
1 1201751 A1 Bz & FAB8FE B 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
W RFTIREER 1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted.
2 20184 1 A1 Az &FIAEFEHRE 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
ER AFTIREER - 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.
3 201941 A1 Az & RIAK FEHRE 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
W RFIREER - 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted.
4 RFEFE A 2 BRI FE R A - 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.
5 M20174F 1 A1H 52018F 1 A1H(8 & 5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

FRIE MM IE ) 8.2 14 FA B 6 FZ BRR AR 2 » 1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018 (as appropriate).



ERVMBRELEAEIRSHT A
2009 F M 2 BB B RS R E 5%
SINEREENBERIEZEZHBRE - Hi&
R2010F B 2 BB M EHRELELF IR
BIEHECHMABZ BN EN LRI
RZITE - WR2013FEE]  UEHA R
Y SR T o R2014BM 2 BHE
BHREEFIORS —ALETRAEE
MAa)EEeMEEZRERTE b))
AETHEBRKETASIAIEAEME2EAEK
AEARES R IGTEER - o ENE
REELBRIBE -

EAREEMABANT BN B RS ERNEIR
ZEBHRERMAOT

s MABTBEEAFIRBEANZ
FIECHEREMEE  HERHARE
HRAKREE - FHHE 8
MG AR &R E 2 XBRAANFR
A BaWBReREEAXXNAR
RAREREZMNEREBRAMEE
ZEEERE  —RRERBENEE
RIGFLEIHAAE - IAEEMER
BRERBEREANE R S ARG
RFLERERTE - I - REFE
I REERNEIN - BEAIATH
Bm i E RN E A 2 s 2 51 B
BEWFFEEERSE) 2HEAR
EE M —REXNBRRERRS
WA e

20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

g ST E I
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a fair value through other comprehensive
income measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the
Group are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the
fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-
financial that are eligible for hedge accounting.
In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle
of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.
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The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 9 in the future may impact
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect until a detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to HKFRS 10:

° An exception from the general requirement of full
gain or loss recognition has been introduced into
HKFRS 10 for the loss control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method.

° New guidance has been introduced requiring that
gains or losses resulting from those transactions
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains
and losses resulting from the remeasurement at
fair value of investments retained in any former
subsidiary that has become an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method are recognised in the former
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.
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Amendments to HKAS 28:

e The requirements on gains and losses resulting
from transactions between an entity and its
associate or joint venture have been amended
to relate only to assets that do not constitute a
business.

° A new requirement has been introduced that
gains or losses from downstream transactions
involving assets that constitute a business
between an entity and its associate or joint
venture must be recognised in full in the
investor’s financial statements.

° A requirement has been added that an entity
needs to consider whether assets that are sold
or contributed in separate transactions constitute
a business and should be accounted for as a
single transaction.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of these amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 will have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:
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° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have
a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential
impact of the other new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application but is not yet in a position to state
whether the other new and revised HKFRSs, will
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of
accounts and directors’ reports and audits became
effective for the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016. Further, the disclosure
requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 have been
changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 is presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
based on the new requirements. Information previously
required to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or
Listing Rules but not under the new CO or amended
Listing Rules is not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.



BRETHRAREFENSZBIASIN - #W
TXEFHBERAE REMBERECRE
SERARERE - BLRABERESR
BEEXNOREBORLEEE

RABERTH2EERFERMERAFR
ZPHEEER R ERE AL

NZEBE THZEBSEERERAR
HEMH —BEERMES - BErEEX
BEZARER  AREZETHHE2HE
EEFERANRZEEXRBBETEER
HELZENEEXNABERH  EXFHEE
BBRERPIHEN IFEENLIAEYE
BEEBE L TARETE - B EMHRE LR
F2RBEAZUBOINNRS - BFE
SR ENE17RBENZHER S MIAK
HEAAERUBAFELRENFEMWDIW
B ENF 2RI ERFERE
R RS 36 P A EREE BRI -

20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

b E YN
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.




HEGEAEEZREMRAT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

g T EL
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

AN M BHREMS - A AEFERE
AREFEZBAREIBERREZERBA
BBEHANEMECEREEUNERS
14 B2BREIHE - ST -

s FIHBABBERERNIEBHA
UBSMEREEXBERERETS
ZHRECREHE)

s F2HBABEBEMNEELRBEEER
KEZBABR2BARE(E1ER
BREOMERIN) &

s FIPBWABBREEXRENTH
BERE ABUE -

REEE

A M ImRBIEAR A RA R B FTE
VER(BRERENER) REKEB AR
MM E®RE - HERATER  BIARQF
B BUSHEHI4E

o AHEREHRITEESN

s H2ERBEURZIEHMAESHE
RESAZOE &

e AR

-

ROOEEBIMEEZED

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

° voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meeting.
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$’&Tﬁ’\ WJ;’AT 2= I AR B R B B Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
BERS I 2k = B B A B 1 I RE RS Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
fﬂﬂ:f/\f\ﬁﬁ BRmNE  RAFERNE ceases when the Company loses control of the
ASHECMBARZBARRAY &8 subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
KAEEBE %‘JTAF”‘EEEﬁ’Aﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
BEARZEGIRERL st AGaBEmkH are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
ﬁﬁiﬁ%/\ﬂﬁﬁlﬁ loss and other comprehensive income from the date

the Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

RARHEB ARIEERR R ERELER Profit or loss and each component of other
LEMEEWA AR - BIESFIE comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
TR B A —HANBARMNER of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
W R @EDNEARNREE ARIEE Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
IRHERFTE attributed to the owners of the Company and to the

non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

MEFZ  HMBARNPERKELD When necessary, adjustments are made to the
AR NFHSHREREREEE MK S financial statements of subsidiaries to being their
NEERAMEETEE — B ° accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

FrERSEKEREENES I EREE All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
RBE #xw K&as AXRBEKEERN expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
RER AR B REREUR G - between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) The contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivables. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment.

Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.
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A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decision
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment
continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.

Changes in the Group’s Ownership

Interests in Existing Subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity.
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Business Combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

(i)  deferred tax assets or liabilities, and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to
sharebased payment transactions of the acquiree
or the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

(i) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis
required by another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement
period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.
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The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity before the acquisition
date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group
obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
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Acquisition of Additional Interest in a

Subsidiary

When the Group increases its interest in an entity that
is already controlled by the Group, goodwill arising on
such acquisition represents the difference between the
cost of additional interest acquired and the increase
in the Group’s share of the net carrying amount
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired. The difference between the cost
of additional interest acquired and the book value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities attributable to the additional interest acquired
is recognised as a reserve movement (other reserve).
The difference represents the difference that arose
since the original acquisition date that is attributable
to the Group’s increased interest in the subsidiary. On
the subsequent disposal of the subsidiary, the reserve
is transferred to retained earnings.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGU, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of
the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintain neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investment including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment have
been established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Service fee income is recognised when the services
have been rendered.

Any other income not mentioned above is recognised
whenever it is received or receivable.
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Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress),
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. On initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is charged so as
to write off the cost of investment properties over
the lease term and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Land Use Rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered
as prepaid operating lease payment. Land use rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, amortisation is
charged to profit or loss over the period of the rights
or the term of the respective enterprise to which the
land use rights are granted, whichever is the shorter,
using the straight-line method.

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
generally treated as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases and amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownerships to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets Acquired in a Business

Combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are identified and recognised separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset
and their fair values can be measured reliably. The
cost of such intangible assets is recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Technical Know-how

Expenditure on acquired technical know-how is
capitalised and amortised using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life of 5 years, from
the date when the technical know-how is available for
use.
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Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during the
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately.
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Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Mining Rights

Mining rights, including transferred exploration and
evaluation assets, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. The mining
rights are amortised on the production quantities over
the total estimated mineral reserve. Mining rights are
written off to the profit or loss if the mining property is
abandoned.

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of nonmonetary items carried at fair
value, are included in profit or loss for the period.
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For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (i.e. the translation reserve)
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.



RABENEA

BlkLH B

74 55 AR 13 5 2 T T 0 ) 28 37 —
HRE S 2 38 B A S R AKAE I8
([ameHE ) AFEREESARES
B HABREREAHSHETAS L
B T A AR U536 T 2 HBISP RIR R A
BAERFEAIG - RS 2 AERA
FHNEGAESHEER A BUER
ZESEA - EMBH S BERE - A
FERIENBEZERBNEEFE -

AEERRE(BREETESR)RL AR
EHRRESRARDETE - R EKBER
PRET &R BIREM ([ B RKGH S ) - B
BRUAREMEERAKSEEEDRH  B—
EBLEENESTR -  HHEAERE
BEAFENETADLEELRRER
EERARFETANBE XN ERBERER
e - mE BN ENEEHRAO SR
RHEREEMRLBERAGE - AH
R WY R R AT B AL 7S 5 B O 5 4B R A
K

20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

b E YN
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Retirement Benefit Costs

Pension Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the
assets of which are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
eligible employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the ORSO Scheme. When an
employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions.
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Payments to defined contribution retirement plans
are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises of
cash in hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Share-based Payment Transactions

Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to employee compensation reserve.

For share options that are vested immediately at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in employee compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in employee compensation
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follo
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Current
and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out basis for electronic product and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method for the other inventories. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make sale.
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sales financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of financial assets and is determined at time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit

or Loss (“FVTPL”)
Financial assets at FVTPL represent investments held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit- taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bank and cash balances
and amount due from a joint venture) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the effect of discontinuing is immaterial.

Held-to-maturity Investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
revaluation reserve until the financial asset is disposed
of or determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity investments, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of the reporting period.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all of the Group’s financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments as well
as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss -
measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in profit
or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their
fair value after impairment are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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Financial Liabilities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Other Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that from an integral
part of effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.
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Convertible Bonds

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities, equity and
derivatives in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability, an equity instrument and derivative
financial instruments. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar nonconvertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and
is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in
equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the revenue recognition
policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to receive cash flows from
the assets expire or, when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset or retains a
residual interest that does not result in the retention
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and the Group retains control), the Group allocates
the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specific in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment Losses on Tangible and

Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss.
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Provision

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation, as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of the time value money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present value at
the end of the reporting period of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.

Provision for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.

Related Parties Transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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(a) Estimated Impairment of Investment
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Properties, Mining Rights, Property,
Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets
and Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Carried at Cost

The Group evaluates whether investment
properties, mining rights, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and available-for-
sale investment carried at cost have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 3. The recoverable amounts of CGUs
represent the higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs to sell or its value-in-use. The calculations
of fair value less costs to sell or value-in-use
require the use of estimates. During the year,
the Group did not provide any impairment
for investment properties, mining rights and
property, plant and equipment but provided
approximately of HK$359,000 for intangible
assets (2015: HK$599,000) and HK$460,000 for
available-for-sale investments (2015: HK$Nil).
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Estimated Useful Lives of Investment
Properties, Property, Plant and
Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Mining Rights

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation/
amortisation charges for its investment
properties, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of investment properties, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar
nature and functions and the mineral reserve
determined by independent technical adviser. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to market conditions. Management will increase
the depreciation/amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, the Group did not change the estimated
useful lives of investment properties, property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and
mining rights.

Estimated Provision for Inventories
and Write-down of Inventories to Net

Realisable Value

The management of the Group reviews the
inventories listing on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period. The
management estimates the net realisable value
for such items based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions.
During the year, the Group has provided
approximately of HK$7,058,000 for impairment
of inventories (2015: HK$2,374,000).
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(d)

(e)

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination may be uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Impairment of Trade and Other

Receivables

The impairment of trade and other receivables
are based on the ongoing evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the
outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgment. From time to time, the Group
may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade and other receivables are
called into doubts, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, provision
may be required. Certain receivables may be
initially identified as collectable, yet subsequently
become uncollectable and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade and other receivables for
which provisions are not made could affect our
results of operations. During the year, the Group
has provided approximately of HK$784,000 for
impairment on trade and other receivables (2015:
HK$206,000).
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Impairment of Goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of
the CGUs to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the CGUs and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. A change
in the estimated future cash flows and/or the
discount rate applied will result in an adjustment
to the estimated impairment provision previously
made.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2016 was HK$197,368,000 and no
impairment loss for goodwill was recognised
during the year (2015: HK$NIl).

Warranty Provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two
years on certain products and undertakes to
repair or replace items that fail to perform
satisfactorily. Significant judgement is required
when determining the warranty expenses. The
Group estimates the warranty expenses based
on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24
months. Where the warranty expenses incurred
are different from the original provision, the
difference would impact on profit or loss in the
period in which the additional warranty expenses
are incurred. During the year, the Group had
provided approximately HK$349,000 for product
warranty provision (2015: HK$249,000).

Development Costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development expenditure in Note 3 to the
financial statements. Determining the amounts
to be capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits.
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5. €@TA

(a) =HWMITAEER

(b)

5. Financial instruments

(a) Categories of Financial Instruments

2016 2015
FET FHBTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(#E&E5))
(Restated)
ERMEE Financial assets
B EWFRIE Loans and receivables
(BERITR (including bank and
e L) cash balances) 1,609,041 1,970,042
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 77,472 127,260
TEERmEE Derivative financial assets — 7
BRAREFABZED Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 10,415 38,726
1,696,928 2,136,035
SEAE Financial liabilities
AR Amortised cost 1,898,311 1,805,312
MESEBE Derivative financial liabilities 32,600 —
1,930,911 1,805,312
HEEREEEERBE (b) Financial Risk Management Objectives

AEENTI2ERTABRERKEESR
BE AHLERE BHREME
WHR - BAERRNIE  2EA
RITER - RITRBER EHR
HEAFIE - B3R A8 BRESRN
ARES o 28T AFBRER M
AEE - BZEeRTABBENER
BREIMERKR - M EEE - EMER
Rk - EERBRMABHE SRR o A
THEHIINEIEMZFRBRAOBR - K
SENEEREREEFIZENTA
BRSBTS NSREKIEEE
BASEHBERAMEZLNEETH
[ o

and Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments held for trading, available-for-
sale investments, trade and other receivables,
amount due from a joint ventures, pledged
bank deposits, bank and cash balances, trade
and other payables, borrowings, exchangeable
bonds and convertible bonds. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, other price risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group does not have significant
exposures to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency hedging significant
foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk
The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to pledged
bank deposits, bank and cash balances
and borrowings (see Notes 30 and 32
respectively for details).

Sensitivity Analysis

If interest rates on pledged bank deposits,
bank and cash balances and borrowings
as at 31 December 2016 had been 10
basis points (0.1% per annum) (2015: 10
basis points) higher/lower than the actual
effective interest rate, the Group’s profit for
the year would have been approximately
HK$399,000 (2015: HK$257,000) higher/
lower as a result of a increase/decrease in
fair value of pledged bank deposits, bank
and cash balances and borrowings.

As management considers the Group’s
exposure to the above fair value interest
rate risk is not significant, no interest-
rate swaps or other hedging activities are
undertaken by management during the year.

The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances carried at prevailing market rate.
However, such exposure is minimal to the
Group as the bank balances are all short-
term in nature.
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(iii) B mEREER
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(iii) Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity
securities and listed debt investments.
The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s other
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments listed in the PRC and Australia
and on listed debt investments.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments has been 10% (2015: 10%)
higher/lower, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,042,000 (2015: HK$3,873,000) as
a result of the changes in fair value of
investments held for trading.

If the prices of respective instruments
has been 10% (2015: 10%) higher/lower,
the Group’s other comprehensive income
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$4,839,000 (2015: HK$11,996,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investment.
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(iv) Credit Risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event of the counterparties’
failure to perform their obligations at the
end of the reporting period in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

With respect to credit risk arising from the
other financial assets of the Group which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the counterparties is limited
as the counterparties have good credit
standing and the Group does not expect
to incur significant loss for unallocated
advances/deposits from these entities.

The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales of goods are made to
customers with an appropriate credit
history. The Group’s deposits with bank and
deposits placed with financial institutions
are placed in high quality financial
institutions without significant exposure to
credit risk.

The directors consider that there is no
significant credit risk in respect of the
Group’s deposits with banks and deposits
placed with financial institutions as the
financial institutions have no record of
default payment.
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(v) Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping adequate
facilities available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the end
of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months upon

ZRHEIRmE - recognition equal their carrying balances, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.

2016 F 2016
REBRER
Undiscounted cashflow
LS
BB -E4F -ENE 4% ]
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year {year  cash flows amount

TEn TEn TRn TR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

BAREMERFE Trade and other payables - 236,685 121,000 357,685 357,685
B8 Borrowings 5.97 360,927 1,067,111 1,428,038 1,332,122
ERES Exchangeable bonds 18.04 18,560 287,680 306,240 208,504

616,72 1,475,791 2,091,963 1,898,311
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20154 2015

Undiscounted cashflow

—FUT —FiE B% ]

Weighted

average Total
effective Less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
TET TET ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BAREMEMTE Trade and other payables - 301,10 110,000 411,105 411,105
5 Borrowings 6.08 204816 1,158,403 1,383,219 1,195,872
hRES Convertible bonds 15.72 202,285 - 202,285 198,335

728,206 1,268,403 1,996,609 1,805,312
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(c) AREFE (c) Fair Value Measurements
AWFREERFAAEERE ASTES This note provides information about how the
mEERSCHBEETAAEN S Group determines fair values of various financial
% o assets and financial liabilities.

(i) RIEEEMEREA(ENE (i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
W EFSRSERSHERE assets and financial liabilities that
BIRARE are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis
AEESHLMEERSRA Some of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets

BEREHSHREALER
B TRMBEHZGAMMAE
TRScHREEREMAEN

AR E AT & E T &% and financial liabilities are determined (in

i A\ EUK) © particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

RATAHNAAE
Fair value as at
SREE 2016512731 R 20155127 31H MEGN  HERIRTZRAHE
Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets 31 December 2016 31 December 2015 hierarchy and key inputs
1) BEEEMENTEREE RN TRAES REBRREN ETRTES F1% EEMEMREAR
(Ft28) 10,415,000/ 70 38,726,003
Held for trading non-derivative  Listed equity securities Listed equity securities in Level 1 Quoted bid prces n
financial assets (Note 28) in the PRC: HK$10,415,000 Hong Kong and the PRC: o aclve ke
HK$38,726,000
) WHHERE(KS) (i REBRIMLTREZS: RESMLTREES: 18 ERNEHHEAR
5,571,000 7 10,842,000 70
Avallable-for-sale Listed equity securiies outside  Listed equity securities outside Level 1 Quoted bid prices n
investment (Note 25) Hong Kong: HK$5,571,000  Hong Kong: HK$10,842,000 anacthe maret
i) AEELPOEFIA: NERLANERIE: 18 ERNEHHEAR
42,816,000% 109,118,000/7
Listed debt instruments Listed debt instruments Lvel Quoted bid prices n
i Hong Kong: HKS42.816,000  in Hong Kong: HK$109,118,000 an el maet
(i) EAFELTEBIE: - 218 EEMEMREAR
20,245,000/ 7
Unlisted debot instruments in PRC; — Level 1 Quoted bid prces n
H822.045,000 an active market
y  liEeBAE(HEN) - BE 70007 208 EABEEEES
Derivative financial assets - Asset; HKS7,000 Level 2 Binomial Opion
Note 29 Pricing Model
4 fiEeBaE(EM) &% : 32,600,000/ - 208 EABEEEES
Derivative financial liabiies  Liablties: HK332,600,000 - Level 2 Binomil Option
Note 3 Pricing Model
MEFENLELFE 1 F2 There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
WML EIFE o HNEY - and 3 in both years.
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(ii) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on

recurring basis

Except the Group’s exchangeable bonds
with carrying amount of approximately
HK$208,504,000 which have fair value
of approximately HK$212,490,000, the
directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximately their fair values.

R2016 512 F 31 AW A AERF
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2016

F1E 28 38 @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TR FTiEx TAR THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’°000
SRHEE Financial asset
BIEEERE Investments held for trading 10,415 - - 10,415
AHHERE Available-for-sale
investments
i RAES Listed equity securities 5,571 - - 5,571
tHERIA Listed debt instruments 42,816 - - 42,816
FETEBKIE  Unlisted debt instruments 22,245 - - 22,245
@it Total 81,047 - - 81,047
CRAE Financial liability
TESRBRE Derivative financial liabilities - 32,600 - 32,600
R2015%12 A31 BRI AR ELR
Fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2015
£18 F2% £3%8 T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TAT FAT TAT THx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHEE Financial assets
BIEEBERE Investments held for trading 38,726 - - 38,726
TEEMERE Derivative financial assets - 7 - 7
AfHERE Available-for-sale
investments
il AES Listed equity securities 10,842 - - 10,842
FHEKTIA Listed debt instruments 109,118 - - 109,118
@it Total 158,686 7 - 158,693
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AEENESEEBREREASE A
BLEBEMRRS  EARRRMEAMBIRE
W - R E R RENEAEELRE

RTHEFBIFRBRELRGE  AKEAJEE
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HEC016F12A31BILEE - KREEH
KEABABLERERFTES50% A - 152016
FER2015F 12 A31 HM BB ZRMT ¢

The fair values of the financial assets
included in the level 2 above have been
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a
Binominal Option Pricing Model, with the
most significant inputs being the share
price, volatility, time to maturity, conversion
price and dividend yield.

Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within
50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2016 and
2015 were as follows:

2016 2015
FExT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

(&E7)

(Restated)

BEEBHE Total borrowings 1,540,626 1,394,207
BEBE Total assets 5,246,469 5,421,692
BE X Gearing ratio 29.4% 25.7%
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Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in fertiliser business,
magnesium product business, metallurgical flux
business and electronic product business. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2016 2015
FER FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
SHE R FEERER Sales of fertilisers products 1,399,088 1,523,281
HESBHFEEM Sales of magnesium products 910,984 760,502
65 JoR 0 7B 7= Sales of metallurgical flux products 47,494 72,913
HEETER Sales of electronic products 231,655 158,906
2,589,221 2,515,602

o EBE R 8. Segment Information

FEIRFAE K BERRF AR AR R ITER
BE(ERLERRE)BSZERAER
REER - REBREBEREYHHRE LR
FYWBE LB DAL ¢

- BEREMES
TBEEMRD
- RIGEI X
- BFEMEH
BRARKEZAIREDMERR T2 °

Information reported to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on the operating
divisions. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

- Fertiliser business

- Magnesium product business
- Metallurgical flux business

- Electronic product business

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
is presented below.
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DEUA R ELE Segment Revenue and Results
AREBIZAIRED I 2 WA REE DTN The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
™o and results by reportable segments.
HZE2016F 12 A1 HIEFE : For the year ended 31 December 2016:
BERREKE 2SREEREE RABHEY EFEREEK CH
Magnesium Metallurgical Electronic
Fertiliser product flux product
business business business business Total
TEL TEL TEL T T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
GELION Segment revenue 1,399,088 910,984 62,882 231,655 2,604,609
AEUEYPA Inter-segment revenue - - (15,388) - (15,388)

RENFEFHMA  Revenue from external

customers 1,399,088 910,984 47,494 231,655 2,589,221
EES Segment results 351,118 263,112 22,773 (12,632) 624,371
HiFHA Other income, net 54,458
FRTHER Central administrative costs (106,068)
fElEAERalEFIREE Share of profit and losses

of joint ventures 1,695
fEfi—MEZARBE  Share of loss of an

associate (1)
HBER Finance costs (117,564)

BRATERATAT Profit before income tax 456,891
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HZE20156F 12 A31 HILEE ¢

For the year ended 31 December 2015:

% SEEERER  f % ETERER
Magnesium Metallurgical Electronic
Fertiliser product flux product
business business business business Total
TR T T T TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(EE5)
(Restated)
LR LON Segment revenue 1,523,281 760,502 87,070 158,906 2,529,759
AHEBA Inter-segment revenue - - (14,157) - (14,157)
KENIEFHMA  Revenue from external
customers 1,623,281 760,502 72,913 158,906 2,515,602
PHEE Segment results 368,606 258,087 27,952 (30,519) 624,126
HiiFHA Other income, net 29,202
SENERE Gain on bargain purchase 28,746 28,746
FRITHER Central administrative costs (78,364)
HE—RMERTZ  Gainon disposal of a
W& subsidiary 179
EEAERaER K Share of profits and losses
B8 of joint ventures 1760
R—HEERAZ Impairment of investment in
RERE a joint venture (180)
ElE—TE AR Share of loss of an
B associate 4)
MHER Finance costs (87,390)
BT A& R Profit before income tax 518,075

EX25 2 HBKA - HREINBES B
EEZBA - HBEXSHRATRE]

~
AV

ARENHZEHBRREAEE K
HE - DEEEERLES AP RITERE
RBRBERFHM - EaFRA - SEKRE
Wa - HE-RHMNBEARZKE - BIEE
ERmgMEEERE R-—BaEARZE
BERE  BE—HBEQAREE BKE
REMEHRAS)BRATEDEZEE - It
RATZLERRERSUAHERALER
ReHE DRI RBE 275 -

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into at arm’s length.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Segment results represent the results from each
segment without allocation of central administrative
costs including directors’ emoluments, other net
income, gain on bargain purchase, gain on disposal
of a subsidiary, share of profits and losses of joint
ventures, impairment of investment in a joint venture,
share of loss of an associate, finance costs and
income tax expense. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

PHEERERE Segment Assets and Liabilities
M2016F 12 A1 Bz HEERBEM The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
HEZAIEFERIBRESH 2ELRME 2016 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
U by reportable segments are as follows:
BEEH  SEBEER RALH EtER ABAT AR At
3 £ 5% 5%
Magnesium Electronic
Fertiliser product Metallurgical product Total
business  business flux business  business segment Unallocated Total
TR TR TER TR TER TET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
HHEE Segment assets 1,331,615 1,899,550 645,179 198,233 4,074,577 1,171,892 5,246,469
HHEE Segment liablities 384,707 466,308 154,745 212,809 1,219,069 972,934 2,192,003
BRFR Capital expenditure 402,934 86,573 11,019 908 501,434 30,656 532,090

R2015F 12 A1 Bz BEERAEAH
HEZBLFERAREDBZEARARX
s

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2015 and capital expenditure for the year then ended
by reportable segments are as follows:

Magnesium Electronic

Fertiliser product  Metallurgical product

business business  flux business business segment  Unallocated
ThL THT T AT Tin T BT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&&51) (& 55 (&&5)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
HHEE Segment assets 954,080 1,772,216 692,714 210,163 3,629,173 1,792,519 5,421,692
P48k Segment liabilities 124,189 583,864 155,686 239,308 1,108,047 964,128 2,057,170
BRFX Capital expenditure 145,118 61,593 19,249 1,808 227,768 582 228,350




RERERDBRRALER D MBEHALER
ZBIE:

- KBREREYME SBEEERE R1TR
ReEBpMEBbREREE 81
WE - BELSRE  BYEEMEM
FENRIASN - FTEBEEHDEEE A

EOEE R

- BiTEeRAE UEBRES X
Rz BB REMENRIEN -
BEOHEEA REDE

EARXBREENE BERRBEORE
MEHERE - FREETYE  BE IR
BIERITERAERNESIN  IBEEAXAHEXH

DEREDE °

HZE2016F 12 A1 BIEFE  REBW
BHNBARERBDEEZEARZ LM FF
447 275 °
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For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than investment properties, investments
held for trading, bank and cash balances and
other assets for corporate use which including
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and other receivables; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than derivative financial liabilities,
exchangeable bonds, borrowings for corporate
use and other payables.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property,
plant and equipment and land use rights. Except for
the additions to certain property, plant and equipment
for administrative purposes, all the capital expenditure
was allocated to segments.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group’s capital expenditure related to non-current
assets from acquisition of subsidiaries was stated in
Note 44.
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Hit o &R Other Segment Information
HE2016F 12 A31 HIEFE - For the year ended 31 December 2016:

REEH  tEEER RARA

£% &% % BTEREH ) fit
Magnesium Electronic
Fertiliser product Metallurgical product
business business flux business business  Unallocated Total
ThER ThER THER TR TR ThER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

UER T Depreciation of property,

ARENENE plant and equipment and
investment properties 58,697 30,154 11,495 1,146 5,568 113,060
THERE FEER  Amortisation of land use rights,
B EEEY mining rights and intangible
assets 824 2,988 2,062 879 9,565 16,318

EERZNARE Impairment of development

costs - - - 359 - 359
FERR Provision for inventories - - - 7,058 - 7,058
EnREik Product warranty provision - - - 349 - 349
BERAERRERR Reversal of unutilised product

warranty provision - - - (72) - (72)
AHLERERE Impaiment of an available-

for-sale investment - - - - 460 460

BOEBEIGUERE  Reversal of witten off of

other receivables - - - (5,495) - (5,495)
BOZ5EUGUERE  Reversal of impaiment
Rt and written off of trade
receivables - (279) - - - (279)
BHRYGERE Impairment of trade
receivables - 192 - 592 - 784

LENE  BER (Gain)/loss on disposal of
SENH(KE)/BE  property, plant and

equipment (225) - 62 (89) (5) (257)
RIEEEREN Net realised and unrealised
BERRAER gain on investments held
et for trading - - - - (8,791) (8,791)

REEHERE Write-back of long-aged
accruals - (3,059) - - - (3,059)

FERAT Income tax expenses 81,837 56,790 4,812 (27) 427 143,839




20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

b E YN
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE2016% 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE2015F 12 A31 HIEFE ¢ For the year ended 31 December 2015:

VEERT Electronic

Fertiliser product Metallurgical product
business business  flux business business Unallocated Total
T Thn i BT ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ER Depreciation of property,

MRENENE plant and equipment and
investment properties 43,785 11,731 10,428 5,945 6,996 78,885
DHEFE FBER  Amortisation of land use rights,
BYEERY mining rights and intangible
assets 226 2,197 13,808 904 377 17,612
RERARE Impairment of development
costs - - - 599 - 599
FERE Impairment of inventories - - - 2,374 i 2,374
ERRERE Product warranty provision - - - 249 - 249

BEASBERRERSE Reversal of unutiised product
warranty provision - - - (500) - (600)

BEZSEUGUERE  Reversal of impaiment of trade

recelvables - - - (229) - (229)
BARUFERE Impairment of trade
receivables - - - 206 - 206

HENE BER Gain on disposal of property,

Bl plant and equipment - (169) (37) ?) 82) (290)
REEEREN Realised and unrealised gain
BEERAZERE  oninvestments held for
frading - - - . (6,875) (6,875)

FEHAY Income tax expense 89,040 57,386 5,643 (37) 2,974 155,006
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HEER Geographical Information

B E2016F K20156F 12 A31 B ILFE During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
AEEFERFHEERASEETZRA the Group mainly operated in the PRC and most of the
Bk g R mR2016F12A318 & Group’s revenue are derived from the PRC and most
201512 A31H » A5 B KM IER D of non-current assets of the Group are located in
BEOUNTE HIEREAEERMR the PRC as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
EIOMEEREEDN - 2015. No analysis of the Group’s result and assets by

geographical area is disclosed.

FEEFER Information about Major Customers
R #E =220164F 2015912 A381H Lt No information about major customers is presented
FETEHSEMANE-—FP 2HEBRARAE as no single customer contributed over 10% of the
BE@BIWAZ10% AT EEHEETERR total revenue of the Group during the years ended 31
WERZT] - December 2016 and 2015.
9. HtWm=EIEFE 9. Other Gains or Losses, Net
2016 2015
FTET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&&E7)
(Restated)
FEMA Interest income 23,970 12,094
A2 A Dividend income 769 200
HETHEERE RS Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments 2,848 -
HEDE  MENMRBENKRZ Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 257 -
B B Government subsidy 2,198 -
TRTETEAREEZS Change in fair value of financial
derivatives (487) (236)
BTN Sundry income 10,059 7,692
$HE BER Sales of scrap materials 14,056 11,679
R E WA Service fee income 3,729 3,773
HE— M B AR W Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - 179
57,399 35,381




20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

b E YN
Notes to the Financial Statements

BZE20165 12 31 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. MK EH 10. Finance Costs
2016 2015
FHExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR ESZFERY Interest expenses on convertible bonds 13,408 37,703
LIHBEERZFEAX Interest expenses on listed
subordinated notes 55,986 27,835
AERESF AL Interest expenses on exchangeable
bonds 23,375 -
ANRSFRNEZEEEY Interest on borrowings wholly
BEEMFE repayable within five years 24,795 14,086
BREFREEERY Interest on borrowings wholly
BEHFE repayable after five years 9,083 17,390
BER AN B Total borrowing costs 126,647 97,014
B EREEREE Less: amount capitalised in the cost
RAER 2 &8 of qualifying assets (9,083) (9,624)
117,564 87,390
BAESZMEFHERNELEL X BEF5.55% The weighted average capitalisation rate of fund borrowed

(20154 : B 5.53%) ° generally is 5.55% per annum (2015: 5.53% per annum).
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11. FIBHAxX 11. Income Tax Expense
RigeBEhEMEEKRERAMG, (G The amount of income tax expense charged/(credited)
A)BIFTIS B 2 8RR IR - to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income represents:

2016 2015
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

BVERTR IR - Current tax:

—BEREH - Hong Kong Profits Tax - 2,974
— B ERER - PRC Enterprises Income Tax 146,287 155,474

— HAh, - Others 22 13
146,309 158,461

IEERLIE (MIFE37) Deferred taxation (Note 37) (2,470) (3,455)
143,839 155,006

(a) BFEFBH (a) Hong Kong Profits Tax
HBEMEHIEEZE 2016 F k2015 Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
F12A31BIEFE 2 ERE S on the estimated assessable profits for the
FZ216.5%E - BRERBWEE years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. No
ERERBEF - WEZE2016F 12 A tax is payable for the year ended 31 December
31 BIEFEBAMEMBIA(2015 2016 (2015: HK$2,974,000) since there was no
2,974,000 7T) ° assessable profit generated in Hong Kong.

(b) FEILEMEHR (b) The PRC Enterprise Income Tax
REIERENNEEE2016F K& The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at
2015 12 A31 BIEFE 2 (HEtER 25% on the estimated assessable profits arising
MomAZ25%sTE © in the PRC for the years ended 31 December

2016 and 2015.

(c) BINERBH (c) Overseas Income Tax
KA DIRBERERERRAEREE The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
HETMR L AEREBRAR - I Islands as an exempted company with limited
BUHERECHUMNFEFENEH - & liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
RANEBRELZBEESR LB QA Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
DIRBREBRZESEBENERNRE Cayman lslands income tax. The Company’s
ST L - T AEER S B AN 2 R B I B subsidiaries established in the British Virgin
EFTSHE © Islands were incorporated under the International

Business Companies Act of the British Virgin
Islands and, are exempted from British Virgin
Islands income tax.
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The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using a

™ tax rate of 25%, the standard income tax rate of the
PRC enterprises, as follows:
2016 2015
FEx FHBT
HK$’000 % HK$’000
BR P15 T A& A1 Profit before income tax 456,891 518,075
REAMEHHE25%  Tax charge at applicable
(20154 : 25%) income tax rate of
ATEEBIE 25% (2015: 25%) 114,223 25.0 129,519 25.0
REAMENEREE LR Effect of different tax
=PSRN B rates of subsidiaries
ZRE operating in other
jurisdictions 6,613 1.4 (9,894) (1.9)
BERBHRAZ Tax effect of income not
BB E taxable for tax
purpose (4,781) (1.0) (8,098) (0.6)
BIEEERTER Share of losses of joint
ventures (280) (0.1) (290) (0.1)
AR HERS Tax effect of expenses
BB E not deductible for tax
purpose 19,955 4.4 34,089 6.6
AR AR Utilisation of previous
2T E B unrecognised tax
losses (3,845) (0.8) (1,911) (0.4)
KRR hETHIE Tax effect of estimated
BENTKEE tax losses not
recognised 11,954 2.6 6,591 1.3
PriSHiF % Income tax expense 143,839 31.4 155,006 29.9

MR2016F 12831 H ZEB RAER M
T8 &5 18 49737,214,000 JjT(20154F :
723,989,000 7 7T ) A] 4% 8 LA K §5 K 2R FE R
i % F o #1266,561,000% JT(20154F -
265,249,000/ 7T ) 2 BiIE B B K 5 B E
FERzHGHFERTAFRIE MY
470,653,000/ 7T(20154F : 458,740,000
BIT) 2 RIARIBRIF ER BRI EE - AR
RBAVBREZERBENTEAEAL
HIBBEYE  NZSEWHBABBECRLER

TE Y s I AR HERR o

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$737,214,000 (2015:
HK$723,989,000), which can be carried forward to
offset future taxable profit. Tax losses of approximately
HK$266,561,000 (2015: HK$265,249,000) will expire
after five years from the year of assessment they relate
to while tax losses of approximately HK$470,653,000
(2015: HK$458,740,000) can be carried forward
indefinitely. The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses
has not been recognised as it is not considered
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise the unused tax losses.
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12. FRHEF 12. Profit for the Year
FRHEFMENGR(EE) T EA Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
2016
TET
HK$’000
(lr=7))
(Restated)
TERY® Wages and salaries 188,443 185,686
ETYEEREE 2 BERE Share options granted to directors and
employees 1,075 2,528
T EBRHFGRKETEIFR Payment to defined contribution
retirement plans 8,816 7,038
BEIRKN(BEESHH) Total staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 198,334 195,252
1% A 355 A Auditors’ remuneration
%V&%V*EF@IW Audit and audit related work
BEeMmEBMERA - HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 3,573 1,649
— E iz LA - other auditor 1,700 2,810
3F%7f?lf’ﬁ Non-audit work
HEgtiERMERA - HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 184 184
— Hith % & E - other auditor - _
ITE N Depreciation and amortisation 129,378 96,397
HEME BEREEZ Net gain on disposal of property,
Wa %8 plant and equipment (257) (290)
BEEEREND EH Iz Realised gain on investments held
for trading (9,568) (2,196)
BEBEERERNKER Unrealised loss/(gain) on investments
BE/ (Ra) held for trading 777 (4,679)
GFENRAERAEYH Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense 1,616,840 1,524,007
T REFZESHANHES Operating lease rentals in respect
of land and buildings 7,495 7,350
N—EEBERRIZIRERE Impairment of investment in a joint venture = 180
BB R AR Impairment of development costs 359 599
FERE Provision for inventories 7,058 2374
EmRERE Product warranty provision 349 249
EHSERT oA D Write-back of long—aged accruals (3,059) _
ROl k8 R IR BB Reversal of unutilised warranty provision (72) (500)
B0 Z 5 EWFERERMEE Reversal of impairment and
written off of trade receivables (279) (229)
=0 W ECENRE Impairment of trade receivables 784 206
2 0V EL b JB W FRIE R Reversal of written off of other receivables (5,495) -
Al HERERE Impairment of an available-for-sale
investment 460 -
HEHEY Research and development expenses:
[z &=l g W Development costs amortised 397 511
R R AR E Impairment of development costs 359 599
KEFLH Current year expenditure 19,342 17,524
ZEBEUINERS Gain on bargain purchase - (28,746)




i

ERRISOEDIETA - AEEAEPEE
B [7)— JE U & SR KR 3R - 2%
HEBN ERERG S - RIBE BT
RE - NEEREEHSH14% M %aT
SR WARRFRETRZIN - AEER
ERARERIXNEZERERREMNZE
F - ZIBEA R ERERKET S 8 ERIK
BEMEZHEZSEME -

REEDAERBREELHRESTE -
BESFTEIBR EEMRGTE  BELE
AAER - RIBUESTE  AEERHE
EREREASERERFMELEDIEN
RREEBWRAZSRIEAMZAEER - A
2014F6 1B AEBEREEHRRZ
FRASA1,50087T -

HZ2016F 12 A31 BILFE - AEER £
MEEZ S EIEH A AR EE4) 8,816,000
7 TT(20154F : 7,088,000 7T ) © $22016
F12A31 8 AEBE W EEFESEM
SR WA ZRAT A AR D AN R B R TR Y 3R
(20154 : TEIL) ©
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As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement
plan for its employees in the PRC, which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group contributes approximately
14% of the employees’ salary as specified by the local
government, and the Group has no future obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plan is responsible for the entire
pension obligations to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the MPF Scheme, a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and its Hong
Kong employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Since
1 June 2014, both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
aggregate amount of the Group’s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes was approximately
HK$8,816,000 (2015: HK$7,038,000). As at 31
December 2016, the Group was not entitled to any
forfeited contributions to reduce the Group’s future
contributions (2015: HK$Nil).
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13. E5 FETHAEBREEFHMKR 13. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

BEeSHHMAL Employees’ Emoluments and Individuals
with Highest Emoluments
(a) EE=HTH (a) Directors’ Emoluments

HE2016F12A31BILFERES
ZHMEI T

The emoluments of each director for the year
ended 31 December 2016 is set below:

EXfRfe
e §¢ ERE PRI Ch
Employer’s
contribution
Share to pension
Fees Salaries options scheme Total
FET TEx TER TEx TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HTESE Executive directors
WXE(FE) Chi Wen Fu (Chairman) - 1,300 15 18 1,333
R (78 EA) Shum Sai Chit (CEO) - 650 12 18 680
HES Chi Bi Fen - 650 12 18 680
BE Yang Yuchuan' - 380 275 10 665
FHITES Non-executive director
PEE Guo Mengyong 35 - 4 - 39
BIFGTES Independent non-executive
directors
Bmx Kwong Ping Man 75 - 4 - 79
Bt Sheng Hong 35 - 4 - 39
ks Lau Chi Kit 240 - 144 - 384
385 2,980 470 64 3,899

1. BR2016F8A48ET -

1 Resigned on 4 August 2016.
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HZE20156F12 A1 HILFERES The emoluments of each director for the year
ZEHMET T ended 31 December 2015 is set below:

EE3
ERE HELS
Employer’s
contribution

Share to pension
Fees Salaries options scheme Total
TBR THx THET TER THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

HITES Executive directors
BXE(LE) Chi Wen Fu (Chairman) - 1,300 42 18 1,360
(TR E) Shum Sai Chit (CEO) - 650 32 18 700
HES Chi Bi Fen - 650 32 18 700
BE)I Yang Yuchuan - 650 818 18 1,486
FHTES Non-executive director
DEE Guo Mengyong 35 - 10 - 45
BUFHTES Independent non-executive

directors
BRx Kwong Ping Man 75 - 10 - 85
Ry Sheng Hong 35 - 10 - 45
EIES Lau Chi Kit 240 - 273 - 513

385 3,250 1,227 72 4,934
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(b) EURSFMAL
RER ZEESNGZETFHNALTE
FEAGL(20154F 2 )RR R ESE -
EHEZEMSOOMER EXHE -
FRNENTHT 24020154 : 3
)AL ZEET -

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year included
1 (2015: 2) director of the Company whose
directors’ emoluments are disclosed in the above
analysis. The emoluments payable to the rest
4 (2015: 3) individuals during the year are as
follows:

2016
TET
HK$’000

2015

TR
HK$’000

EXHE - BE

Basic salaries, share options,

B2 R EYFI= other allowances and benefits in kind 5,001 3,357

BARESERA—TREMER Pension costs-defined
&l contribution plan 153 106
5,154 3,463

Z4GI(2016%F L) HEmHF M A L=
EVE BB PO A T8RS

The emoluments of the 4 (2015: 3) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

AB

Number of individuals

£ % 1,000,000 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 1 1

1,000,001 8T HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7C 3 2
4 3

(¢) #EH =20164F 2015124318 Ik
FE  AEBEUERARNERRES
A== EA LT SEEEA N
AREB S MARE B EE -
SIERBEBEE - REE2016F &
2015F 12 A1 HIEFE - HEAR
AEERAUGSTMATRERE
S EREERREAME -

(c)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors of the Company and the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office. There was no director of the
Company and the five highest paid individuals
agreed to waive or waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.



14. KB

a)

KA EETEZREE2016F12
A 31H It F &k 7] 3% B.(2015
F:ARPBESRRENAERES
f% & AR 1.3l - & 59,774,000
BIL) e

FREHAERINARAEDRRD
LEERMBRE
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14. Dividend

a) The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016 (2015: the directors of the
Company proposed final dividend of 1.3HK cents
per ordinary share, totalling HK$59,774,000).

b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year:

2016 2015
TR T
HK$’°000 HK$’000

FAEREDRAE ©  Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
kA 2015 F RARAR 2 2015 final dividend of 1.3 HK cents

TR @A 1.3781L per ordinary share
(20154 : &1 (2015: 2014 final dividend of
2014 FRHE B 0.5 HK cents per ordinary share)

BRCEEA0.581l)

59,774 21,797

REZE2016F12 A31BILFEE @ B
DIRFLE E2014F 12 A31H L F
EEMNIZCEAHEEE 208K
BT BRI G 2O/ &
217,967,890 % & B % - R 20154
WETRALRR ©

During the year ended 31 December 2015, bonus
issue of 217,967,890 ordinary shares was also
distributed on the basis of 1 new share for every
20 existing ordinary shares on the record date as
declared for the year ended 31 December 2014.
No bonus issue was declared in 2015.
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15. SREF
(@) EX
FRERBFZRERRATESG AL
HERGF  RUERNBBHTLBR
MEFHEETE -

15. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2016 2015

(&E75))
(restated)
RATHEB AEIEFA Profit for the year attributable to
w A (FET) owners of the Company (HK$’000) 302,334 314,479
BEATE AR N Weighted average number of ordinary
FHE(FR) shares in issue (thousand shares) 4,599,751 4,219,571
BRERET Basic earnings per share
(BB (HK cents per share) 6.57 7.45
(b) #8 (b) Diluted

BREERNERRBEMAESIE
BEEBR ARBEEITEBRN
BYFHHTE - ARBBE=FEHEE
BEEER  BRE  TERESK
AHRRRE % (2015 © MME : BIRE K&
B ES) o

SUEBREMS - AR RRE N ARITE
BREMMz RBRESEETS
B UBEARAAEAARRAH
Nz FATEETE)BANKRD
B - EXFEENRODEE
B R R TTE RB A A P 1T AL D 8L B
TELLER ©

ARERETEESNEE2016F
12A3TBLEFEFENRD FHIHE -
Wt E SRS B PRI ERRITE
ANQ R BB AR -

Diluted earnings per share is calculated
by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has three categories
of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share
options, exchangeable bonds and convertible
bonds (2015: two categories: share options and
convertible bonds).

For the share options, a calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market price of the Company’s shares
during the period) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

The computation of diluted earnings per share
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options because the exercise price of
those share options was higher than the average
market price of shares for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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RAEBRESFRATRRESTS - A For the exchangeable bonds and convertible
REARBEIERITERESEN bonds, the effect of which was anti-dilutive and
FREHER(2015F : AR ATHEAR the convertible bonds were fully redeemed during
BEHFAEREERE) WA REFTA the year (2015: the effect of convertible bonds
EREERFINGTER - was anti-dilutive), they were not included in the

calculation of diluted earnings per share.

2016 2015

(&&E7)
(restated)
KAEHER AEWG Profit for the year attributable to
FREMN(FET) owners of the Company (HK$’000) 302,334 314,479
BETEBBRINEFSE. Weighted average number of ordinary
(F8) shares in issue (thousand shares) 4,599,751 4,219,571
TEBAIAEEH AR (TAL)  Adjustment for share options
(thousand shares) - 72,364
BixEE R LR Weighted average number of ordinary
e (%) shares for diluted earnings per share
(thousand shares) 4,599,751 4,291,935
SR ERF Diluted earnings per share
(BREEMW) (HK cents per share) 6.57 7.33
16. T i fF AR 16. Land Use Rights
REBERTMERAET 2 R ERMNEE The Group’s interests in land use rights represent
MEMR  EEREEmFESWHT prepaid operating lease payments and their net

carrying values are analysed as follows:

2016 2015
FTERT TAT
HK$’°000 HK$’000

AR BIESIEREA 0 In the PRC, held on:

I ERTE KD Medium term leases 211,469 177,159
mMENEE Current assets 4,723 4,420
FEMBEE Non-current assets 206,746 172,739

211,469 177,159
MR2016F12A31H: K M E A % As at 31 December 2016, land use rights with a
103,855,0007% JT(20154 : 114,167,000 carrying amount of approximately HK$103,855,000
Bz L RECEARITEE ZIER (2015: HK$114,167,000) have been pledged to secure

(FI7E32) bank borrowings (Note 32).



HEFAEEEZREMRAT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

S ey
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE20165F 12 31 HIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

17. % - BERRE 17. Property, Plant and Equipment
HELHRET GiR BRIR
(W) BENERE KEREE HOERR IARER it} i (i) 3
Leasehold
land and Furniture Construction-
buildings Leasehold Plant and and office Tooling Motor in-progress
(note (i))  improvements machinery equipment  and moulds vehicles Ship (note (ii]) Total

An A Thn TAn TAn Thn Tin Thn Thn
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ik Cost
ROBEIAIE Asat 1 January 2015 165,003 26t 547,106 8404 - 9182 Lig! 1002.74 171128
EHENG! Acaquistion of subsidares
(FEapR) Noteddpl (o) 26,831 1671 8,670 1905 2857 23U - - 325,678
5 Addifons %748 - 60,493 79 30 3% - 151712 25008
£ Translers 10,621 - 185427 - - - - (288,048 -
i Disposals - - (148) (386) (125) (1,902 () - (3,085
Eige Exchange alignment 20129 (1,069 (3178 (187 (80) (t57) (2) (10593 (99,29
ROSE12R31  Asat 3t December 2015
Rot6E1A1R and 1 January 2016 510,164 A 41 844,169 12995 3,061 12303 380 845,345 2,262,791
YENELT Acquistion of 2 subsidiary
(i 440) (Note 443 198 - i - - - - - 6,665
s Additons 5031 ] u % 556 2756 - 1438 479013
B Transters 67 - 159,450 80 - - (140922 -
i Disposals - 028 g ) {4015] - - 6894
EiAE Exchenge algnment (3%,177) .79 (10,130 239 (1,698) (961) (2) (12,142) (186,197)
20165128318  As at 31 December 2016 485,888 22,001 938,961 12,025 1,402 10,083 354 1,074,664 2,545,378
ZitfERAE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment
ROBEIRIR  Asatt January 2015 46,455 836 250978 7,608 - 5608 808 - 334673
FpiE Oherge for the year 8626 0 61,364 1079 1,648 1647 150 - 75,643
ek Eiminated on disposel - - (14 (386) (125) (1.846] (t49) - 2,049
Eige Exchange aignment 319 (1,026 (13.654) [ - 1 (19 - (17583
ROSE12R318  Asat 3t December 2015
ROBE1E1E and f January 2016 5,763 2009 208,746 7.954 150 5188 30 - 39782
FpiE Oherge for the year 15,348 0 80,33 1417 1,280 193 - - 110,013
ek Eiminated on disposel - - (.28 ) (320) (2,094 - - (873
Epge Exchange aignment (5.831) (.44 (29,369 (2,038] (184) 544 (2) - (.1
H20165127348  As at 31 December 2016 62,280 21505 356,429 1,03 621 3,584 354 - 451,809
BERE Net carrying values
H20165128318  Asat 31 December 2016 423,608 496 582,582 4,989 781 6,499 - 1,074,664 2,093,569
ROSE12R 318 Asat 3t December 2015 457401 1,165 545,403 5001 15%9 7115 - 8535 1863009
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notes:

(

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings at the end of the reporting period are
analysed as follows:

2016 2015
FHT F&T

HK$’°000 HK$’000

BBEFHAEL Medium term leases in Hong Kong 6,965 7,245
B BRAE 49 Medium term leases in the PRC 416,643 450,156
423,608 457,401

R2016F 128310 7 & 8 A 4
9,083,000/ JT(20154F : 9,624,000
TL)WERNME R ATERETLRE - BEEE
TITRZOWHWT :

(if)

As at 31 December 2016, interest expenses of
approximately HK$9,083,000 (2015: HK$9,624,000)
was capitalised and included in construction-in-
progress. An analysis of construction-in-progress is as
follows:

2016 2015

FEx FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

HETHRETF Leasehold land and buildings 328,450 160,132
TR T 1 2% Plant and machinery 746,214 685,213
1,074,664 845,345

R2016412A31H B W & A 4
203,284,000 7T(20154F : 163,650,000
BTIZHEL M RETF BERRHBEIE
BIRITEE 2K (HES2) °

REE2016F K20155F 12 A31 B IEF
¥ ASEESRABMERESRBEARLG
AEFEREMEEKZRER

(i)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2016, leasehold land and
buildings and plant and machinery with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$203,284,000 (2015:
HK$163,650,000) have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings (Note 32).

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, the directors of the Group considered that
no impairment loss should be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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18.

RAFEZYE - BE MR EZERFH

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment

U adopted for the current year are as follows:
—MHETHREF HEHANH 34 F - - Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of
&P E RS lease terms or
34 years
— MEEE 2E5F - Leasehold improvements 2 to 5 years
— B Mg 4FE 25 - Plant and machinery 4 to 25 years
— BRI AERE 4FE34F - Furniture and office equipment 4 to 34 years
— AE 4BTHF - Motor vehicles 4 to 7 years
— fuAf 54 - Ship 5 years
— TEREKEA 24 - Tooling and moulds 2 years
REY= 18. Investment Properties
FET
HK$’000
R Cost
R20154F1A1H As at 1 January 2015 164,060
B 5, 58 B Exchange alignment (7,392)
R2015F12 A31 B K As at 31 December 2015 and
201641 A1H 1 January 2016 156,668
bE 3 Exchange alignment (10,660)
H2016 FE12H31H As at 31 December 2016 146,008
ZtinE Accumulated depreciation
R20159F1A1H As at 1 January 2015 29,448
FHTE Charge for the year 3,242
PE 5 ga % Exchange alignment (1,458)
201512 31 H X As at 31 December 2015 and
20164F1 A1H 1 January 2016 31,232
FRNE Charge for the year 3,048
BE 3 3 B Exchange alignment (2,273)
R20165127831H As at 31 December 2016 32,007
SR FE Net carrying values
R2016512831H As at 31 December 2016 114,001
RK2015412 A31H As at 31 December 2015 125,436




RAMEEATENEE 8 E-HK
E=HERMES -

Tl EMERHERAUNEGETE -
HEYHENGFTAFERAFHN T43548
ﬁE o

MR2016F 12 A31H » AEERKEYWHEZ
N 1E#) A 144,381,000 T(20154F ¢
138,924,000 7T ) o fh{E B B AR & E &
MiEs By aEREEMED - RIEERE
B2EBUAERGHEMBL ZEERS
BIEH 2 ER  AEBZBEMER
2016 F 2015412 A1 B2 REERAE
A e

R E 220164 %2015 12 A31 8 |4
B BREMESEEEATABESUA -

B EMENREERR
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The investment properties represent the buildings
related to phase one, phase two and phase three of
the Yunxiao properties.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight line basis over the lease term. The estimated
useful life of the investment properties range from 43
to 48 years.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2016 was approximately HK$144,381,000
(2015: HK$138,924,000). The valuation was performed
by independent qualified valuers not connected with
the Group. Based on the result of management’s
assessment by making reference to the valuation report
issued by the independent qualified valuers, there is
no impairment on the carrying value of the Group’s
investment properties as at 31 December 2016 and
2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
no rental income was generated from investment
properties.

The carrying value of investment properties shown
above comprise:

2016 2015
FTERT TAT
HK$’°000 HK$’000

EHE, RESEFH

In the PRC, held on:
FRERFE 4 Medium term lease

114,001 125,436
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19. & 19. Goodwiill
2016
FER
HK$’°000
REA] At the beginning of year 197,144 -
U BE BT BB A Bl (M5 44) Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 44) 224 197,144
RER At the end of year 197,368 197,144
SREAEERSEFEU([REELS Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating

1) 2 BB IR AT R0 Bl -

units (“CGU”) identified according to business segment

as follows:
2016 2015
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TBEERES() Magnesium product business (i) 197,144 197,144
HAth Z T (i) Other business (ii) 224 -
197,368 197,144

iy #FHZE2015F12A31MBILEFE " &

ENhREESERER AR ([
BIBR | B& 5 5% - 601)51.46% #E

éﬁﬁé’i(%yﬁﬂﬁW?M) Y i
BEBER 2 B REENBRIIBILA
tHFeYESBEERNNEH
FEAE /EF%E%%EDD%% IS e
EREREEEXMESSWMAEME
i%ZEKX’%‘éJ:' EZL%&EE a0}
YWm e BHREE R ENRHEK
AEEREECFRREEE - £
BEVEREARARESIE MR
BEREE NEHNREREET -

BFERBAMAIRES9.46% - THEH
BRR e RERADRERERS

F'EﬁWﬁﬂﬂ’]i"'ﬁiﬁﬁ%%'@&ﬁﬁﬂ{ﬂ%
BIRETE - FETECAEBENEM
ngﬁj*’i/i&fﬁ”/,|L]\/ffﬁﬁél’\j1ﬁg‘|'
(BREBEHEERENE) mEHE
HEIREBEZEMNBENRERARD
AESHMSERMOESREL - A2
AESMAE FNZERINEESF
FH TSR RMmELERLTKE
SREMETE o

ATEEEZARET
Frskz EA(E °

2EFRMS L

U]

During the year ended 31 December 2015, goodwill
was resulted from the acquisition of 51.46% equity
interest of Group Sense (International) Limited (“GSIL”)
(stock code: 601) (Please refer to Note 44 for detailed
information). The business strategy of acquisition of
GSIL is to identify new business opportunities in the
magnesium industry on a separate listing platform
to focus on the magnesium product business and
in particular future development of chain model of
circular economy in magnesium and magnesium
product related business. The recoverable amount of
this CGU is determined based on the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of value in use uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the directors
of the Company covering a five-year period, and a
pre-tax discount rate of 9.46% per annum. Cash flow
projections during the budget period are based on the
same expected gross margins and raw material price
inflation the budget period. Other key assumptions for
calculation of the value in use relate to the estimation
of cash inflow/outflow which include budgeted sales
and gross profit margin, such estimation is based on
the unit’s past performance and the expectation of the
directors of the Company for the market development.
The directors of the Company believes that any
reasonable change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount.

The fair value of GSIL is calculated by reference to bid
prices quoted in active market.



(if)

REZE2016F 1231 HIEFEA -
BEETHWEI AT —EBEERA
RIEMBRAREMEE(ELERG
2HKIFE44) - FOTT Z B EIEHR
NENEBEBEE FRAWESED
EAAEEZ L BEEASEEES K
ReALERREEBN ZHEREF
—IRMETT c ZEEEABM 2T
B¢ 5 IR IE & AR B & B fE 2 Bt
BEEAREE AFHE S RETEA
SECZAFEREE UESFEBREA
ARIR % 0.86% MEE - THEEEFEMIE
R ETER TR IEEEEE HH R E
ENEHEMNEREMAHERBIRE
o BHAEFEREENEMEIER
FHRBEERA FRENGET(BIE
TEEEEELERNEK)  mABG
TR EZEMNBAENKIRNARNRE
ERMBEEENBHEL - ARAE
FiEE  AWZERENAEZHY
N ENREEEAEBR T RS
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, goodwill
was resulted from the acquisition of the entire equity
interest of ¥ M —/ZEHKBERAF (Please refer to
Note 44 for detailed information). ¥ — /&E& AR
A\ is engaged in the port operation. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to diversify
the Group’s business and enhance long-term growth
potential of the Group. The recoverable amount of this
CGU is determined based on a value in use calculation
which use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period, and a pre-tax discount
rate of 9.86% per annum. Cash flow projections during
the budget period are based on the same expected
gross margins and raw material price inflation the
budget period. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflow/
outflow which include budgeted sales and gross profit
margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past
performance and the expectation of the directors of the
Company for the market development. The directors
of the Company believes that any reasonable change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.
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20. EEE

20. Intangible Assets

R pIE ek BEHK i1 ait
Technical Club  Development
know-how membership costs Trademark Total
TEn TE7n TE7n TER TEn
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
5% Cost
H2015E1A1R As 1 January 2015 3,687 80 9,092 - 12,859
KERBAR Acauisition of subsidiaries
(R 44(o)) (Note 44(0)) - - 1,560 1,006 2,566
RE Addition - - 361 - 361
ERAE Exchange alignment - - (55) - (55)
R2015F12A318 As at 31 December 2015 and
R2016%F1 A1H 1 January 2016 3,687 80 10,958 1,006 15,731
EREE Exchange alignment - - 12 - 12
#2016F12A31H As at 31 December 2016 3,687 80 10,970 1,006 15,743
SitBHRHE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
201561 A18 As 1 January 2015 3,687 - 9,092 - 12,779
FREE Amortisation for the year - - 511 168 679
FRRE Impairment for the year - - 599 - 599
R2015F 124318 As at 31 December 2015 and
201641 A1H 1 January 2016 3,687 - 10,202 168 14,057
FREH Amortisation for the year - - 397 201 598
ERFE Impairment for the year - - 359 - 359
ERAE Exchange alignment - - 12 - 12
120165F12A31H As at 31 December 2016 3,687 - 10,970 369 15,026
REFE Net carrying values
R2016%512531R  As at 31 December 2016 - 80 - 637 7117
R2015%12 A31H As at 31 December 2015 - 80 756 838 1,674
STEEEMAERFRET The following useful lives are used in the calculation of
amortisation:
FIEERR AN - 3E5F Development costs 3 to 5 years
[ELE : 54 Trademark 5 years



21.
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note:

During the year ended 31 December 2016, as the result
of the unexpected poor performance of the electronic
product business, the directors of the Company carried
out an impairment review. The recoverable amount of the
development costs was lower than the carrying amount
of the development costs and accordingly an impairment
loss of approximately HK$359,000 (2015: approximately
HK$599,000) was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016.

R 21. Mining Rights
FHExT
HK$’000
5% Cost
R20154F1 A1H As at 1 January 2015 596,748
ME 5, 58 B Exchange alignment (26,884)
M2015%F 12 A31 B K As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
201641 A1H 569,864
ME 5, 58 E Exchange alignment (38,774)
"2016 512831 H As at 31 December 2016 531,090
RET#BERRE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
20151 H1H As at 1 January 2015 47,250
FRITE Charge for the year 13,196
M 58 B Exchange alignment (2,657)
M2015%F 12 A31 B X As at 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
201641 A1 H 57,789
FAIE Charge for the year 11,027
M 5,58 B Exchange alignment (4,467)
R2016 12831 H As at 31 December 2016 64,349
REFE Net carrying values
R2016 128531 H As at 31 December 2016 466,741
MR2015F12 A31 H As at 31 December 2015 512,075

HREARTPEIHEREBHENENOREE
FEEMAE QLT ZBE AR IERE
B MWEREEICREENELARE

The balance represents two mining rights, the
Serpentine mine located in Donghai County of Jiangsu
Province, the PRC and the dolomite mine located in
Baishan City of Jilin Province, the PRC, which are
amortised by the production quantity over the ore
reserve.
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22. TEME LT

22. Principal Subsidiaries

(@) M2016F12A31H ALEEMNEE (a) Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries
MEBARZFERT : as at 31 December 2016 are as follow:
BRALEER FEEH BRTRE/
EARRER fegny HRERRAZHE
Place of Principal Particulars of
incorporation activities and issued share/ ADARENRERILARS BENREZELA
%R and kind of place of paid up Proportion of ownership Proportion of
Name legal entity operation registered capital interest held by the Company voting power held
BR Bk
Directly Indirectly
2016 2016 216 [EG
BlTREEEERS hE BREFLA PEZEREE RS RRAARE 280,332,007 o - 87.95%  7810%  87.95%  78.1%%
ARAT The PRO, limited SBEREER Registered and paid up capital
Baishan City Tianan liabilty company Manufacturing and sale of of RMB280,332,000
Magnesium Resources magnesium-related products
Company Limited nthe PRC
EABL EENRERAD B4 BREELT REEREAR 100 REBRERER 0% - - 100.00%  10000% 100.00%  100.00%
Century Sunshine Ecological Hong Kong, limited Investment holdings in Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each
Technology Limited liabiity company
R () £ R hE BREFLA PREREER iR R R 30,000,000 7 - - 100.00%  10000% 100.00%  100.00%
ARAT The PRC, limited Investment holdings in the PRC Registered and paid up capita
Century Sunshine (Zhangzhou) liabiity company HK$30,000,000
Ecological Technology Limited
REREHAIRERLA 5% ARRELA REEREMR 10310BERRERAR 1L - - 8T.95%  T8A9%  87.95%  7810%
China Rare Earth Magnesium Hong Kong, lmited Investment holdings in Hong Kong 10,310 ordinary shares of HKS1 each
Technology Holdings Limited liahilty company
THEENAREERLA E BREELT ROBZEREERA(R) HRRARRAARE 2000000007 - - 100.00%  9505% 100.00%  950%
Jangsu Azureblug The PRC, limited BRHREDERERS Registered and paid up capital of
Technology Development liabiity company Manufacturing and sale of RMB200,000,000
Company Limited compound and organic
fertiisers in the PRC
THERITARLA 8 AREELT RPEETRRENT RS RREARE500000007% - - 100.00%  9130% 100.00%  91.30%
Jiangsu Longteng The PRC, limited FRREE Registered and peic up capital of
Petrochemical Limited liahilty company Processing, exploration and RMB50,000,000
sales of serpenting in the PRC
ENEARAT ABRANE AREALT NEERELR 10REEREREE £ 100,00% - - - 100.00% -
Long Xiang Enterprises Limited ~ Briish Virgin Islands, Investment holdings in Hong Kong 100 orcinary shares of USS each
limited liabilty company
Ming Xin Developments Limited ~ EBRXHE - BREFLE REBRRELR 10RERRERAR £ - - 100.00%  10000% 100,00%  100.00%
Ming Xin Developments Limited ~ British Virgin Islands, Investment holdings in Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of US$ each
limited liability company
LEEREBHRERLA w8 AREELT REBEEREEROFENSE  ARRARREARES0000007 - - 100.00%  10000% 100.00%  100.00%
(WsEi) The PRO limited liabity Research and sales of magnesum ~ Registered and paid up capitalof
(note i) company alloys in the PRC RMB5,000,000
IERRENN TARLT R EREFLA IREZEREERR () BEIREREFARE 4000000007 - - 100.00%  10000% 100,00%  100.00%
(Kt The PRC, limited liablity BRHRENEREER Issued and fully paic RMB400,000,000
(note i) company Manufacturing and sale of compound
and organic fertlisers in the PRC
BE(ER)ERAA BRE BREADD RARENERELR SR010ET BEARARRA - - B1.88%  5188%  51.88%  5188%
(B, iRy Bermud, limited Investment holdings in Bermuda 2,874,390,098%
Group Sensg (Interational) liahilty company Issued and fully paid up capital of
Limited (note if, iv &) 2,874,390,058 of HK$0.10 each
FRETRERERAT hE, AREELA ReEEEREE R AR RARBAEARE 18000007 - - B1.88%  5188%  51.88%  5188%

(WiiRy) The PRC, limited fiabilty Manufacturing and sales of Registered and paid up capital
Kinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium company magnesium related product of RMB171,800,000

Products Company Limited in the PRC

(note i & v)




MEE -

(if)

(i)

(iv)

v

PSR - HEREDREEMA
BETEMAEEZEBRES

RNEE2015F12 A31 B IEFEsT
Az o

REZE2015F12 A1 HIEEEK
o

EEEE)ERAB([HEEHE])
AREBREFMAIZERAA
HRMHARBRZATER EHADA
5% 0 601) - EHE REKE A A
((EEEEREE]) EZHERT -
BEREERFRTEEES &
TEHAEMMEAABIES  RBH
ETEERBLRCBEEBERZ
HERES -

REBFEFAMEBAERAAE
% o

ERBINESRR/YFREREZEREX
FEIBRAREFEES A DH
ARBEEWMBAR - EERRFI
HERBHNERSEREENIT

Eo

20165 3# ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B RS R R BT RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

notes:

(if)

(i)

(iv)

v)

The

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
issued outstanding at the end of the reporting
period.

Incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Acquired during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Group Sense (International) Limited (“GSIL”) is
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and its shares and its shares are listed in the
Main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
601). The principal activity of GSIL and its
subsidiaries (“GSIL Group”) was involved in the
design, manufacture and sale of original design
manufacturing products, electronic dictionary
products and personal communication products,
the provision of electronic manufacturing services
and manufacture and trading of magnesium
related products.

Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited.

above table lists the principal subsidiaries

of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, affected the results for the year
materially or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries, in the opinion of the directors,
would result in particulars of excessive length.




HEGEAEEZREMRAT CENTURY SUNSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

S ey
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2016

b) HEEAFIZEREZNIEETENE (b) Detail of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
NG have material non-controlling interests
FERERER
ZHERRR
BEEL A
Proportion
TR L K of ownership
RS interests and
Place of voting rights PRFFERER 2 FE 2R ER
NG incorporation held by non- Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of registration controlling non-controlling non-controlling
company and operation interests interests interests
Period from 26
February 2015
to 31
December 2015
201542 A 26 R
220155
2016 ERPEERIEE ]S 2016 2015
TR THL TH7R B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BE(ER) ARE 48.12% 14,873 1,698 199,219 226,988
BRAR Bermuda
Group Sense
(International)
Limited
LT AEBERFIERER ZAEE Summarised financial information in respect of
MEBARMMBEEREE - LTHK each of the Group’s subsidiary that has material
EREEDNEEBAQ MY HEIT® non-controlling interests is set out below. The
B o summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

EE(BER)ERATE Group Sense (International) Limited
2016 2015
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&&=E5)
(Restated)
MENEE Current assets 309,364 471,514
ERBEE Non-current assets 373,613 374,520
mENAE Current liabilities (141,056) (257,240)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities (121,149) (110,199)

RNATER AFER#EZ  Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 221,553 251,607
FEFE M 2R Non-controlling interests 199,219 226,988
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Period from 26
February 2015
to 31
December 2015

201552 H26H

Z£2015%F
PTG 12 A 31 A
FHET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’000
(=E=5)
(Restated)
WA Revenue 363,676 158,906
FR/ X Expenses (394,677) (162,407)
FR,/HAER Loss for the year/period (31,001) (3,501)
RATEB AELER Loss attribute to owners of
the Company (16,128) (1,803)
R IR Loss attribute to non-controlling interests (14,873) (1,698)
FR,/HRERE Loss for the year/period (31,001) (3,501)
RAEIHER AEN Total comprehensive loss attributable
>HEIERE to owners of the Company (30,056) (5,961)
IR S (S Total comprehensive loss attributable
FHEERRE to non-controlling interests (27,769) (5,553)
FRHA2EEEEE  Total comprehensive loss for the
year/period (57,825) (11,514)
EATIEERERRE Dividend paid to non-controlling interests - -
mEEE(FTA),/FE Net cash flows (used in)/from
REFE operating activities (66,292) 55,597
BREEEAME,/ (FTA) Net cash flows from/(used in)
R mFE investing activities 98,177 (378,121)
MEEE (A3 Net cash flows (used in)/from
WEmER financing activities (37,100) 352,581
Be(Rd),/ mAFHE Net cash (outflow)/inflow (5,215) 30,057
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23. AEELTRZKRE 23. Investments in Joint Ventures
2016 2015
FET THT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREEFE Share of net assets 4,823 3,713
e —HEERFINIE Amounts due from a joint venture
—JER B (M RE () - non-current (note (i)) 539 577
5,362 4,290
JEW A &N RIFIA Amount due from a joint venture
— B (B EE (i) — current (note (ii)) 133 885
BiaE notes:
iy FARGERAEREZERAEERRNIEA (i)  The amounts due from joint ventures included in
REER R LB BEARREHRLE investments in joint ventures are unsecured, interest-
TZEARNEE  WREGREMBRAER free and are not repayable within twelve months from
BRAERSD - the end of the reporting period and are therefore shown

in the consolidated statement of financial position as
non-current.

i)y EWK—MEAE R F KIE133,000% T (i)  The amount due from a joint venture of HK$133,000
(20154F : 885,000/ ) st ARE@ R E (2015: HK$885,000) included in the Group’s current
BE AEER . RBEREETENRS- assets, are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

term of repayment.

REBERGERRFBOT Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are
as follows:

DN A bl
Percentage of

iR AR 3L

EAFE REH
Particulars  Place of FrEERR Zi b ER TEEK
£ of registered registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital held and business interest power sharing activities
ERHRRERRERLA RMB5,401,550 19.78 20 19.78 HERHEET
GEARY) ARE PRC BREM
Chongaing New Standard 5,401,550 7T Manufacture and
Medical Equipment Co., Ltd trading of electronic
(note i &) medical appliances
RYIEIH SEER A RMB15,000 M 50 50 50 BLHHEEETEM
(HaEi &) ARE PRC Online trading of
Shenzhen Innovation 15,000 7T electronic products
Trading Co., Ltd.
(note i &ii)
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B aE notes:

iy AREREGSEHAEHAERAREZ - (i) Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.

iy FHREERAZEREBRARRMEER (i)  The above investments in joint ventures are indirectly
B held by the Company.

TRINRAEBEBUNTEACEERRLZ The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

REIMTEER information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

Period from 26
February 2015
to 31
December 2015

201562 H26H

ZE2015%F
PIEE 12 A 31 H [
FHExT FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FANHANENR Share of the joint ventures’ profit for
ER-UNCIbv the year/period 1,695 1,760

FRHANEGEEE Share of the joint ventures’ total

NAEEKZ B comprehensive income for the year/period 1,695 1,760
2R S Dividend received 585 -

REBREEQRIREZ Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
IREERRE investments in the joint ventures 4,823 3,713
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24. R—HEBELEIRE 24. Investment in an Associate
2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 17 18
—EBECEFBOT ¢ Particulars of an associate are as follows:
AE@EREREI N
FEEEMEARFHE SMELBERESR Percentage of
Particulars of Place of ownership interest TEEK
E4 registered registration attributable to Principal
Name capital held and business the Group activities
BMNREEFREERAF AREA1007T I 30 BEEY
(M%) (note) RMB100 PRC Dormant
MIEE - note:
REEFTETMEFAERRA)ERZ - Not audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.
R—EBERARIREZEHUNT The movement of investment in an associate is as
follows:

Period from

26 February 2015
to

31 December 2015

201562 H26 A

ZE2015%F

2016 12 A 31 B HH

FEx FTET

HK$’000 HK$'000

REF] At the beginning of year 18 -
g BE B BB A &) (M5 44(b))  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 44(b)) - 22
FEIGREE A TEF REIE  Share of profits and losses of associate (1) (4)
17 18
REBRZBECE L RRABBAEAF The Group’s shareholdings in the associate comprises
K —EMBRAREFEE 2 &M - equity shares held through a subsidiary of the

Company.
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The following table illustrates the financial information

Period from

26 February 2015
to

31 December 2015

2015F2 A 26 H
Z 20154

12 A 31 HEIME
FHET
HK$’000

ZHBER of the Group’s associate that is not material:
2016
FTHExT
HK$’000
FRNERREN Share of the associate’s loss
il BN g for the year/period (1) (4)
FRNHRA RN Share of the associates’s total

BENREHEEER

REBR—FEHE Q7
KEZRmAE

comprehensive loss for the

year/period (1) (4)
Aggregate carrying amount

of the Group’s investment

in an associate 17 18

25, THHERE

25. Available-for-sale Investments

2016 2015
TERT TABT
HK$°000 HK$’000

EEE Listed investments
BNz ETRAES — Listed equity securities in Australia,
BARE (K at fair value (note i) 5,571 10,842
-REBEMEB LA — Listed debt instruments in
(M sEii K iv) Hong Kong (note ii & iv) 42,816 109,118
JELETIRE Unlisted investments
-RPBEBIA - Debt instruments in PRC 22,245 -
-RBEBZRAE S - Equity securities in Hong Kong
(B & i) (note iii) 6,840 7,300
77,472 127,260
TLERE NS A: Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MEVEE Current assets 70,632 10,842
EREBNEE Non-current assets 6,840 116,418
77,472 127,260
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Wi

iy AHEEREEREENBNZ ETES
E - KEBEEATTG Fintech Limited
(ITTG) 14,744,000 &f&fn » AR FIEE
HBENSTEHR2011F12 AE2015F 3 A
BTTGZIEWNITES - BEIEERHM
E¥BREAEAEMBTIARRRITES -
H2016F8 A4 HiE AR -

EHARAESFREZRAAEDZEERT
B2 EANEBMESE -

iy AEEMBAEZEMAEREEIAR
FEF RN PR6.5%E7.5% (20154 -
5.625% £ 8.125%) ¥ F X J o K&
Bz nBET ESE KR -

EBTAZAAENZ2RERT S 2 RE
BEE -

(i) ZEWENBTBEEMARLZAABERBRE
THLETRAFSZRE -

R2016F 12 A31H @ IELTRERER
NABARBEGRESEZZEFE A KR
BHBRRZ AR EEES TS - &
FERALAAEBETEASZHEE - MUK
AFE R EEEYIE -

(iv) #HZ=2016F12A831BLFE - REAM
PEMTBETHERZEGAHEERE
B 7 B8 F 48 43,138,000 7T (2015
& 1 #)22,012,0007T) °

notes:

(if)

(il

(iv)

The amount represents the Group’s investment in listed
securities in Australia. The Group held 14,744,000
shares of TTG Fintech Limited (“TTG”). Mr. Yang
Yuchuan, a director of the Company, is a non-
executive director of TTG for the period from December
2011 to March 2015. Mr. Yang Yuchuan resigned as
an executive director of the Company due to his other
business and personal commitments with effective from
4 August 2016.

Fair values of the investments in listed equity securities
are determined by reference to bid prices quoted in
active markets.

The amount represents the Group’s investment in
listed redeemable debt instruments with fixed interest
ranging from 6.5% to 7.5% (2015: 5.625% to 8.125%)
per annum, payable semi-annually. The Group holds no
collateral over this balance.

Fair values of the investments in debt intruments are
determined by reference to bid price quoted in active
markets.

The amount represents Group’s investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities incorporate
in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2016, the unlisted equity
investments were stated at cost less impairment
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
was so significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates cannot be reassembly assessed that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the net loss
arising on revaluation of available-for-sale investments
recognised in other comprehensive expenses amounted
to approximately HK$3,138,000 (2015: approximately
HK$22,012,000).
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26. FE 26. Inventories

2016 2015

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

R Raw materials 98,278 147,617
TR Work in progress 15,365 10,970

2URK R Finished goods 113,744 89,654
227,387 248,241

27. B RHEMBWRIR - AARIER

27. Trade and Other Receivables,

Ze Prepayments and Deposits
2016 2015
FHET FH&ET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEWE Z5RIE Trade receivables 448,255 472,719
DEREET Impairment (547) (206)
447,708 472,513
JFE U= 4 (B3 () Bills receivables (note(i) 8,673 4,597
BRFIBERES Prepayments and deposits 149,196 90,394
H A i Wi a8 (B & (i) Other receivables (note(ii) 250,002 34,075
GFERMBHEE 2 7R Deposits placed with financial institutions 1,327 5,457
856,906 607,036
BI5E notes:
i) R2016F12A831H B W Z & 4 (i) As at 31 December 2016, bills receivables of

8,673,000 (2015 4 : 4,597,000 7T )
BRI EHIRE A (20154F - NEA)A
FIER - FREEREBRUAARKRE -

MN2016F 12 A31H » H b fE U 3% 18
TEREXABB LRI RIIERNG
ERARTILEABR D ZEWRKELY
222,735,000 jt(20164F : T L) -
o B A A] 3K 3038 B B 494,467,000 %8 7T
(20154 : 13,799,000/ 7T ) & K B 78
SNE =z ERFE#2,762,000 (2015
& 15,256,000 7T) °

(if)

approximately HK$8,673,000 (2015: HK$4,597,000) will
be matured within six months (2015: six months) after
the end of the reporting period. All the bills receivables
are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2016, other receivables mainly
comprise of amount due from a related party,
Shandong Hongri Acron Chemical Joint Stock
Company Limited (“Shandong Hongri”) of approximately
HK$222,735,000 (2015: HK$NIl), value-added tax
recoverable in the PRC of approximately HK$4,467,000
(2015: HK$13,799,000), and interest receivables
from independent third parties of approximatley
HK$2,762,000 (2015: HK$5,256,000).
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R2016F12 A31 8 @ #EH M E Y IE
BB RAERE - (2015F : TFIT)

B 5 MEMEYER - ENREZE N
THEEE -

As at 31 December 2016, none of the other
receivables are past due and impaired (2015: HK$Nil).

Trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:

2016 2015
FExT FETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

AR RMB 790,143 566,017
BT HK$ 52,305 27,676
HEaEE Other currencies 14,458 13,343
856,906 607,036

MR2016F12 A31H » REBEEWE H K
EMERESMREZHEEY)DOT -

As at 31 December 2016, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables of the Group presented based on
the invoice date was as follows:

2016 2015

FET TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

30 HUAN Within 30 days 168,567 153,993
31260H 31 to 60 days 174,199 134,466
61ZE90H 61 to 90 days 84,808 148,799
90 H Over 90 days 20,134 35,255
447,708 472,513

AEBARTESREFPZEEH —RTEB
180 H (20154 : 7B 180H) »

I EE R ENE S RKRIE S K EI
HiE R CENTRERNERF - 2afAER
BENE S EYRIAE - EAEEE
RURHEHENZHREFPER - BAREER
BEXUVEEREYHRERDABRAIAT
2HE REBFEER  EEERSLE
VBB ZERERIFLBERE - NEEH
BERZSEHRTATAERRD -

The Group allows a credit period normally not more
than 180 days (2015: not more than 180 days) to its
trade customers.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default. Trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balance are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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The movements in the provision for impairment of
trade receivables are as follows:

2016 2015

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

RE ) At the beginning of year 206 -
BRI EEE Impairment losses recognised 784 206
BEERESE Impairment losses reversed (206) -
MER AT AR 2 & %8 Amounts written off as uncollectible (237) -
RF LR At the end of year 547 206

LT EKRE SRR EREREERL
B EUE B BR 32 B 547,000 T
(20154 : 206,000/ 70 ) H@KE®EE
£1,256,0007% 7L(20154F : 206,000 7
To) o ERIRERKE ZERRET PR
SEMFIEER  TEEHE A U 1 EE U
BRIz — 81D ©

BHBERREZE S EWFIERE D TH
™

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired
trade receivables of HK$547,000 (2015: HK$206,000)
with a gross carrying amount of HK$1,256,000
(2015: HK$206,000). The individually impaired trade
receivables relate to customers that were in default
or delinguency in payments and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired:

RiEH BHERBE
&% BR#E 90HUKR 91%Z180H 181%365H
Neither past
due nor Past due but not impaired
Total impaired <90 days 91-180 days 181-365 days
FHT FHTT T FHEIT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2016 447,708 427,579 11,263 - 8,866
2015 472,513 437,258 30,592 2,763 1,900

RETESREFENAIKREREER &
SEERHAARLEERHEEERSE
HIE R E AR B R EWAENEEE X
EEHBREY AN EFPEREXAME
e MEERBRHETEEAR

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in credit quality of
the trade receivable from the date credit was initially
granted up to the end of the reporting period. The
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.
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28. HIEEERE 28. Investments Held for Trading
2016 2015
FHExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
MRS Listed securities
-MNEBEB LT ZAES - - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong
BRANE at fair value - 26,563
- P BEEMZRAFES © - Equity securities listed in the PRC
RARE at fair value 10,415 12,163
10,415 38,726
NABEDNREMGMMEAEBEE ° Fair values are determined with reference to quoted
market bid price.
29, fTHEERMEE 29. Derivative Financial Assets
T
HK$’000
201541 A1 H As at 1 January 2015 243
DREEH) Fair value changes (236)
R2015F 12 A381H As at 31 December 2015
K 201641 A1H and 1 January 2016 7
PARE B AT IR AR (& 5 B R AR Lapsed upon redemption of the
convertible bonds (7)
®2016F 128 31H As at 31 December 2016 -
MESMEEDRITRRESME AR Derivative financial assets represent the early
SETFEIRAERNE  IREEOREET redemption option derivatives embedded in convertible
ATH - BETRRESCRNFRNEEE bonds which allows the Group exercise the early
[ o redemption rights. The relevant convertible bonds
were fully redeemed during the year.
AR ESFFIBENG S VB WERMFEIH Details of the convertible bonds were disclosed in
= o Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.



30. RITRREHELR

R20164F12 A31H » BB BE=A
BAOR—F 21715 5£191,888,000/8 7T
(20154 : 263,260,000 7T ) 2 & E F F
KE050FEE4.00E(2015F : 2.76[FE &
4.05E) - SRITFEFTIAEBTT - ETMARE
BEER

MR2016F12A31H - R 17 7 & 4

25,116,000 7C(2015 4 : 24,580,000 /&
L) EERIRITEE 2 EH (KEE32) -
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30. Bank and Cash Balances

As at 31 December 2016, the fixed interest rate on
deposits with banks of HK$191,888,000, (2015:
HK$263,260,000), with maturity over three months but
less than one year, was ranging from 0.50% to 4.00%
(2015: 2.76% to 4.05%) per annum. The deposits with
banks were denominated in HK$, USD and RMB.

As at 31 December 2016, deposits with banks of
approximately HK$25,116,000 (2015: HK$24,580,000)
have been pledged to secure bank borrowings (Note
32).

At the end of the reporting period, bank and cash

TIEE : balances comprise of the followings:
2016 2015
FEx T
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERITIF Short-term bank deposits 238,770 656,035
RITRERFERS Cash at bank and on hand 662,428 796,480
901,198 1,452,515
W BERAERIERZ Less: Pledged deposits with bank
B IIR TR pledged as security
for borrowings (25,116) (24,580)
TEW R R BB Non-pledged deposits with bank
R = A A 2 I with original maturity of more
RITIF K than three months
when acquired (166,772) (238,680)
HehERREER Cash and cash equivalents 709,310 1,189,255

REEHRR - BEBRITERZ ERINER
730952 (20154 : 1.07F) : ZFFHK
ZFHEBHRRAH DR =1EA (2015 F :
=@EA) -

At the end of the reporting period, the weighted
effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 0.95% (2015: 1.07%); these deposits have an
average maturity of less than three months (2015:
three months).
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IRITRIRSERIBZUTEEEE - Bank and cash balances were denominated in the
following currencies:

2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR RMB 575,284 401,426
BT HK$ 228,178 758,837
Efy Others 97,736 292,252
901,198 1,452,515
BIAARBAEZRITRBESERE L The remittance of bank and cash balances
BlZES BN B iR INE B S TR © denominated in RMB out of the PRC is subject to the

foreign exchange control restrictions imposed by the
government of the PRC.

31. ESZRHMENRE 31. Trade and Other Payables

2016 2015

THxT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

(&=5))

(Restated)

BB S8 Trade payables 83,230 104,520

TR FRIE Receipts in advance 56,829 33,358

B (MEEG) Provision (note (i) 933 945
FERTFRIA & E D JE 1 5018 Accruals and other payables

(B 5 (i) B (i) (note (i) and (iii)) 274,455 306,585

415,447 445,408
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2016 2015

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

(&&E5)

(Restated)

BNER Current 294,447 335,408
JEBNHA Non-current 121,000 110,000
415,447 445,408

BT 5T notes:

(i) AEBRETEFTEMMERFREE2E (i)  The Group provides 2 to 3 year warranties to its
SFERIEIRT - BBREKEK - BREK customers on certain of its electronic products, under
ERBESEEIFER - REBEERER which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The
BEHEERBEREE ZBAKERETH amount of provision is estimated based on sales
o MEREEDNBEETRN RBIERE volumes and past experience of the level of repairs
TEET » and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an

ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
EmREREH ZFBNT - The movements in the provision for product warranty
are as follow:
2016 2015
FET FAIT
HK$’000 HK$’000

RFF] At the beginning of the year 945 -

g1 hy= NG| Acquisition of subsidiaries - 1,648

REONE Additional provision 349 249

HRBA &5 Amounts utilised during the period (286) (449)

B R Nh Reversal of unutilised amount (72) (500)

RS Exchange alignment (3) (3)

REHK At the end of the year 933 945

(i

(i)

MR20165F 12 A31H » EsHRE &K H M
ENREBEBEZEWRENB QR EIMER
2 JE R B 496,817,000/ 7T(20154F -
66,027,000 7T) « WEWE - WE K& E
2 JEfEFIE #925,631,0008 7T (2015 4F -
14,323,000787T) ~ FEN —REME A BIZEE
Fi% P& 3R 2k T8 49216,000 7 7T (2015F « &
P TT) K Eo b FE S R T 4910,125,000 8 T
(20154 : 15,155,000/87T) °

FRBABER N ZEMENFIAREN—
R E AR Z —BIFERBRRZRELD
121,000,000/% 7t(2015% : 110,000,000
BL)  BEREARER 22AHER
128 A NEE -

(ii) As at 31 December 2016, accruals and other
payables mainly comprised of consideration payable
for acquisition of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$6,817,000 (2015: HK$66,027,000), payable
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$25,631,000 (2015: HK$14,323,000),
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of approximately HK$216,000 (2015:
HKS$NIl) and other tax payable of approximately of
HK$10,125,000 (2015: HK$15,155,000).

(i) For other payable under non-current liabilities was
the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary of approximately HK$121,000,000 (2015:
HK$110,000,000) which is unsecured, interest-free and
is not repayable within 12 months.
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MR2016F12 8318 "EBENE SR
HZBREDTMIZBEZHEBEEN)MT -

As at 31 December 2016, the ageing analysis of trade
payables of the Group presented based on the invoice
date was as follows:

2016 2015

FET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

30 HLA Within 30 days 44,527 83,409
31E60H 31 to 60 days 17,716 5,127
61290 H 61 to 90 days 5,084 5,694
@90 H Over 90 days 15,903 10,290
83,230 104,520

RESERZFYEEH AG0H=90H
(2015 : 60HEQ90H) - REBE R A
LARER BT A FE At ZOE R

R EEER
EEHREN -

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
60 to 90 days (2015: 60 to 90 days). The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

32. 5 & 32. Borrowings
2016 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HITIEHE Bank borrowings 484,416 331,476
Habfg & (FisEi) Other borrowings (note ii) 189,027 193,736
ERESEE (KD Listed subordinated notes (note iii) 658,679 670,660
1,332,122 1,195,872
- Borrowings:
—F UK Within one year 320,665 152,810
—FUEBETBRARAT More than one year but not exceeding
five years 983,874 958,051
FB3E A F More than five years 27,583 85,011
1,332,122 1,195,872
o FIERB B E 2 A Less: Amounts shown under current
liabilities (320,665) (152,810)
1,011,457 1,043,062
BE : Borrowings:
HiKH Secured 658,443 525,212
AR (M RE i R iv) Unsecured (notes iii & iv) 673,679 670,660
1,332,122 1,195,872
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Borrowings were denominated in the following

currencies:

2016 2015
FExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR RMB 408,734 229,040
BT HK$ 75,682 97,589
ETT Us$ 189,027 198,583
AN T SGD 658,679 670,660
1,332,122 1,195,872

M - notes:

(if)

R2016F 12 831 H » ERUAREER Y
¥ WMEREH - HHERE - BITER
B IR - £ %85 5% 203,284,000% 7T
103,855,0007% 7T & 20,000,000 7T (2015
4 163,650,000 7T - 114,167,0008 7T
124,580,000 7T ) > 720164 12 A 31
B AEEHERE 175,728,000 7T J5 A
ARE—HRRMNB AR 2 R EERIE
R R20156F12 A31H - BHEEE R
#938,096,000 % 7T T3 LA — S M |8 2 =) AT A%
RIREZARERE—HWBARNES
IR EAEREER

MR2016F 12831 H AEEER 2R
TREDNUAAEE —HHBRARHEZ
N B & R #924,000,00078 JT(2015 4 :
24,000,000 78TO ) 1EHER -

R2016F 12 B 31 H » RITEE Z INEF
HEBREFIEA5.97E (20154 : 4.66[F) ©

BIE—BHRARRB N IEEEMB AR HE
EEes AR ([HESE AR KR2014
F5A30RFTUMERGZE  BEEEmA
A E Mm% MK B 2 7% 25,000,000 % 7T
Z2EFH o ZpEN2015F12 A7 HERT
MEZ - %/ E KA 25,000,000% 7T
#7527, 000,000 27T ©

ZEFRMBERITREREMIEE 2 F
FEEHE - WIRER BTN RER
HEEE -

BREESBAARE ZERUTIIZIEAE
IR () ADRMEH Z DEER  ()ER
HEERBEAERABR(EE] REER
ROVER ZARBR » R (i) IRITFHRL
36,703,0008 7T (20154 : T#&IT) °

(if)

As at 31 December 2016, the borrowings were secured
by property, plant and equipment, land use rights
and deposits with banks of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$203,284,000, HK$103,855,000
and HK$20,000,000 (2015: HK$163,650,000,
HK$114,167,000 and HK$24,580,000) respectively.
As at 31 December 2016, the secured borrowings of
approximately HK$175,728,000 were guaranteed by
the corporate guarantee of the Company and a fellow
subsidiary. As at 31 December 2015, the secured
borrowings of approximately HK$38,096,000 were
guaranteed by the corporate guarantee of an ex-
shareholder of a subsidiary and a personal guarantee
of an ex-director of a subsidiary.

As at 31 December 2016, banking facilities of
approximately HK$24,000,000 granted to the Group
were guaranteed by the corporate guarantee of a
subsidiary of the Group (2015: HK$24,000,000).

The weighted average effective interest rate of bank
borrowing and other borrowings as at 31 December
2016 was 5.97% (2015: 4.66%).

Pursuant to a loan agreement entered into by a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) on 30 May
2014, IFC had granted a loan of US$25,000,000 to the
subsidiary. The agreement was amended and restated
on 7 December 2015 with increase in the loan granted
from US$25,000,000 to US$27,000,000.

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum
and the amounts due are based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

The loan granted by IFC was secured by (i) corporate
guarantee given by the Company; and (ii) pledges
of shares in the Company as owned by Alpha Sino
International Limited (“Alpha Sino”), the substantial
shareholder; (iii) deposits with banks of approximately
HK$36,703,000 (2015: HK$Nil).
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IS KRB EEFRERBRRBXESRE
(BRENTEZ #Eam) MBERSRA R
AEBERARRZHERKKE - AKH
LEZMBARETE TR EREEE
Rl B E THIEREY

M2016F12A31H BESLHRATD
[\ % K B A &) 3% 1 24,500,000 3% JT(4)
189,026,000 7T ) (2015 4 : 25,000,000
% Jt(#9193,736,000 JT ))° 1M
549,280,000 % B% {7 (49 1k 4 A & 74 2015
FOAS0HBETRA12%)ERATER
TEHR - EAMBEEERMER -

@iy FFAMIKIR{EE K4 658,679,000 LI
AN A R201556 A48 201598 A
3 B %17 {& /& 75,000,000 # hn 3% 7T &
50,000,000 %7 i3 7T 2 285 —#t R 8 — #it
T2EBEER(BEEEBEBHHERETE
HER)ZEREE - ZZHERFT BB
o WHER2018FE6 A4 HEE - £
BEZEZNEFHERANEAET.22[E -
FTHREZERAQARZEHEAR)E
R o

(iv)  FFAEEEEE R 15,000,000 T8
R 2016412 A 31 BUAARRQRIFTIREAF
BERIEERNRITER -

AEEBBEZRAEBRAAEBERT

(i)

(iv)

In addition, Mr. Chi Wen Fu, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company (through his interest
in Alpha Sino), has given an undertaking to IFC to
maintain a minimum level of shareholding in the
Company. The Group and the subsidiary had to
comply with certain covenants, including, among other
things, certain financial covenants, under the loan
arrangement.

As at 31 December 2016, US$24,500,000 (approximately
HK$189,026,000) (2015: US$25,000,000 (approximately
HK$193,736,000)) has been granted to the subsidiary by
IFC and 549,280,000 shares, representing approximately
12% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30
June 2015, has been pledged by Alpha Sino as security
for the loan granted.

Included in unsecured borrowings, approximately
HK$658,679,000 represents the carrying amount of the
first tranche and second tranche of 7.2% subordinated
notes with the face value of SGD75 million and SGD50
million (under the Multicurrency Medium Term Note
Programme) which was issued on 4 June 2015 and
3 August 2015 by the Company. The notes are listed
on the Singapore Stock Exchange and will mature on
4 June 2018. The weighted average effective interest
rate of listed subordinated notes is 7.22%. The
listed subordinated notes are guaranteed by various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Included in unsecured borrowings, approximately
HK$15,000,000 represents bank loans guaranteed
by the corporate guarantee of the Company as at 31
December 2016.

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s

borrowings are as follows:

Carrying amount

ARTE B

DRE

Fair value

2016 2015 2016 2015
TERT T TR TAT

HK$’°000 ELCHNN HKS$’000 HK$’000

S Borrowings 1,332,122 1,195,872 1,332,122 1,195,872
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33. Convertible Bonds

The carrying values of the liability component of the
convertible bonds are as follows:

ABRRES1 gkES2

Convertible Convertible

Bonds 1 Bonds 2
THT THT TR
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®2015F1A1H As at 1 January 2015 117,193 177,687 294,880
ENREENERT Imputed interest expense charged 8,955 28,748 37,703
ERRERFERS Interest expense paid and payable (2,523) (8,100) (10,623)
Em Redemption (123,625 - (123,625)

R2015F12 A31H R As at 31 December 2015 and

20161 A1H 1 January 2016 - 198,335 198,335
EMREENERT Imputed interest expense charged - 13,408 13,408
BN RENFER% Interest expense paid and payable - (3,995) (3,995)
Em Redemption - (207,748) (207,748)

"2016%12831H

As at 31 December 2016

GEE

U]

R2014F6A27H » KRABRBITRAELE
#115,000,000 7% T 2 AT R IR (& 5 ([ 7T i
BREH1DABREIES - AJRRESIEL5
BZEMERHE  BEFINN—Kk A
EHFE ABEIREIRE.208 ]
BRESERARD - ATERES1Z2E
HAAZTHEBR R —FZ2HE -

AR E 25 1 AT EI Y A AT (A B ] A 1T
B WABRKRESTERIHAES
e ARRBELERES

THMEEF1EEmERSN  AESN
‘maly - AESOSBARBEE K
RERNEIXIRBHA AT - FERBAE
ik 2 R EES BERERD

BEBORVEERFZERENE R
15.66 & °

HE RS AT E SRS EE P
E ]I
K& ¥ 4 115,000,000 7 7T 2 0] # % (& &
1ER 20154 6 AR 2 HiEM -

notes:

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“Convertible Bonds 1”) with the principal
amount of HK$115,000,000 for cash. The convertible
bonds bear an interest of 4.5% per annum payable in
arrear semi-annually. The convertible bonds entitle the
holder to convert to shares at a conversion price of
HK$1.20. The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds 1
is the date falling 1 year from the date of issue.

Conversion may occur at any time before maturity date
of the Convertible Bonds 1. The Company will redeem
the convertible bonds if the bonds have not been
converted on maturity date.

The Convertible Bonds 1 contains two components:
liability component and equity component. The liability
component is classified as current liabilities and carried
at amortised costs using effective interest method. The
residual value after recognising the liability component
is classified as equity component.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on
initial recognition is 15.66% per annum.

The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds equity reserve”.

Convertible Bonds 1 with the principal amount of
HK$115,000,000 were fully redeemed upon maturity in
June 2015.
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(if)

R2014F6 A27TH » ARRBITAEE
/180,000,000 7T 2 A] 2 f& (& % ([ AT 2
BEH2])ABEIRS - AJRRESE4.5
BzFERMERFE  FEFEIF—K - Al
REHFE ABRIREIRE1.208 7]
B ESER ARG - ATRRES2ZF
HEABMRRESF2%THHRAME
fEmz B(TEIR]) - aJ R EH 28 E A
IR0 HAA QR B HELEEEmBAME -
AR HREE —ARBRER—F -

AR S 2 AT A B B B BT B R 1T
i WARKRESFTERTGRESE
B RARFKEREHEES  RART
RIRES THE 2 R RAGH 17150 18 [0 4
¥ LARE

BEH2BSMNESD : fTEEmE
B(HsE29) TTESRBERD
EPMRERD - BEBHHIERIE
REBE  FAERFEAIREEK AT
°km%@L§% @ﬁmiﬁﬂﬁ
BIERSBATESREE
%ﬂﬁ“ﬁﬁﬁﬁq)§2$¢&iﬁﬁiﬂiﬁﬁ IE‘E
@smﬂ;m@z REHERTE
Lo MBEE S EAERIG  WNER
[AIRESERREE P27 -

A p
2= #B

WW’%’HJMW—I

B B ER 10 70 7 4 HE
16,722 «

R 2 BIRFHNES

Greenhouse Century Limited &A% (&% 2
Z%ﬁAom%@mﬁL%ﬁo%%&%
T AR AT R R E S E RS R 0 K

7?11@5%5?&?5‘?‘}185 570,836 i &1 °
HIEBLMARA B A201456 A20
H 201545 H29H K&2015%6 A29H
/N

REZE2016F 1231 HILEER » K&
EZH A BRI A AT RERES -

(if)

On 27 June 2014, the Company issued convertible
bonds (“Convertible Bonds 2”) with the principal
amount of HK$180,000,000 for cash. The convertible
bonds bear an interest of 4.5% per annum payable in
arrear semi- annually. The convertible bonds entitle the
holder to convert to shares at a conversion price of
HK$1.20. The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds
2 is two years commencing from the date of issue of
the Convertible Bonds 2 (the “Term”). The maturity
date shall, upon prior notice in writing by the holder(s)
of the Convertible Bonds 2 to the Company thirty days
in advance, be extended for another one year from the
last day of the Term.

Conversion may occur at any time before maturity
date of the Convertible Bonds 2. The Company will
redeem the convertible bonds if the bonds have not
been converted on maturity date or redeem when the
Company exercises the redemption rights as pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the bond instrument.

The Convertible Bonds 2 contains four components:
derivative financial assets component (Note 29),
derivative financial liability component, liability
component and equity component. The liability
component is classified as current liabilities and carried
at amortised costs using effective interest method.
The early redemption option is classified as derivative
financial assets. The extension option is classified
as derivative financial liabilities and its fair value
measured using Binomial Option Pricing Model at initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting period were
both equal to HK$Nil. The residual value is classified
as equity component and presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds equity reserve”.

The effective interest rate of the liability component on
initial recognition is 15.72% per annum.

Greenhouse Century Limited is the holder of the
Convertible Bonds 2. Based on the adjusted conversion
price of HK$0.96998, it is estimated that 185,570,836
Shares will be allotted and issued upon full conversion
of the Convertible Bonds. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated on 20 June
2014, 29 May 2015 and 29 June 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has redeemed all the convertible bond upon its maturity
date.
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Derivative Financial Liabilities

TAET

HK$’000

R20164%F1 A 1H

As at 1 January 2016 -

BT A EBE S Issue of exchangeable bonds 32,120
AN EER-E) Fair value changes 480
MN2016 £12 31 H As at 31 December 2016 32,600

GEE

7 25 4 18 45 PO B0 A 80 3008 (1 T 88 408
% 1) (REFA BRI S AT R SR 2 B
BIBEATATA o A RMARE BRI EE HK
WA B S B E -

AERESFBERM IS RRM T HE -

AERES
AR ESBESSNREBENT :

35.

note:

Derivative financial liabilities represent the conversion option
derivatives embedded in exchangeable bonds (“EBs”) which
allows the holders of EBs exercise the conversion rights. The
fair value is measured using the Binominal Option Pricing
model at initial recognition and at the end of the reporting
period.

Details of EBs were disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

Exchangeable Bonds

The carrying values of the liability component of the
EBs are as follows:

TR

HK$’000

R2016F1 A1H

As at 1 January 2016 -

BATRERE S Issue of exchangeable bonds 197,383
EHREER B Imputed interest expense charged 23,375
BN REMNF SR Interest expense paid and payable (12,254)
MN2016 12 31 H As at 31 December 2016 208,504

f o

MR2016F5A850  ARBlEHETEASSBEA
232,000,000 70 2 Al EHREHF UIREGEE S - 7]
HEINES B HITASBHRSE 2 FAIR B -
BASNEBEASNN— Kk  JEBRESFTEAGE
BrRlERELAERAPRBEREZERERA A
([HEHEDRSD - IEZETFAIBRESFEA
MBRMEBERAITERES TAMENANET -

note:

On 5 May 2016, the Company issued EBs with the principal
amount of HK$232,000,000 for cash. The EBs bear an
interest of 8% per annum payable in arrear every six calendar
months from the issue date. The EBs entitle the holder
to convert to the shares of China Rare Earth Magnesium
Technology Holdings Limited (“China Rare Earth”). The
number of share transferrable to the holders of EBs shall be
determined by the formula described in EBs instrument.
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AEBRELRFEAGRRETERES TANG
KR AR E R HI R e S B 2 AR S (R R 2B 0 /)
HMESASE - JEBRESFIHERE A ER
BHFETRBEF=F([HR]) - METRELY
ERBARER—EESF((EREMR ]  HRA
PEIRE 25 ) B R N T R JE AT B R 5B A
B EERTBEHBEATHH(REE H)ER
RAEITER « (A) BB A (WAl BB E 55 A AL
ZRF AR & S0EE BB L AT EmEM) K
B)EZEBAARMAHRERGAABEHER
BARGHBNZ HHRNEIEER(ARF
ERAE) o

AlERELSBSMERTS  TESMAETI &
BEHD c BEBDIMEFRDEE  LAEK
FEE LB A AT IR - IR R B BENIELT
EomaE(iEas) -

BESIEEAERFNERFNXS18.04
E o

HIEMB2EARNRIBEA2016F4 42622
15 o

The holders of EBs have the right to exchange all or any part
of the principal amount of the EBs at any time during the
exchange period as pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the EBs instrument. The maturity date of the EBs is three
years commencing from the date of issue of the EBs (the
“Term”) and upon prior notice, it can be extended for another
1 calendar year (the “Extended Term”). The right to exchange
attaching to the EBs may be exercised, at the option of the
holder thereof, at any time and from time to time during the
period from the issue date up to and including the earlier
of (A) the maturity date, if the holders of EBs delivers an
exchangeable notice at least 30 calendar days immediately
before the maturity date, or (B) the 30th calendar day
immediately following the date of delivery of a submission
notice or an agreement notice by the Company to the holders
of EBs.

The EBs contain two components: derivative financial liability
component and liability component. The liability component
is classified as non-current liabilities and carried at amortised
costs using effective interest method. The conversion option
is classified as derivative financial liabilities (Note 34).

The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 18.04% per annum.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated on 26 April 2016.
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36. Deferred Revenue

2016 2015
FTERT TAET
HK$’°000 HK$’000

B A AR R 2 BUT K

Government grants received related
to assets

66,176 69,552

RRETCBERZER  AUMRLZEE
BEEEERA AN 2012 FEE BT
— i - RIEZBZE - EHEFRER
AT RZEBHEREER AR REHRMG
EPED D UREEEEMELER
X BERREBOER -

HE2016F12A31HILFEE » AEBEW
B EB 1D & B) 3,507,000 7T (HHE R AR
3,000,0007T ) (20154 : 2,486,000/ 7T
(HEERARE2,000,0007T)) » WHEA
W AR RERR 2,081,000 T (HHERARE
1,780,000 7t (20154 : THEIT)) ©

P sk A A IE WK IR 2 B B - WA R R
EIEWA K B AR AR 3T BOER S - X
ATHEEERNBFHRNBRRER -

In order to encourage the development of magnesium
industry, Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
Co., Limited entered into an agreement with the local
government in 2012. Pursuant to the agreement, the
local government agree to provide financial assistance
(the “Assistance”) to Baishan City Tianan Magnesium
Resources Company Limited to improve their
production technology and enhance the capacity of
the property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has received part of the Assistance of HK$3,507,000
(equivalent to RMB3,000,000) (2015: HK$2,486,000
(equivalent to RMB2,000,000)) and recognised to
the other income of HK$2,081,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,780,000) (2015: HK$ Nil).

The Assistance received or which becomes receivables
is initially recognised as deferred revenue and
subsequently recognised in profit or loss over the life of
a depreciable asset by way of as a reduced depreciation
charge expense.
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37. EEHREAE 37. Deferred Tax Liabilities
FARGREVBRARERCRTER AL The components of deferred tax balances recognised
BBV D R EEHNT ¢ in the consolidated statement of financial position and

the movements during the year are as follows:

EEHREEE Deferred Tax Liabilities
- K&
REE tuERE e BREE st
Property,
Mining Land use plant and Intangible
rights rights equipment asset Total

TAT TR TBT THL L
HK$'000  HKE'000  HK$'000  HKE'000  HK$'000

©2015%1A1H As at 1 January 2015 107,699 16,800 538 - 125,037
W B AR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(P 5E 44(b) (Note 44(p)) - - 82 166 248
TAZAEER Credited to the consolidated
HtizElaER statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive
income (2,557) (391) (474) (33) (3,455)
i 5 7% Exchange alignment (4,751) (741) (5) - (5,497)

R2015F 12 A31 B As at 31 December 2015

20161 A1H and 1 January 2016 100,391 15,668 141 133 116,333
FAGEEREK Credited to the consolidated
HEti2ElaER statement of profit or loss
(fzE11) and other comprehensive

income (Note 11) (2,046) (368) (23) (33) (2,470)

i 5 % Exchange alignment (6,731) (1,048) (5) - (7,784)

R2016%12A31H As at 31 December 2016 91,614 14,252 113 100 106,079
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38. AN FRA

38. Share Capital of the Company

gl -4 [N
Number of Share
shares capital
P& T A% FHET
notes ’000 HK$’000
EIE Authorised:
BREE.02F LY Ordinary shares of
L im HK$0.02 each
®2015%F1 /18 - As at 1 January 2015,
2015F 12 A31 B X 31 December 2015 and
2016F1A1H 1 January 2016 5,000,000 100,000
20 Increase (i) 5,000,000 100,000
MH20165 12831 H As at 31 December 2016 10,000,000 200,000
ERTRER Issued and fully paid:
H2015%1 A1H As at 1 January 2015 2,905,639 67,910
TEEREERITZ Issue of ordinary shares upon
Rl exercise of share options (ii) 55,761 1,115
BB AR EEET Issue of ordinary shares
B under open offer (iff) 1,453,119 29,062
RIRAT AR 31T 2417 Issue of ordinary shares
LR under bonus issue (iv) 217,968 4,359
FTIHE BT Cancellation of issued shares (v) (23,000) (460)
2015412 431 H As at 31 December 2015
M 20161 A1H and 1 January 2016 4,609,487 101,986
B BITRG Cancellation of issued shares (vi) (11,510) (230)
MH2016512H31H As at 31 December 2016 4,597,977 101,756
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Wi

iy H2015F4F238 KD A BB L E
%8 515,000,000,000 B% % 17 #5 5% & B% A
52| 1oo,ooo,ooo5%;%(%7)%5,000,000,000
B B% £ ) & 50 Z 200,000,000 Tt (5
10,000,000,000 B& BX 5 ) im%*ﬁxmﬁi%
HIRBRHOZHRFHAL o

iy REZE2015F12831HILFEER AR
AR MEFEHTEESRO4194B L E
TRDEA 55,761,148 IR (D ©

@iy 20156 HA1H K"AAFABEB/IXAE
ﬁffﬁﬁxﬁﬁzomiwﬂzsa t%—irﬁ_ﬁﬁ
BRIRBROERZERD 2 ELEZTR
0408 T ZEBRETAREE BT
1,453,119,268 ¥ A% 1D o B NA AR
AR 2015F 5 A8 BT 2 ERER -

S

=

(iv) 7201546 H29R  KAAFFEBIRAE
BIRER2016F6 A17THEEFE - TR
BE R R BTN 2 B 1T IR 5
7T B17217,967,890 B FT IR - FIHE
ARRAEIZ BB A

(v) HZE20156F12A31HIEFERN > AR
AN/ TM@&{?‘:%9,074,000,%75(51%:#%
)R TR 0.3978 7T 2 hkE F 15 (B & FO B
22 Ff B [0 23,000,000 A% AN A &) & A% ® &
0.02B Lz L@k - BRI ZBRHDERER
FEEH o Bt AR A ZEBITRATEER
FEHIRE, o BRI EN 2B EBERARF]
BHOBEERSZHE - FBREAEEGIRIE
R EMMETT EARSAD R ZER
BEFENMSBRATR -

Vi) REZE2016F12A831HIEFER AR
FILAB R (B44,210,9508 T (KT ER)
HEBRNT0.345E L 2039058 L 2B
BREZATERANGFREEC.2HET
211,510,000 R L@k - BRI ZRMHE
RENGEH - Bt ARRZB#HITRA
DR Z A 2 E{E T A - e
BHEMZHEEERARAB RN S EES
e LR AEESRBER AT EME
7 BEURBAA ﬁZi%ééi‘%ﬁ&
RBEF - FRREESE

notes:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

On 23 April 2015, the Company increased the
authorised share capital from HK$100,000,000 (divided
into 5,000,000,000 shares) to HK$200,000,000
(divided into 10,000,000,000 shares) by the creation
of an additional 5,000,000,000 shares, which will rank
pari passu with all existing shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company issued and allotted an aggregate of
55,761,148 shares at a weighted average exercise
price HK$0.4194 per share.

On 1 June 2015, the Company issued 1,453,119,268
new Shares by way of open offer at HK$0.40 per share
on the basis of every two existing Shares held by
qualifying shareholders as at 28 May 2015. Details are
stated in the Company’s prospectus issued on 8 May
2015.

On 29 June 2015, the Company issued 217,967,890
new Shares by way of bonus issue on the basis
of every twenty existing Shares held by qualifying
shareholders as at 17 June 2015. Details are stated in
the Company’s relevant announcements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Company repurchased 23,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.02 each of the Company at an aggregated
consideration of approximately HK$9,074,000 before
expenses at weighted average price HK$0.39 per
share on the Stock Exchange. The repurchased shares
were cancelled during the year. Accordingly, the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value thereof. The premium payable on the
repurchase was charged against the share premium
account of the Company. The repurchases were
effected by the Board pursuant to the mandate from
shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders as
a whole in enhancing the net assets and earning per
share of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company repurchased 11,510,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.02 each of the Company at an aggregated
consideration of approximately HK$4,210,950
before expenses at prices ranging from HK$0.345
to HK$0.395 per share on the Stock Exchange. The
repurchased shares were cancelled during the year.
Accordingly, the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value thereof. The
premium payable on the repurchase was charged
against the share premium account of the Company.
The repurchases were effected by the Board pursuant
to the mandate from shareholders, with a view to
benefit shareholders as a whole in enhancing the net
assets and earnings per share of the Company.
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39. Statement of Financial Position and
Reserves of the Company

(a) Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2016

2016 2015
FET FiETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREBEE Non-current assets
mE - WEREE Property, plant and equipment 415 637
R BRRIZEE Investments in subsidiaries 2,108 2,108
AfHEZRE Available-for-sale investments - 109,118
2,523 111,863
REBEE Current assets
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 42,816 -
H fth e W5k I8 Other receivables,

BRFEBERES prepayments and deposits 2,847 10,452
FEBEECRE Investments held for trading - 26,563
MEEREE Derivative financial assets - 7
FEUS BB A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,316,975 1,750,674
IRITRIRE % Bank and cash balances 90,285 578,219

2,452,923 2,365,915
B:RBEE Less: Current liabilities

H At Other payables 10,762 6,353
FER—MBIMBATZIE  Amounts due to a subsidiary 1,774 1,789
JERTETIS B Income tax payable 2,974 1,872
WIEERELD Financial guarantee contracts 131 95
TEeHERE Derivative financial liabilities 32,600 -
AIHRES Convertible bonds - 198,335
48,241 208,444
REBEEFE Net current assets 2,404,682 2,157,471
EEHERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 2,407,205 2,269,334

W:ERBERE Less: Non-current liability
BE Borrowings 867,183 670,660
867,183 670,660
EEFHE Net assets 1,540,022 1,598,674
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2016 2015
FH FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000

KAREEAENGR Capital and reserves attributable

R#E to owners of the Company
&7 Share capital 101,756 101,986
G Reserves 1,438,266 1,496,688
EREE Total equity 1,540,022 1,598,674
EEER2017F 3 A20H #LfE R The financial statement was approved and authorised
TR HRE WA THNESR for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017
REE and was signed on its behalf by:
MXE it
Chi Wen Fu Shum Sai Chit
EFE EE
Director Director
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(b) f#fE (b) Reserves

RRRE  THEREX
Bx  BbeR it B REEGE  EEBR  RERA 5%

Capital Convertible Share
Share Share redemption bonds option Revaluation  Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

TR TR ThR ThRL THT ThR TR ThR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

01551 A1H 1 January 2015 67,910 887,189 3,499 16,779 5,652 - 48,517 1,029,546
ERaH Profitfor the year - - - - - - 2520 2520
FREMZEFE  Other comprehensive
expenses for the year - - - - - (2,463) - (2.463)
ER2E(FR)/  Total comprehensive
WAEE [expenses)/income for
the year - - - - - (2,463) 2,520 57
ERRERE Final dividend paid - (21,797) - - - - - (21,797)
BOUARES Redemption of convertible
bonds - - - (4,336) - - 4,336 -
BRMERE Share option lapsed - - - - (2,128) - 2128 -
REEERGIFTZ  Equity settled share-based
25 transactions - - - - 2528 - - 2508
BEDEZEMET  lssue of ordinary shares
CERR under open offer 29,062 545,015 - - - - - 574,077
RBIREIMET  lssue of ordinary shares
LEBK under bonus issue 4,359 (4,409 - - - - - (50)
{TERREERTZ  Issue of ordinary shares upon
Lk exercise of share options 1,115 28471 - - (1,199) - - 23,387
ERi Share cancellation (460) (8614) 460 - - - (460) (9,074
#2016512318  Asat 31 December 2015
R2016E1R1E  and 1 January 2016 101,986 1,420,855 3,959 12,443 4,853 (2,463 57,041 1,598,674
EREH Profit for the year - - - - - - 4,544 4,544
EREMEEEY  Other comprehensive
expense for the year - - - - - (286) - (286)
ERRE(ER)/ WA Total comprehensive
ik (expenses)/income
forthe year - - - - - (286) 4544 4258
BRERE Final dividend paid - (59,774) - - - - - (59,774
BEUARES Redemption of convertible
bonds - - - (12,443) - - 12,443 -
BRMERE Share option lapsed - - - - (1,714 - 1,714 -
REEERMMATZ  Equity settled share-based
25 ransactions - - - - 1075 - - 1075
SRR Share cancelaton 0 %) 20 - - - 0 et

#2016 5127317 As at 31 December 2016 101,756 1,357,100 4,189 - 4,214 (2,749) 15,512 1,540,022
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40. [EIRRE 40. Share Options

R 2008F 12 A3 H » RRQ B RE LMK
T 8I([7ZETEl]) - BIEZATE - XA
ARLERETAESEESIEES - A&
ErERNEAA - 2iEE - 288 - #
FER - RGHER - RE BEPEREBE
H([aE®R28E])  URBARIGRMD -

BEEUZES2ENBEETNERE 17
B E M MR RIS - R
88 168 R B2 AR 1 78 B R R ) B ) L A 15 3R
RARFRRF — B -

RBETEERATESE () RONE
PR 2 AN RS A RERMIIE
ERZWHE (RO NEZBRERZ
HHEIAT R A 5% B R BE X P& B R(E R
S ERZFIIE - K (i) BRiD 2 E{E - A
SEYEEFEREEEEANRCBERKE
TR HE -

BEREERABER2EEGERERLA
HIZRE 2 TERARDRALE RS TR
1TfE

On 3 December 2008, a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the directors or employees of the Group,
consultant or adviser, distributor, contractor, supplier,
service provider, agent, customer and business
partner of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

Options may be granted on such terms and conditions
in relation to their vesting, exercise or otherwise as
the directors may determine in its absolute discretion,
provided that such terms and conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms conditions of the
Scheme.

The subscription price is not less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on Main Boards
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of offer of the option; (i) the average
prices of the shares on Main Board as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The share options are exercisable only if the Eligible
Participants remain in the service of the Group
from the grant date of the share options up to the
designated exercise date.
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2016 & 2016
R2016 %
R2016 F ERigh R EREN 12831A (k4
181855 ZERE ZERE ZERE 2] (M)
BT
Options Options Options
Held at granted exercised lapsed Held at Exercise
1 January during the during during 31 December price
2016 year the year the year 2016 (note)
HK$
A &&
Employees 29,286,521 - - - 29,286,521 0.39129
14,545,079 - - - 14,545,079 0.62606
14,189,506 - - (1,788,961) 12,400,545 0.78258
(B) EEZ
Directors
HXE 25,556,580 - - - 25,556,580 0.39129
Chi Wen Fu
ez 11,500,461 - - - 11,500,461 0.39129
Shum Sai Chit
HEX 19,167,435 - - - 19,167,435 0.39129
Chi Bi Fen
BRI 19,167,435 - - (19,167,435) - 0.78258
Yang Yuchuan'
EiFE] 3,833,487 - - - 3,838,487 0.39129
Guo Mengyong
BAx 6,389,145 - - - 6,389,145 0.39129
Kwong Ping Man
s 3,611,316 - - - 3,611,316 0.39129
Sheng Hong
IS 6,389,145 - - - 6,389,145 0.78258
Lau Chi Kit
99,344,945 - - - 99,344,945 0.39129
14,545,079 - - - 14,545,079 0.62606
39,746,086 - - (20,956,396) 18,789,690 0.78258
153,636,110 - - (20,956,396) 182,679,714
1. BR2016F8 A4 HEE 1. Resigned on 4 August 2016
BR2016F 12 A31 8 » srEIB R W R1THEE As at 31 December 2016, Options to subscribe for a
IR RES KA REE 132,679,714 JRAR 1D © total of 132,679,714 Shares were outstanding under

the Scheme.
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2015 F 2015
20155
Enk ‘ ‘f 124318
2B RE 2 B IE (Fis) i
Adjustments
Options Options for Open
Held at granted exercised lapsed Offer and Held at Exercise
1 January during the during during Bonus Issue 31 December price
2015 year the year the year (note) 2015 (note)
HK$
A) E&
Employees 67,700,000 - (49,899,963) (5,933,394) 17,419,878 29,286,521 0.39129
27,400,000 - (1,300,000)  (19,167,435) 7,612,514 14,545,079 0.62606
- 18,500,000 (3,061,185) - 3,750,691 14,189,506 0.78258
B) E%
Directors
HXE 20,000,000 - - - 5,556,580 25,556,580 0.39129
Chi Wen Fu
it 9,000,000 - - - 2,500,461 11,500,461 0.39129
Shum Sai Chit
HES 15,000,000 - - - 4,167,435 19,167,435 0.39129
Chi Bi Fen
BE - 15,000,000 - - 4,167,435 19,167,435 0.78258
Yang Yuchuan
PRE 3,000,000 - - - 833,487 3,833,487 0.39129
Guo Mengyong
BRxX 5,000,000 - - - 1,389,145 6,389,145 0.39129
Kwong Ping Man
Bk 4,000,000 - (1,500,000) - 1,111,316 3,611,316 0.39129
Sheng Hong
A8k - 5,000,000 - - 1,389,145 6,389,145 0.78258
Lau Chi Kit
128,700,000 - (51,399,963) (5,933,394) 32,978,302 99,344,945 0.39129
27,400,000 - (1,300,000)  (19,167,435) 7,612,514 14,545,079 0.62606
- 33,500,000 (3,061,185) - 9,307,271 39,746,086 0.78258
151,100,000 33,500,000 (65,761,148)  (25,100,829) 49,898,087 153,636,110
Mt . FHIERE2MARRBEA2015F5 H29 note: For details, please refer to the announcements of the
HX%2015% 6 A29H 2 A o Company dated 29 May 2015 and 29 June 2015.
R2015F 12 A31 8 @ s1EE FHARITE As at 31 December 2015, Options to subscribe for a
2 BRI A 0] 3R 8% 153,636,110 R AR5 ° total of 153,636,110 Shares were outstanding under

the Scheme.
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Grant date

2011412 A30H

30 December 2011

2011412 A30H

30 December 2011

2011412 A30H

30 December 2011

201343 A19H

19 March 2013

2013%F3 A 19H

19 March 2013

20151 A6H

6 January 2015

201541 A6 H

6 January 2015

JE i B HA

Expiry date

201510 H31H

31 October 2015

2017612 H30H

30 December 2017

2017612 H30H

30 December 2017

201510 A31H

31 October 2015

20184 12 A31H

31 December 2018

2018410 A 31 H

31 October 2018

202010 H31H

31 October 2020
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Options outstanding at 31 December 2016 have the
following expiry date, exercise period and exercise
prices.

171 EA BARTTEE FElREH A
Exercise
prices per Number of
Exercise period Share Options
BT
HKS
§2012F 11 B1B#EE 0.39129 -
2015%F 10 A31H
From 1 November 2012 to
31 October 2015
B2012F 11 A1EHER 0.39129 91,677,971
2017%F12 A30H
From 1 November 2012 to
30 December 2017
B2016FE 11 B1HER 0.39129 7,666,974
2017F 12 A30H
From 1 November 2016 to
30 December 2017
H2013F 11 A1HBER 0.62606 -
201510 A 31 H
From 1 November 2013 to
31 October 2015
B2013F 11 B1HER 0.62606 14,545,079
2018412 A31H
From 1 November 2013 to
31 December 2018
H2015F11 A1 HE:E 0.78258 3,833,486
2018%F 10 A31 H
From 1 November 2015 to
31 October 2018
B2015F 11 A1HER 0.78258 14,956,204

2020410 A 31 H
From 1 November 2015 to
31 October 2020

132,679,714
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RAFHRBEE - ZFrEBE T HEIT 2R
NRRHDBH(BE Ll RITE B E)
7 354,324,047 8 - HERARAIERE
BT AN T.71% ° %t 8l 2% T F 84
B3E WK 2018FE 12 A3HEM °

HE2011F12A31BLEE  REME
RECAMOR - SFRAETEENE
FeoBAZBEEANEEAERZAR
B BHBEAKRE0.217 8 T (2 MM D
ME2ERAR) LlirTEE - BHR
B O MIZ R = 39.20% £66.37% * F/E
@ Fl R0.33% £ 1.08% #1564
FEET BB AR HEF HA N 1.483% R B K - 17 T8 5
BERRMNZERFEmMEHEE - IR
¥ H 200647 A31H £2011 412 A 31
HONEBERENSFTHMAEST - 52
2016 12 A31 B It F E + #1159,000/%
JC(20154F : 296,000/ 7L) Bt A& A 1B
mMEMEERERA o

HE2013F12A31HILFE  RENE
BEAAEFERAN - FRTHETE
B BT 4/455,830,000/8 T ° # A%
HERANEEFERZAREL BB
BB 0.80 B L (ERBMD DI FEELTA
) EaiiTEEE - BEHEEN T42.05%
£5222% - FEERRF L011%=E
0.58% - #H1.6E52FE-tEREFHE R
2.47% K B 2 o 12 TE HARR (B [0 3R M) 1R £ R
EMEr=/EE - TR B 2007 F9 H 25
HZE2013FE3A10BM T EREN K
DWEERSRH - HE2016F 12 A31 H1E
FE » #7134,0007%8 7T(20154F : 361,000
BB AGABREREMEZAKER
ﬁq °

As at the date of the annual report, the total number
of Shares of the Company available for issue under
the Scheme (including the above Options outstanding
not yet exercised) was 354,324,047, representing
approximately 7.71% of the issued share capital of
the Company as of the date thereof. The remaining
life of the Scheme is approximately 3 years and to be
expired on 3 December 2018.

The Options granted during the year ended 31
December 2011 determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.217, at the grant date
and adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision,
exercise price shown above, standard deviation of
expected share price return of 39.20% to 66.37%,
annual risk free interest rate of 0.33% to 1.08%,
expected life of Options of approximately 1 to 6 years
and dividend payout ratio of 1.43%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of
daily share prices from 31 July 2006 to 31 December
2011. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
approximately HK$159,000 (2015: HK$296,000) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of Options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 determined using the
Black-Scholes valuation model was approximately
HK$5,830,000. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.80, at the grant date and
adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision,
exercise price shown above, expected volatility ranged
from 42.05% to 52.22%, annual risk-free interest
rate of 0.11% to 0.58%, expected life of Options of
approximately 1.6 to 5.2 years and dividend payout
ratio of 2.47%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based
on statistical analysis of daily share prices from 25
September 2007 to 19 March 2013. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, approximately HK$134,000
(2015: HK$361,000) were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.



HZE20156F12A31IHIEFEMBEHZ
BhiE FRMIR - FRMBEEER
I E A S 1E A 493,660,000 78 7T © A
ZHEBEANEZFERZARET AH
R E0.69 B M (EFEHD D IR F E1E
HAAE) . FlTEE EHRERSN
R A43.47% = 49.69% ~ F [F £ [ i F =R
0.71%%E1.39% > #92.32%5.32F T8 &
BREFHR1.20% K E R - HTEEK(E
ElfAIZERBEMTE2RKE - IR A
20098 H19H £E20124 8 A28H W &
BRREMNSF M ES L - HE20164F
12 A31HIEFE » 782,000 7£(2015
& 11,871,000 L) BT AGZEER L E
HEERERA -

HEC016F12A31HILEEHM - Axt
AreBEEREMEmMRERAZ ARD
BEM 2L A1,075,000% 7T(2015
& 12,528,000 7T) °
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The fair value of Options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2015 determined using the
Black-Scholes valuation model was approximately
HK$3,660,000. The significant inputs into the model
were share price of HK$0.69, at the grant date and
adjusted for the effect of the share subdivision,
exercise price shown above, expected volatility ranged
from 43.47% to 49.69%, annual risk-free interest
rate of 0.71% to 1.39%. Expected life of Options of
approximately 2.32 to 5.32 years and dividend payout
ratio of 1.29%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily share prices from 19 August
2009 to 28 August 2012. During the year ended 31
December 2016, approximately HK$782,000 (2015:
HK$1,871,000) were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the total
share based payments charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income were approximately HK$1,075,000 (2015:
HK$2,528,000).

41. Commitments

(a) Capital Commitments

2016
TET
HK$’000

BRI HERANGZEAEH  Capital expenditure in respect of

BB B BREE
WE - BEREEZ

the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment contracted for but

BEARZH not provided in the consolidated

financial statements

281,399 11,693
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(b) REHLORE

FEEERABA
ARERETAHHEEEGREES

BrEyB BIEEKkER -%SH
B2 ABHES ZGRRELNE
MEBTR -

RIBEHR - NEBEH BERETA
ML EMAOR T 5 AEB HEMD

AL =

RIEESEFOREMT

GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(b) Operating Lease Commitments

The Group as Lessee

The Group leases various office premises, staff
quarters and warehouses under non-cancellable
lease agreements. The leases have varying
terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

2016 2015

F&ET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

—F R Within one year 6,377 4,340
F_FEERTF In the second to fifth years

(BEEEME) inclusive 8,080 7,752

HBRAF Over five years 2,099 6,734

16,556 18,826

42. ERBEA TR ZRBERS

BaaMBmiRSEWEIN
BEETATEZREALRS ¢

FAXKHE

42. Material Related Party Transactions and
Connected Transactions

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the
following significant related party transactions during

the year.
(a) EEEAEMS (a) Key Management Compensation
2016 2015
FHxT FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EH(MEE13) Directors (Note 13) 3,899 4,934
HMEZEEAR Other key management personnel:
HeMEMBEEEEREF Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 5,154 3,463
9,053 8,397
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(b) X EHLEDEBEE SR A FEL & (b) Mr. Chi Wen Fu has given an undertaking to IFC
a0 AN B 2 RO A R A A R OK to maintain a minimum level of shareholding in
EREEERRFBL2AMiES2 - the Company as collateral of the borrowings as

detailed in Note 32.

() M20154F8H20H » # & B B @& (¢) GSIL and Earnmill Holdings Limited entered into
Earnmill Holdings Limited 7] 32 £ 4 an underwriting agreement on 20 August 2015
W - B AR E1,437,195,029 in relation to an open offer of 1,437,195,029
IS R 2 EERD - FFIEEHT offer shares of GSIL. Details are stated in the
KA QNR2016F8 A20 8 & H 2 Company’s Announcement dated 20 August
EA e 2015.

(d) SHEEM (d) Sales of goods

M2015F2 526 HZE
20154 12 A 31 H HifE
Period from
26 February 2015 to
2016 31 December 2015
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M—EA&&ERQRIEE Salestoa
(B&E ) joint venture (note(i) 2,921 3,363
LA HEHE Sales to Shandong
Hongri 1,533 —
BEE - note:
(i) M—HEERRHEE NIRAAEE ()  The sales to a joint venture were made according
FTERPREZAMERRGHE to the published prices and conditions offered to
17 o the major customers of the Group.
iy MURABEEDIARNER 2 —K (i)  The sales to Shandong Hongri were made at the
EHEEL - Group’s usual list prices.

(e) RIEUEE ILEA B50.5%# 2% 2 H (e) Pursuant to the agreement of acquisition of
#ASEREMELRAAGER 50.5% equity interest in Shandong Hongri, the
42 % BB A R ¥ 250,000,000 7T Group agreed to procure financing from banks
(&R #292,500,00087T) * MR and financial institutions and/or shall provide
TR BHRERSHERLESH any forms of guarantee or securities (upon
RITRMBRBERREREMNERA 2 request by such banks and financial institutions)
BRI © in aggregate loan amount not exceeding

RMB250,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$292,500,000) to Shandong Hongri.
FEERS 43. Non-Cash Transactions

MR2016%F12 A31H » A& B U E —
B AR - 2D RAB 890,000 T A R
LEHREMANREEE - FBEBLEW T
44(a) °

REZE2016F 12 A31HIEFE » K&EH
E#4910,401,0008 T H K ED X - BE
KRB cHBEWME WELRE -

HZE20156F12A31HILEE  mEBI
E-—MMBEARBERRESR  REHX
ARG 4575 © 5515 RMiFE44(c) »

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
acquired a subsidiary and the partial consideration of
approximately HK$890,000 has not been settled by
cash at the end of the reporting period. For details,
please refer to Note 44(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has transferred approximately HK$10,401,000
from deposits for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment to property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
acquired a subsidiary and the consideration had
not been settled by cash at the end of the reporting
period. For details, please refer to Note 44(c).
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44. WEKE QT

(a) WEBH T EBEERAR(=
BE%l)

HZE2016F 12 A1 BIEFR » A&
ERBYE= A RE_EBBNEE
Az - ZBBBHEMmED -
BHRWBEERENEAREEZ TLE
BRAEBEBRMERAEBERERER
BHZBEEP—RMETT - WES
BZRBREABARESFER KX ftd
BN 2016F 12 A 31 HIEAENEH
ZREFEE -

T EBER2016F7 A15H (WEE B
)z #REEaFERUEE B 8
ZAREMT

44. Acquisition of subsidiaries

(a) Acquisition of ¥)Tm —EBKERA A

(11 :E%ﬁ ”)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group acquired entire equity interest in — /&%
%% from independent third parties. —/&#&E#% is
engaged in logistic operation. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to
diversify the Group’s business and enhance
long-term growth potential of the Group. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was
in the form of cash and the unpaid amount was
recorded as consideration payable to the sellers
as at 31 December 2016.

The fair values on the date of acquisition for the
identifiable assets and liabilities of —/##&% as
at 15 July 2016 (the date of acquisition) were as
follows:

AR R A E
kafE
ZRRE

Fair value of

net identifiable

assets

and liabilities

B 5T FHTT
Notes HK$’000

ME - BB NEE

Property, plant and equipment 17 6,665

Hith fE T 5018 Other payables (216)

6,449
Bl Goodwill 19 224
wRAME Total consideration 6,673




(if)

(b)
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TR
HK$’000

ARSI A ERHAE -

Consideration satisfied by:

BRe Cash 5,783
RE-—SEEIE Consideration — payable to the
ERER 2 HIE sellers in connection with the acquisition 890
BRE Total consideration 6,673
WEEEIEMEA RSN Cash outflow arising on acquisition:
PSR & R(E Cash consideration paid 5,783
Frus i 2 RITHEHB RR S Bank balances and cash acquired —
5,783

WEEREHE

W —EBBMEER BT RA SR
(BIEZEGDEE) - s - AR
EREAMERNEBER ZAMERE
BRTBEARERAETE - RHKESEMR
EEREHRAAR

CEBEBEEZWERE

FREMNFBIEEBEMELEIINES
Z JEAE 18 #7654,0008 7T - FRWAE
HRE — &2 532,000/8 7T ° WERK
ABHR2016F1 A1EHE AR - NEEEK
BIFELEER 2 WA A1,277,000 7%
L MAREHELEEB 2 FRNEELE
1,570,00087C - "EBESRAEZEHE
ZIBHFRRAMHEERRFLLEEF2
RIS - WAEREARRHME R

W iE RS B RR
R2014F 128198 AEEHZ2 &
Bf B X AIMing Xin Developments

Limitedi] &2 7 — 0 B & W & —
DREWD ARELREREH

SR 1 K %% - 601) 500,000,000
% 38 A B 19 K% 239,532,000 % #7 A%
3 KRB % 5l A229,600,0007% JT
76,650,000 T ZERHER
2015F 2 H26 H ek - AEBE R T
B IES SR 2 51.46% 15 % i

R
s o
I

(if)

(b)

Goodwill on the acquisition

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of =& because
the cost of combination included a control premium.
In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
included amounts in relation to the business strategy
arising from them which cannot be measured reliably.
None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impact of acquisition on the result of —/&7& 7%

Included in the profit for the year of approximately HK$
654,000 losses attributable to the additional business
generated by — &7 . Revenue for the year includes
HK$532,000 in respect of —/&%&7%. Had these business
combinations been effected at 1 January 2016, the
revenue of the Group from continuing operation would
have been HK$1,277,000 and the loss for the year from
continuing operations would have been HK$1,570,000.
The directors of the Group considered these “pro-forma’
numbers to represent an approximate measure of the
performance of the combined group on an annualised
basis and to provide a reference point for comparison in
future periods.

Acquisition of GSIL

On 19 December 2014, Ming Xin Developments
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement and
a subscription agreement for the acquisition of
500,000,000 existing shares and the subscription
of 239,532,000 new shares of GSIL (stock code:
601) at the consideration of HK$229,600,000
and HK$76,650,000 respectively. The
transactions were completed on 26 February
2015 and the Group gained 51.46% controlling
interest in GSIL after the completion.
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AHRNFEER

EEZARE

Fair value

of net

identifiable

assets and

liabilities

iz TR

Notes HK$’000

W - WEMEE Property, plant and equipment 17 124,868

{5 A A Land use rights 16 12,200

BEEE Intangible assets 20 2,566

HBERBIZEE Investments in joint ventures 2,740

HeENTZ"E Investment in associates 24 22

A ERE Available-for-sale investments 7,300

FE Inventories 40,827
B 5 K H MW FRIE Trade and other receivables,

AR FIBERILS prepayments and deposits 34,631
RITIF K Deposits with banks 1,012
ReLERRESIEER Cash and cash equivalents 104,024
B 5 R H A FRIE Trade and other payables (60,178)
BIERIEA G Deferred tax liabilities 37 (248)
FERT RIS Income tax payable (129)
BE Borrowings (63,993)
SRR S Non-controlling interests (96,536)

109,106
G Goodwill 19 197,144
BRE Total consideration 306,250
AT 5 S ERRE - Consideration satisfied by:
Be Cash 306,250
WHESETEMES ZHEN Cash outflow arising on acquisition:
FrIReRE Cash consideration paid 306,250
Fri g 2 RITHEHRRIR S Bank balances and cash acquired (105,036)
201,214




()

(i)

Wiz EE&
WERERREL 2B EERAE

BB o s MAHNZRER
REELANWRamERNMEHRE - A
FATK AR BE R SEMEAT & - TRRTIBE
EZEETARENRTERR -

B ALXEERNZERLY
24,881,000 7T Jh (A 25 B IR &) 58
INEFSTMESL - FRABEL R

W A A125,906,000 JT ° 1 % 7%
AP R2015F1 A1 E £ Bl F
NAEERABELEEBTRASL
182,137,000 70 ' REFELEZE
% 2 K118 B 54,729,000 7T o A&
BEERAEZEBE I BTREAH
BEBERFILCEEFEZMOES
WA fEAERRPMLEE 2 EE

==
4 o

()

(i)
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Goodwill on the acquisition

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of GSIL because
the cost of combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for
the combination included amounts in relation to
the revenue growth and business strategy arising
from them which cannot be measured reliably.
None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impact of acquisition on the result of
the GSIL

Included in the profit for the year of
approximately HK$24,881,000 losses attributable
to the additional business generated by GSIL.
Revenue for the year includes HK$125,906,000
in respect of GSIL. Had these business
combinations been effected at 1 January 2015,
the revenue of the Group from continuing
operation would have been HK$182,137,000 and
the loss for the year from continuing operations
would have been HK$54,729,000. The directors
of the Group considered these “pro-forma’
numbers to represent an approximate measure
of the performance of the combined group on an
annualised basis and to provide a reference point
for comparison in future periods.
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(c) WEHERIASHABRIT(H
EREA

MN2015FE12 158 » REB AT
Eo-FRETEREISERERAA
(3B z2a R - FiBED
TENEAEREETHEREIEBIK - E
TWIEETER A T #0m A% E R H
RENZEE WESEEEERES
Re®X - AXFTEEN2015F12
A 31 Bk ABE B KIE -

R2015FH B RERER 2 ZEWE
WRmTIBREBENRE BT ME
HoBEBEASEHRBEHFIIUNEE
i BERERBREZBFEEIR
2015F 5 A1 B &5 H H 1F B3 fF
BB TUARE - B ETE
EREFABZHITRESIE T ED
2015 F B zk 2 BERRI{IARTTAK ©

(c) Acquisition of Xinjiang Tengxiang

Magnesium Products Company Limited

(“Xinjiang Tengxiang”)

On 15 December 2015, the Group acquired the
entire interest in Xinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium
Products Company Limited (“Xinjiang Tengxiang”)
from independent third parties. Xinjiang
Tengxiang is engaged in the production and
trading of magnesium ingots and semi coke. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group’s
strategy to enhance long-term growth potential
of the Group. The purchase consideration for
the acquisition was in the form of cash and the
unpaid amount was recorded as other payable
as at 31 December 2015.

The gain on bargain purchase recognised in
the 2015 financial statements were based on
a provisional assessment on the purchase
consideration. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement entered into by the Group and the
sellers, the purchase consideration shall be
adjusted by the operating gain or loss of Xinjiang
Tengxiang for the period from 1 May 2015 to
the completion date. The negotiation of the
adjustments to the purchase consideration with
the sellers had not been completed by the date
the 2015 financial statements were approved for
issue by the directors.



AEEERNFANTKRES HEH
BEHERE - REXAESEEEFT
YHERHE KBEEEZ2EER
BE%EE A ARIES4,482,000T(HE
% #966,027,0007% 7T ) + B B ER
BEER D> ARE17,794,0007T * [
HerEBEWEKREEINBERSE-
2016 F 2 BRERIEES - Uk
SRS EEL ZFHE Bitt -
R2015F 12 A31 8 2 g R B HI
J21,184,0008 7T © KRB E20154F
12A31TBEFE 2 ZERE YRR
21,564,000/ 0 M EFLE
FE AR E BT EE A 2 HNEE W ss AR
380,000/ 7T °

FRAEEBERNEAIFTARE
49,153,000 7t (#8 & 7 57,429,000 7
J0) - ERTRESREDFTA 2016 F 12
A31HZHAERFIE -
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During the year, the Group has completed the
negotiation of adjustments to the purchase
consideration with the sellers. In accordance
with the supplemental agreement agreed
by the Group and the sellers, the purchase
consideration for the acquisition was finalised
at RMB54,482,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$66,027,000), resulting in a decrease of
RMB17,794,000 over the provisional value and
increase in gain on bargain purchase of the
same amount. The 2015 comparative information
was restated to reflect the adjustment to the
provisional amounts. As a result, there was
a reduction on the consideration payable of
HK$21,184,000 as at 31 December 2015, an
increase in the gain on bargain purchase of
HK$21,564,000 and decrease in the foreign
exchange gain of HK$380,000 arising from the
retranslation of consideration payable for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year, the Group paid RMB49,153,000
(equivalent to HK$57,429,000) to the sellers
and the rest of the consideration payable was
included in other payable as at 31 December
2016.
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AR EIENEZ2015F 12 A 31 As the acquisition took place during the year
RIEFEETREITESTE 2015651 A ended 31 December 2015 and no adjustments
1THARZESRELAZ At - I were made to the balances stated at 1 January
EHR2015F 1 A1 B 2B ATBRR 2015, the consolidated statement of financial
KAZT - position at 1 January 2015 is therefore not
presented.
BB AR2015F 12 A15 8 (W iE The provisional and finalised fair values of the
HE) 2AIBREERBENKER identifiable assets and liabilities of Xinjiang
HZAREWT : Tengxiang as at 15 December 2015 (date of

acquisition) were as follows:

RREEERIZ BMEEE
BRARE BIZBAAAE
Provisional Finalised
fair value fair value
recognised recognised
on acquisition on acquisition
Kok TER TER
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
0% BERR Property, plant and equipment 17 200,810 200,810
BT LB E 5 Prepaid land lease payment 16 31,363 31,363
fea = Inventories 5,284 5,284
EWE HER Trade receivables 3,942 3,942
BAFE &2 R Prepayments, deposits and
H A e FRIE other receivables 118 118
AR Tax recoverable 1,859 1,859
RekBeESEER Cash and cash equivalents 428 428
[T E 5 8RK Trade payables (35,087) (35,087)
HigEMFIEREFERE  Other payables and accruals (75,163) (75,163)
B8R ITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings (38,781) (38,781)
M#HBIEEFELAE  Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Fats) 94,773 94,773
GEERERAMEE Gain on bargain purchase recognised
WALRBRNZE in the consolidated statement
W M as of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income 7,182 28,746
THRE Consideration satisfied by:
FWEEERNER Payable to the sellers in connection
23R with the acquisition 87,591 66,027




BB W25 28,746,000 B TT (K EF ) =
BRMAKEEES LT RFTBED 2K
EIMNEEBHRR R REAEXERRD
FHEHEET -

1 oE e AN 2 T WU 5 R SR e EL i B K BR R
KRB RSN RRERESOBAERS
AAREFAMTEATMEANESE
Lo SN ETI

AEBREKETEHEER KA
1,758,000 70 c WEKAERNEF 245G
BRI HEIIATHERE S -

WEMBARZRSRENTWT :
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The gain on bargain purchase of HK$28,746,000
(restated) was primarily attributable to arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and the sellers on
normal commercial terms, having taken into account
the operation and business prospect of Xinjiang
Tengxiang.

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables of Xinjiang Tengxiang at the date of
acquisition approximated to their gross contractual
amounts and the directors of the Company do not
expect any significant acquired receivables to be
uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$1,758,000
for this acquisition. These cost have been expensed
off and are included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the prior year.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

FERx

HK$’000

AARERDRSRENTKE
ZREMRITEHERE R

Cash and bank balances acquired and
net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

ZRREFHEERAFE included in cash flows from investing activities 428

FFAKEEBRR S REMNE Transaction costs of the acquisition included in
BER MR cash flows from operating activities (1,758)
(1,330)

BUEE AR - STEBEANEE20159F12
AS1AIEFENEAXNEE &R EM &
o WAEE2016F12A31BILEFEZ
A EEF S REE1,565,00087T °

R EEIANEEZ2015412 A31 1t
FEMMBERZAIREEZ  BOER
AHMRERREN Y —REEAHE
BB RIBEE I RAI 1T »

Since the acquisition, Xinjiang Tengxiang did not
contribute any profit to the Group’s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and caused a loss of
HK$1,565,000 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

As the financial information of Xinjiang Tengxiang
for year ended 31 December 2015 had not been
previously audited, it is impractical to disclose the
revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity,
as though the acquisition date for the business
combination had been at the beginning of the prior
year.
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45, HE—EHBE QR 45. Disposal of a subsidiary

HEC0I5F12A31BILEE  ZHBLA During the year ended 31 December 2015, the net
ANEERRCBEFRAT liabilities of subsidiary at the date of disposal were as
follows:

FTHERx

HK$’000

HEaEFEE: Net liabilities disposed of:
RENRREEHEIER Cash and cash equivalents 8
H b fE W BRI MR & Other receivables and deposits 22
HEMENERREFTEE Other payables and accruals (197)
(167)
HE—HNB AR W Gain on disposals of a subsidiary 179
12
BT Satisfied by
Re Cash 12
HE—MHEBARMEESLRAFEE  Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary:
BB eRE Cash consideration received 12
HEZRITEKRRR S Bank balances and cash disposed (8)




46.

47.

MEARERERER ZEE

MREE2016F12A31HILFEN » K&
EESTHEEREAZARARMEIN
4.95% AR ANAERS - TERERBIL T AR A A
BN 70% AR K AFEBHR A
AIMEEIN15.00% IR AN - AEEE LS
5 MR 47,745,000 78 7T IEHE AR HE &5
A K #9227,593,000 7 T E AL fEE R A o

REE20156FE12A31HIEFEERN AR
KEBR2015F2 826 B TR KB EE
BREEEE51.46% 2 ER - MAEER
20154 3 A5 A VB H 3 fil 1 2 W E I
2015 3 H26 HTMK » AEE NS EK
2P AT AE S A IE AN 51.88% © AN AR
EENER T IHEERBEHAEARAR
2 315% BN AR - AR MRS
7R £ B 1 SRR > FE % Bk 2= 49 8,580,000
FETT NG N E M #5495,797,000 8 7T ©

AR REE

REKRNRI2014F10A9BZAE » AR
REEHEBEREERAR(TEEHZRE
FREA  RAMSIRERBEE - BARAATA
B BBFANEMSHKEARREEEE -
BEMBEZERXHE  BREBBE
SEXEREARBLETFTRINOMBET
B EBEEZGRE ZHFATGHEAEER
25 LERUBBEREXNEATHTE -

46.

47.
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Changes in Ownership Interest in
Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
gained 4.95% additional equity interest of Jiangsu
Azureblue Technology Development Company Limited,
8.70% additional equity interest in Jiangsu Longteng
Petrochemical Limited and 15.00% additional equity
interest in Fullocean Group Limited. As a result
of these transactions, the Group recognised a
decrease in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$47,745,000 and a decrease in other reserve of
approximately HK$227,593,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, as the
Group gained 51.46% controlling interest in GSIL after
the completion of acquisition on 26 February 2015,
mandatory general offer were made by the Group on
5 March 2015 and completed on 26 March 2015.
The Group’s controlling interest in GSIL thereafter
increased to 51.88%. In addition, the Group also
gained additional 3.15% equity interest in Jiangsu
Azureblue Technology Development Company
Limited. As a result of these transactions, the Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$8,580,000 and an increase in other
reserve of approximately HK$5,797,000 respectively.

Litigations and Contingent Liabilities

Reference was made to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 October 2014 regarding a civil claim
against Capital Idea Investments Limited (“Capital
|dea”). As of the date of the consolidated financial
statement, to the best knowledge of the Company,
the writ of summons of the litigation has not yet
been served on Capital Idea. Upon receiving this
legal document, Capital Idea will seek legal advice in
relation to the claim and the necessary actions to be
taken in this respect and will vigorously defend against
the claim. The Board of the Company is of the view
that this claim will not have a material adverse impact
on the business, operation and financial position of
the Group.
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48.

49.

50.

BREMREE

B2016F 8 A3H Long Xiang
Enterprises Limited (ARG ZEEEE
WEBAGE  1ERER)HEZERER AR
(AARRBIZHRITESG L)L EBER
B2z nwl - fE/REJ) KAcronagrotrans
Lid(tFRBIERR HEEFBAILFRAH
2.50.5% e ) Al L WIE W - B - B
BRUEREBEAMEABRKGRELEE
ERE BB AER ReREA1E
T(FHERKT7.7678L) « RIEBEBBERI R
BRI  - WEILERA B Z 5%
RIEHEEEEN - MBBAERE N 2017
FIHOHRRESFSEUAREBERIE -
BAXSBEFTHA - MIBEKETZE 2 &
FoWWRAABREEEFEZEEAER - B
20174F 4 A1 B#BAER -

BRERANFR LA AWES -
SHIRRAEBEAEANFR -

A1 E2

A-HEBAHZKWBEERR(ERE
BHMRM 44 ARE)  LRESEEE
Jle RETHREWMEAIFENHE - UM
BARFEZZMTR -

RENRGEUBEHRER

EELR2017 F3 A 29 BHbE N RT3
AP HmE -

48.

49.

50

Events after the Reporting Period

On 3 August 2016, Long Xiang Enterprises Limited (a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the Purchaser), entered into an acquisition agreement
with Prosperous Rich Holdings Limited (a company
indirectly held by the Company’s former executive
director, Mr. Yang Yuchuan, as the Vendor) and
Acronagrotrans Ltd (as the Target Company, which
directly holds 50.5% interests in Shandong Hongri),
pursuant to which, the Purchaser conditionally agreed
to buy, and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell
the entire equity interest in the Target Company,
at the cash consideration of US$1 (equivalent
to approximately HK$7.76), which is payable in
accordance with the terms and conditions thereto
at completion. The conditions precedent to the
acquisition of Shandong Hongri have been satisfied
and the resolution was passed to the Board for
consideration and approval on 29 March 2017. The
transaction is to be completed and Shandong Hongri
will be consolidated into the Group with effect from 1
April 2017 according to the terms of the acquisition
agreement.

Saved as disclose elsewhere in this Annual Report,
there were no significant events that have occurred
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Comparatives

The comparatives has been restated due to the
adjusted purchase consideration for a business
combination as disclosed in Note 44(c) to the financial
statements. And certain comparative amounts have
been reclassified to conform with current year’s
presentation.

Authorisation for Issue of Consolidated
Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 March 2017.
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